
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

TOWN OF DISCOVERY BAY 

COMMUNITY SERVICES DISTRICT 

AGENDA PACKET 

 
For the Special Meeting of  Tuesday 

April 14, 2015 

 
6:00 P.M. Special Meeting 

 
District Office 

1800 Willow Lake Road 

TOWN OF DISCOVERY BAY  

A COMMUNITY SERVICES DISTRICT 

President – Chris Steele • Vice-President – Bill Pease • Director – Kevin Graves • Director – Robert Leete • Director – Mark Simon 



 

Town of Discovery Bay CSD Board of Directors 
Meeting Agenda for April 14, 2015 - Pg.1 

 
 

 

 

 
 

 

 
NOTICE, CALL, AND AGENDA 
OF A SPECIAL MEETING 
OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS 
OF THE TOWN OF DISCOVERY BAY 
Tuesday April 14, 2015 
SPECIAL MEETING 6:00 P.M. 
1800 Willow Lake Road, Discovery Bay, California 
Website address: www.todb.ca.gov 
 
SPECIAL MEETING 6:00 P.M. 
A. ROLL CALL AND PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 

1. Call business meeting to order 6:00 p.m. 
2. Pledge of Allegiance 
3. Roll Call 

 
B. PUBLIC COMMENTS (Individual Public Comments will be limited to a 3-minute time limit) 

During Public Comments, the public may address the Board on any issue within the District’s jurisdiction 
which is not on the agenda.  The public may comment on any item on the Agenda at the time that item is 
before the Board for consideration.  Any person wishing to speak must come up and speak from the 
podium.  There will be no dialog between the Board and the commenter.  Any clarifying questions from the 
Board must go through the Chair. 

 
C. PRESENTATIONS 

 
D. PRESIDENT REPORT AND DIRECTORS’ COMMENTS 

 
E. CONSENT CALENDAR 

All matters listed under the CONSENT CALENDAR are considered by the District to be routine and will be 
enacted by one motion. 
1. Approval of DRAFT minutes of special meeting for April 1, 2015 
2. Approve Register of District Invoices  
3. Purchase Emergency Stand-By Generator for Well No. 7 

 
F. BUSINESS AND ACTION ITEMS 

1. Review Urban Water Management Plan 
2. Groundwater Sustainability Plan Proposal for Services 

 
G. INFORMATIONAL ITEMS ONLY (NO ACTION NECESSARY) 

1. Drought – Governor’s Executive Order requiring 25% Water Reduction 
 

H. VEOLIA REPORT 
1. Veolia Report – Month of March 2015 

 
I. MANAGER’S REPORTS – Discussion and Possible Action 
 
J. GENERAL MANAGER’S REPORT – Discussion and Possible Action 
 

TOWN OF DISCOVERY BAY 
A COMMUNITY SERVICES DISTRICT 

 

President – Chris Steele • Vice-President – Bill Pease • Director – Kevin Graves • Director – Robert Leete • Director – Mark Simon 
 

 

http://www.todb.ca.gov/


 

Town of Discovery Bay CSD Board of Directors 
Meeting Agenda for April 14, 2015 - Pg.2 

 
 

 
K. DISTRICT LEGAL COUNSEL REPORT 
 
L. COMMITTEE UPDATES – Discussion and Possible Action 
 
M. CORRESPONDENCE – Discussion and Possible Action  

1. R – Contra Costa County Aviation Advisory Committee meeting minutes for 02-12-15 
2. R – State Route 4 Bypass meeting minutes for 02-12-15 
3. R – East Contra Costa Fire Protection District meeting minutes for 03-02-15 
4. R – Contra Costa County Aviation Advisory Committee meeting minutes for 03-12-15 

 
N.  PUBLIC RECORD REQUESTS RECEIVED  
 
O.  FUTURE AGENDA ITEMS  
 
P. ADJOURNMENT 

1. Adjourn to the next Regular meeting on May 6, 2015 starting at 7:00 p.m. on 1800 Willow Lake Road-
Located behind the Delta Community Presbyterian Church.  

 
 
 
 
 

“This agenda shall be made available upon request in alternative formats to persons with a disability, as 
required by the American with Disabilities Act of 1990 (42 U.S.C. § 12132) and the Ralph M. Brown Act 
(California Government Code § 54954.2). Persons requesting a disability related modification or accommodation 
in order to participate in the meeting should contact the Town of Discovery Bay, at (925)634-1131, during 
regular business hours, at least twenty-four hours prior to the time of the meeting.” 
 
"Materials related to an item on the Agenda submitted to the Town of Discovery Bay CSD after distribution of the 
agenda packet are available for public inspection in the District Office located at 1800 Willow Lake Road during 
normal business hours." 
 
 
 



No Back Up
Documentation

For Agenda Item C

TOWN OF DISCOVERY BAY
A COMMUNITY SERVICES DISTRICT

President – Chris Steele • Vice-President – Bill Pease • Director – Kevin Graves • Director – Robert Leete • Director – Mark Simon



No Back Up
Documentation

For Agenda Item D

TOWN OF DISCOVERY BAY
A COMMUNITY SERVICES DISTRICT

President – Chris Steele • Vice-President – Bill Pease • Director – Kevin Graves • Director – Robert Leete • Director – Mark Simon



 
 

 
Town of Discovery Bay Board of Directors 
Meeting Minutes for April 1, 2015 - Pg.1 

 

          
 

 
 
 
                             
MINUTES OF THE REGULAR MEETING 
OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS 
OF THE TOWN OF DISCOVERY BAY 
Wednesday April 1, 2015 
REGULAR MEETING 7:00 P.M. 
1800 Willow Lake Road, Discovery Bay, California 
Website address: www.todb.ca.gov 
 
REGULAR MEETING 7:00 P.M. 
A. ROLL CALL AND PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 

Call business meeting to order – 7:00 p.m. by President Steele 
Pledge of Allegiance – Led by Director Simon 
Roll Call – All Present with the exception of Vice-President Pease 
  

B. PUBLIC COMMENTS (Individual Public Comments will be limited to a 3-minute time limit) 
None 
 

C. AREA AGENCIES REPORTS / PRESENTATION 
  1  Sheriff’s Office Report  

Sheriff Representative David Allain – Provided the law enforcement report for the month of March. 
 2. CHP Report 

Officer Thomas – Provided an update of the services to the Town of Discovery Bay.  There was discussion 
between Officer Thomas and the Board. 
3. East Contra Costa Fire Protection District Report 
Chief Henderson – Provided an East Contra Costa Fire Protection District update.  There was discussion 

between Chief Henderson and the Board.  
4. Supervisor Mary Piepho, District III Report – No Report 

 
D. COMMITTEE/LIAISON REPORTS 

1. Trans-Plan Report – No Report 
2.   County Planning Commission Report – No Report 
3. Code Enforcement Report – Director Leete stated there was a meeting and there is nothing to report 
4. Special Districts Report** – No Report 
**These meetings are held Quarterly 

 
E. PRESENTATIONS 
 None 
 
F. CONSENT CALENDAR 

All matters listed under the CONSENT CALENDAR are considered by the District to be routine and will be enacted 
by one motion. 
1. Approval of DRAFT minutes of special meeting for March 18, 2015 
2. Approval of DRAFT minutes of regular meeting for March 18, 2015 
3. Approve Register of District Invoices  
Motion by: Director Simon to approve the Consent Calendar 
Second by: Director Graves 
Vote: Motion Carried – AYES: 4 – President Steele, Director Graves, Director Leete, Director Simon; NOES: 0, 
ABSENT: 1 – Vice-President Pease 
 

G. BUSINESS AND ACTION ITEMS 
1. East Contra Costa Fire Protection District Benefit Assessment Official Ballot 

TOWN OF DISCOVERY BAY 
A COMMUNITY SERVICES DISTRICT 

 

 

President – Chris Steele • Vice-President – Bill Pease • Director – Kevin Graves • Director – Robert Leete • Director – Mark Simon 
 

 

Agenda Item E-1

http://www.todb.ca.gov/


 
 

 
Town of Discovery Bay Board of Directors 
Meeting Minutes for April 1, 2015 - Pg.2 

 

General Manager Howard – Provided the details of item G-1. 
Motion by: President Steele to approve the Benefit Assessment Official Ballot  
Second: Director Graves 
Vote: Motion Carried – AYES: 4 – President Steele, Director Graves, Director Leete, Director Simon, NOES: 0, 
ABSENT: Vice President Pease 
2. Storage Space Lease Agreement between the Town of Discovery Bay and the Discovery Bay Lion’s 

Club and the Discovery Bay Community Foundation 
General Manager Howard – Provided the details of item G-2.  There was discussion between the General 
Manager and the Board.  There was one Public Comment Speaker. 
Motion by: Director Simon to Approve storage Lease Agreement between the Town of Discovery Bay and the 
Discovery Bay Lion’s Club for use of Town of Discovery Bay property located on Firwood Dr. at gate on Discovery 
Bay Blvd (AKA Well Site 4); and storage Lease Agreement between the Town of Discovery Bay and the Discovery 
Bay Community Foundation for use of Town of Discovery Bay property located on Edgeview Drive at gate on 
Discovery Bay Blvd (AKA Well Site 3) 
Second by: Director Leete 
Vote: Motion Carried – AYES:  4 – President Steele, Director Graves, Director Leete, Director Simon, NOES: 0, 
ABSENT: Vice President Pease 

 
H.  INFORMATIONAL ITEMS ONLY (NO ACTION NECESSARY) 

1. State Water Resources Control Board Proposed Emergency Water Conservation Regulations 
General Manager Howard – Provided the details of item H-1.  There was discussion between the General 
Manager and the Board. 

 
I. PRESIDENT REPORT AND DIRECTORS’ COMMENTS 
 None 
 
J. MANAGER’S REPORT – Discussion and Possible Action 
 None 
 
K. GENERAL MANAGER’S REPORT – Discussion and Possible Action 

1. Discuss Urban Water Management Plan – Schedule Workshop 
General Manager Howard – Provided the details of item K-1.  There was discussion between the General 
Manager and the Board. 
2. Employee Medical Benefit Update 
General Manager Howard – Provided the details of item K-2.  There was discussion between the General 
Manager and the Board. 
 
General Manager Howard also provided details regarding the Board room at the Community Center.  There was 
discussion between the General Manager and the Board. 
 

L. DISTRICT LEGAL COUNSEL REPORT 
 None 
 
M. COMMITTEE UPDATES – Discussion and Possible Action 

General Manager Howard – Stated that there were two committee meetings this past week – Community Center 
meeting and Wastewater meeting. 
 

N. CORRESPONDENCE – Discussion and Possible Action  
1. R - Letter from Department of Transportation responding to Parking on Hwy 4 

 
O. PUBLIC RECORD REQUESTS RECEIVED   

1. Request for Listing of Water & Sewer Permits in the Last 24 Months received March 12, 2015 from Valbridge 
Property Advisors 
 

P. FUTURE AGENDA ITEMS 
 None 
 
Q.  ADJOURNMENT     

The meeting adjourned at 7:42 p.m. to the next regular meeting dated April 15, 2015 starting at 7:00 p.m. on 1800 
Willow Lake Road. 

 
 
//cmc – 04-06-15 
http://www.todb.ca.gov/page/576/ 
 

Agenda Item E-1

http://www.todb.ca.gov/page/576/


 
 

 

 

Town of Discovery Bay 
“A Community Services District” 

AGENDA REPORT 

 
 

Meeting Date 
 
 

April 15, 2015 

 
Prepared By:   Dina Breitstein, Finance Manager & Lesley Marable, Sr. Accounts Clerk 
Submitted By:    Rick Howard, General Manager  

 
Agenda Title 
 
Approve Register of District Invoices 
 
 
Recommended Action 
 
Staff recommends that the Board approve the listed invoices for payment 
 
 
Executive Summary 
 
District invoices are paid on a regular basis, and must obtain Board authorization prior to payment.  Staff recommends  
Board authorization in order that the District can continue to pay warrants in a timely manner. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Fiscal Impact: 
 

Amount Requested  $ 500,732.82 
Sufficient Budgeted Funds Available?:  Yes   (If no, see attached fiscal analysis) 

 Prog/Fund #    See listing of invoices.  Category:  Operating Expenses and Capital Improvements        
 

Previous Relevant Board Actions for This Item 
 
 
 
Attachments 
 
Request For Authorization to Pay Invoices for the Town of Discovery Bay CSD  2014/2015 
Request For Authorization to Pay Invoices for the Discovery Bay Lighting & Landscape District # 8 2014/2015 
Request For Authorization to Pay Invoices for the Discovery Bay Lighting & Landscape District # 9 2014/2015 
 

 

AGENDA ITEM: E-2 

Cinderella
Stamp



Vendor Name Invoice Number Description Invoice Date  Amount

Administration

Commercial Tree Care 20924 Landscape Reimb (Z57,Z61) 02/24/15 $24,236.00

Intelligent Products Inc 190078A Landscape Reimb (Z57, Z61) 02/25/15 $637.32

Neumiller & Beardslee 267748 General Services (Z35,Z57,Z61) 03/12/15 $1,053.50

Village Nurseries Wholesale, LLC 215033 Color Order (Z61) 02/28/15 $239.24

Administration Sub-Total $26,166.06

Water

Alhambra 13710019032015 Water Service 03/20/15 $14.18

American Retrofit Systems 1072 Hook Up GFI Willow Lake 03/26/15 $200.00

Animal Damage Control 32815 Pest Control 03/28/15 $50.00

Bartle Wells Associates 1003 Proposal To Update Water & Wastewater Capacity Fee 11/21/14 $2,970.00

Brentwood Ace Hardware 808/033115 General Repairs 03/31/15 $39.93

Brentwood Press & Publishing 10176 Advertising 03/31/15 $800.00

Byron Bethany Irrigation 17274 Emergency Light System 2015 Truck 03/26/15 $791.80

Cash 33115 Data Recovery 03/31/15 $291.85

Cash 40115 Data Recovery 04/01/15 $51.88

County Of Contra Costa, Dept of Info Tec 9389 Data Processing Jan 2015 02/25/15 $17.60

County Of Contra Costa, Dept of Info Tec 9444 Data Processing Feb 2015 03/12/15 $17.60

Discovery Pest Control 143555 Pest Control 03/17/15 $27.20

J.W. Backhoe & Construction, Inc. 2287 Locate Lateral Newport Lane 02/24/15 $3,500.00

J.W. Backhoe & Construction, Inc. 2305 Water Leak Willow Lake Rd 03/26/15 $3,086.78

J.W. Backhoe & Construction, Inc. 2306 Water Leak Starfish Place 03/26/15 $2,409.05

J.W. Backhoe & Construction, Inc. 2307 Water Leak Discovery Place 03/26/15 $723.75

J.W. Backhoe & Construction, Inc. 2309 Install 1" Service Discovery Bay Blvd 03/27/15 $6,811.11

J.W. Backhoe & Construction, Inc. 2310 Water Leak Discovery Bay Blvd 03/30/15 $3,494.30

National Meter & Automation, Inc. S1059430.002 Badger Connectors 03/20/15 $2,330.58

Neumiller & Beardslee 18632-25424 General Services 02/23/15 $13,940.00

Neumiller & Beardslee 267208 General Services Jan 2015 02/23/15 $1,351.20

Neumiller & Beardslee 267209 Hofmann v. TODB 02/23/15 $20.39

Neumiller & Beardslee 267210 Pantages 02/23/15 $64.50

Neumiller & Beardslee 267748 General Services Feb 2015 03/12/15 $1,135.20

Office Depot 761084263001 Office Supplies 03/18/15 $42.94

Office Depot 761491199001 Office Supplies 03/20/15 $23.68

Ricoh USA, Inc 5035143044 Photocopier 03/18/15 $101.08

Robin Grube 3636 Sailboat Dr Closed Account, Refund Overpayment 03/24/15 $7.27

SDRMA 16799 Medical Benefits May 2015 04/06/15 $849.46

Shred-It USA-Concord 9405121788 Shredding Service 03/05/15 $22.68

Sue Heinl 1 Education and Training 03/30/15 $60.00

U.S. Bank 2015 Debt Service Payment 04/01/15 $28,037.02

Univar SJ673747 Chemicals Delivered 03/18/15 03/18/15 $314.11

Univar SJ673749 Chemicals Delivered 03/18/15 03/18/15 $189.27

Veolia Water North America 46986 Monthly O&M April 2015 04/01/15 $40,403.73

Zee Medical Service Company 724500341 Medical Supplies 04/06/15 $19.72

Water Sub-Total $114,209.86

Wastewater

Alhambra 13710019032015 Water Service 03/20/15 $21.28

American Retrofit Systems 1071 Power Check Wetlands Pump System 03/26/15 $100.00

American Retrofit Systems 1075 Replace Fan Motor Newport Lift station 04/01/15 $450.00

American Retrofit Systems 1076 WWTP#1 AC Unit Repair 04/01/15 $425.00

Animal Damage Control 32815 Pest Control 03/28/15 $75.00

Bartle Wells Associates 1003 Proposal To Update Water & Wastewater Capacity Fee 11/21/14 $4,455.00

Brentwood Ace Hardware 808/033115 General Repairs 03/31/15 $59.90

Brentwood Press & Publishing 10176 Advertising 03/31/15 $1,200.00

Byron Bethany Irrigation 17274 Emergency Light System 2015 Truck 03/26/15 $1,187.70

Cascade Integration And Development 919 SCADA System Upgrade 03/01/15 $9,187.50

Cascade Integration And Development 921 SCADA System Upgrade 03/18/15 $5,640.00

Cash 33115 Data Recovery 03/31/15 $437.78

Cash 40115 Data Recovery 04/01/15 $77.83

County Of Contra Costa, Dept of Info Tec 9389 Data Processing Jan 2015 02/25/15 $26.40

County Of Contra Costa, Dept of Info Tec 9444 Data Processing Feb 2015 03/12/15 $26.40

Discovery Pest Control 143555 Pest Control 03/17/15 $40.80

Request For Authorization To Pay Invoices  (RFA)

For The Meeting On April 15, 2015 

Town of Discovery Bay CSD

For Fiscal Year’s 7/14 - 6/15

Agenda Item E-2



Kleinfelder, Inc. 1053373 Groundwater Monitoring Well Installation 03/23/15 $6,464.25

Neumiller & Beardslee 18632-25424 General Services 02/23/15 $20,910.00

Neumiller & Beardslee 267208 General Services Jan 2015 02/23/15 $2,026.80

Neumiller & Beardslee 267209 Hofmann v. TODB 02/23/15 $30.59

Neumiller & Beardslee 267211 Newport Pointe 02/23/15 $129.00

Neumiller & Beardslee 267748 General Services Feb 2015 03/12/15 $1,702.80

Office Depot 761084263001 Office Supplies 03/18/15 $64.42

Office Depot 761491199001 Office Supplies 03/20/15 $35.51

Ricoh USA, Inc 5035143044 Photocopier 03/18/15 $151.63

SDRMA 16799 Medical Benefits May 2015 04/06/15 $1,274.18

Shred-It USA-Concord 9405121788 Shredding Service 03/05/15 $34.03

Sue Heinl 1 Education and Training 03/30/15 $90.00

U.S. Bank 2015 Debt Service Payment 04/01/15 $235,468.76

Veolia Water North America 46986 Monthly O&M April 2015 04/01/15 $60,605.60

Zee Medical Service Company 724500341 Medical Supplies 04/06/15 $29.58

Wastewater Sub-Total $352,427.74

Community Center

Community Center Sub-Total $0.00

Grand Total $492,803.66

Agenda Item E-2



Vendor Name Invoice Number Description Invoice Date  Amount
A & L Western Agricultural Labs, Inc. 168019 Soil Testing 03/13/15 $504.00

Alhambra 13710019032015 Community Center-Water Service 03/20/15 $54.41

American Retrofit Systems 1060 Repair Lights Front Entrance 03/04/15 $200.00

American Retrofit Systems 1061 Community Center-Repair Front Lights 03/04/15 $250.00

Blind To Reason 3 Community Center-Earth Day 04/03/15 $450.00

Brentwood Ace Hardware 808/033115 Community Center-Building Maintenance 03/31/15 $32.95

Comcast 8155400350238372/315 Internet Service 03/22/15 $56.32

Comcast 8155400350238372/315 Community Center-Internet Service 03/22/15 $56.32

Contra Costa County Fire Protection 15-1739 Community Center-Permit 04/02/15 $277.50

Contra Costa Fire Equipment 4450 Community Center-Fire Extinguishers 04/07/15 $194.26

Denalect Alarm Company R18445 Community Center-Quartile Alarm 04/01/15 $96.00

Department of Justice 88784 Community Center-Finger Printing 03/04/15 $49.00

Discovery Bay Disposal 17-0001966/033115 Com2 Yd Bin 03/31/15 $300.53

Discovery Bay Disposal 17-0013218 Community Center-Com 2 Yd Bin 03/31/15 $8.16

Karina Dugand 19 Community Center-Program Fees 04/02/15 $1,116.00

Kidz Love Soccer 2015WI-F122 Community Center-Program Fees 03/20/15 $1,122.00

Lincoln Equipment, Inc. S1259438 Community Center-Safety Equipment 03/09/15 $39.98

Lincoln Equipment, Inc. SI259609 Community Center-Safety Equipment 03/12/15 $172.98

Melinda Esau 111 Community Center-Program Fees 04/07/15 $364.80

Nancy Roberts 5 Community Center-Program Fees 03/30/15 $99.00

Nancy Roberts 6 Community Center-Program Fees 03/23/15 $72.00

Office Depot 759329850001 Community Center-Office Supplies 03/09/15 $105.19

Office Depot 759330007001 Community Center-Office Supplies 03/09/15 $6.67

ProPet Distributors, Inc. 105998 Litter Pick Up Bags 02/24/15 $984.20

Village Nurseries Wholesale, LLC 215033 Color Order 02/28/15 $345.03

W.J. Kirk Welding 48397 Cornell Park Backstop Repair 04/01/15 $173.60

Total $7,130.90

Request For Authorization To Pay Invoices  (RFA)

For The Meeting On April 15, 2015 

Town of Discovery Bay, D.Bay L&L Park #8

For Fiscal Year’s 7/14 - 6/15

Agenda Item E-2



Vendor Name Invoice Number Description Invoice Date  Amount

Brentwood Ace Hardware 808/033115 Landscape Maintenance 03/31/15 $90.32

Comcast 8155400350238372/315 Internet Service 03/22/15 $56.32

ProPet Distributors, Inc. 105998 Litter Pick Up Bags 02/24/15 $216.00

W.J. Kirk Welding 48011 Repair Mower 04/01/15 $435.62

Total $798.26

Request For Authorization To Pay Invoices   (RFA)

For The Meeting On April 15, 2015

Town of Discovery Bay, D.Bay L&L Park #9 (Ravenswood)

For Fiscal Year’s 7/14 - 6/15

Agenda Item E-2



 
 

 

 

Town of Discovery Bay  
“A Community Services District” 

AGENDA REPORT 

 
 

Meeting Date 
 
 

April 14, 2015 

 
Prepared By: Rick Howard, General Manager 
Submitted By: Rick Howard, General Manager  
 
 
Agenda Title 
 
Purchase Emergency Stand-By Generator for Well No. 7 
 
 
Recommended Action 
 
Authorize purchase of one (1) MULTIQUIP Whisperwatt DCA 300SSCU4i 300KW Portable Generator from Gonneville 
Inc. in the amount of $130,342.00 for Well No. 7 
 
 
Executive Summary 
 
The Town is currently in the final stages of construction on Well No. 7.  Well No. 7 is located on Newport Drive.  It is 
anticipated that the Well will be operational later this summer. 
 
In order to provide operational reliability during power outages and in times of emergency, it is necessary to have a 
dedicated stand-by generator. 
 
The cost of the generator was included in the Bond fund allocation for Well No. 7. 
 
The cost of the generator is $117,255.00 plus tax ($9,967.00) and shipping ($3,120.00) for a total purchase of 
$130,342.00.  This generator has been discontinued and a newer model is now available.  However, pricing for this unit is 
very competitive due to standing inventory. 
 
This generator has been previously bid as a part of the General Services Administration California Multiple Awards 
Schedule, or CMAS, and the Town, as a political subdivision of the state can “piggy-back” on that competitive bidding 
process. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Fiscal Impact:  
 

Amount Requested  $130,342.00    $1,500,000.00 less Project To Date and Encumbrances of  1,105,971.00 = 
Balance $394,028.81 
Sufficient Budgeted Funds Available?: Yes    (If no, see attached fiscal analysis) 

 Prog/Fund #      Category:  Pers.     Optg.     Cap.       -or-   CIP#      Fund# 
 

Previous Relevant Board Actions for This Item 
N/A   
Attachments 
 
MULTIQUIP Whisperwatt DCA 300SSCU4i 300KW Portable Generator  
Gonneville Inc. Proposal 
 

 

AGENDA ITEM: E-3 

Cinderella
Stamp



Agenda Item E-3



Agenda Item E-3



Agenda Item E-3



Agenda Item E-3



Agenda Item E-3



Agenda Item E-3



 
 

 

 

Town of Discovery Bay 
“A Community Services District” 

AGENDA REPORT 

 
 

Meeting Date 
 
 

April 14, 2015 

 

Prepared By: Rick Howard, General Manager 
Submitted By: Rick Howard, General Manager  
  
Agenda Title 
 

Review Urban Water Management Plan 
  
Recommended Action 
 

Review and Comment 
  
Executive Summary 
 

Beginning in 2010, the State of California required all California urban water suppliers to complete an urban Water Management Plan 
(UWMP).  UWMP’s are intended to assess a community’s historic and current water use projections and compares water supplies with 
demands over the next 20 years. The UWMP serves as a long-range planning document for water supply and demand and provides 
an overview of water supply and usage, recycled water and conservation programs. 
 

Every urban water supplier that either provides over 3,000 acre-feet of water annually, or serves more than 3,000 urban connections is 
required to assess the reliability of its water sources over the 20-year planning horizon, and report its progress on 20% reduction in 
per-capita urban water consumption by the year 2020, as required in the Water Conservation Bill of 2009 SBX7-7. 
 

In 2010 the Town was in the process of developing the Water Master Plan (WMP), which was completed in 2012.  The WMP is a 
planning document tailored specific to the needs of the Town and used to develop the capital improvement plan. In contrast, the 
UWMP is a state-mandated water supply planning document that is used by the state to forecast overall growth and water supply 
needs.  The WMP and its data share many of the same components that are necessary to incorporate into the 2010 UWMP (and 
subsequent updates and plans).   
 

Luhdorff and Scalmanini Consulting Engineers has been developing and preparing the UWMP since early 2014 and has been 
reviewed by staff. 
 

The plan identifies local water supplies that are necessary to meet future demands, water recycling, as well as TODB’s current and 
planned conservation measures. The UWMP will help ensure that the Town can provide our service area with a reliable supply of high-
quality water and meet current and future demands.  
 

The plan is updated every five years and submitted to the California Department of Water Resources (DWR).  DWR staff then reviews 
the submitted plans to make sure they have completed the requirements identified in the Water Code, Sections §10608– 10656, then 
submits a report to the Legislature summarizing the status of the plans. 
 

After tonight’s review and comment by the public and the Board, the draft UWMP will be sent to DWR for a review.  Once DWR 
reviews the plan, they will likely make a number of recommendations and comments.  The Plan will then be provided to neighboring 
agencies for their review and consistency with their plans.  Once all of that is complete, the Board will conduct a Public Hearing on the 
Plan and once completed, the UWMP will be formally submitted to DWR for approval. The entire process is anticipated to take 
approximately 120 days. 
  
Fiscal Impact:  
 

Amount Requested  $ N/A 
Sufficient Budgeted Funds Available?:     (If no, see attached fiscal analysis) 

 Prog/Fund #      Category:  Pers.     Optg.     Cap.       -or-   CIP#      Fund# 
 

Previous Relevant Board Actions for This Item 

N/A 
   
Attachments 
 

Draft UWMP 
 

 

AGENDA ITEM: F-1 

Cinderella
Stamp



 
 
 

DRAFT 
2010 URBAN WATER MANAGEMENT PLAN 

 
 
 
 

Town of Discovery Bay Community Services District  
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Prepared with Assistance From 
Luhdorff & Scalmanini Consulting Engineers 

 
 
 
 
 
 

April 6, 2015 

Agenda Item F-1



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Agenda Item F-1



 

Table of Contents 
 

Page 

 
 
Chapter 1 Plan Preparation ........................................................................................ 1-1 
  1.1 Introduction .......................................................................................................... 1-1 
  1.2 Coordination ........................................................................................................ 1-1 
  1.3 Plan Adoption, Submittal and Implementation .................................................... 1-2 
 
 
Chapter 2 System Description ................................................................................... 2-1 

2.1 Description of Service Area and Agency ............................................................. 2-1 
2.2 Water System Description ................................................................................... 2-1 

2.2.1 Water Services ......................................................................................... 2-2 
2.2.2 Water Supply Wells ................................................................................. 2-2 
2.2.3 Water Treatment Plants and Storage........................................................ 2-3 
2.2.4 Water Distribution ................................................................................... 2-3 

2.3 Climate ................................................................................................................. 2-3 
2.4 Service Area Population ...................................................................................... 2-4 

 
 
Chapter 3 System Demand ........................................................................................ 3-1 

3.1 Baseline Daily Per Capita Water Use .................................................................. 3-1 
3.2 Water Use Targets................................................................................................ 3-3 
3.3 Historical Water Deliveries .................................................................................. 3-4 
3.4 Projected Water Deliveries .................................................................................. 3-6 
3.5 Low Income Residential Water Use .................................................................... 3-7 
3.6 Wholesale Water Demand Projections ................................................................ 3-8 
3.7 System Losses and Additional Water Uses ......................................................... 3-8 
3.8 Total Water Use ................................................................................................... 3-9 
3.9 Water Use Reduction Plan ................................................................................. 3-10 

 
 
Chapter 4 System Supplies ........................................................................................ 4-1 

4.1 Water Sources ...................................................................................................... 4-1 
4.2 Groundwater ........................................................................................................ 4-2 

  4.2.1   Geologic Setting and Occurrence of Groundwater ................................... 4-2 
  4.2.2   Hydrogeologic Setting in Discovery Bay ................................................. 4-4 
  4.2.3   Groundwater Conditions ........................................................................... 4-4 
  4.2.4   Well Yield and Aquifer Characteristics .................................................... 4-6 
  4.2.5   Groundwater Basin Yield and Monitoring ............................................... 4-7 

4.3 Transfer Opportunities ......................................................................................... 4-7 
4.4 Desalinated Water Opportunities ......................................................................... 4-7 
4.5 Recycled Water Opportunities ............................................................................. 4-8 

Town of Discovery Bay CSD 
 Table of Contents   2010 Urban Water Management Plan 

ii 

Agenda Item F-1



 

 4.5.1     Wastewater Collection and Treatment System Description ................... 4-8 
 4.5.2     Quantity of Available Treated Wastewater ............................................ 4-9 
 4.5.3     Recycled Water Current and Potential Future Uses ............................... 4-9 
 4.5.4     Methods to Encourage Recycled Water Use ........................................ 4-12 
4.5 Future Water Projects ........................................................................................ 4-13 
 
 

Chapter 5 Water Supply Reliability and Water Shortage Contingency Planning ... 5-1 
  5.1 Water Supply Reliability...................................................................................... 5-1 
  5.2 Water Shortage Contingency Planning ................................................................ 5-1 

 5.2.1     Stages of Action ...................................................................................... 5-2 
 5.2.2     Prohibitions ............................................................................................. 5-3 
 5.2.3     Consumption Reduction Methods........................................................... 5-4 
 5.2.4     Penalties .................................................................................................. 5-4 
 5.2.5     Revenue and Expenditure Impacts During Water Shortages .................. 5-5 
 5.2.6     Other Actions During Catastrophic Reductions ..................................... 5-5 

  5.3 Water Quality Impacts on Water Shortage .......................................................... 5-6 
  5.4 Drought Planning ................................................................................................. 5-7 

 5.4.1     Water Year Types ................................................................................... 5-7 
 5.4.2     Three-Year Minimum Water Supply ...................................................... 5-8 
 5.4.3     Measurement for Determining Actual Consumption Reduction ............ 5-8 
 5.4.4     Water Supply and Demand Assessment ................................................. 5-9 

 
 
Chapter 6 Demand Management Measures .............................................................. 6-1 
  6.1 Overview .............................................................................................................. 6-1 
  6.2 Demand Management Measures Implementation ............................................... 6-1 
 
 
 
Appendices 
 
Appendix A: UWMP Checklist 
 
Appendix B: Notices to Agencies of Public Hearing, and Resolution to Adopt UWMP 
 
Appendix C: Water Conservation Ordinances and Resolutions 
 C.1 – Water Shortage Contingency Resolution 
 C.2 – Resolution 2014-11 – Voluntary Water Reduction 
 C.3 – Ordinance No.25 – Establishing Emergency Drought Regulations 
 

Town of Discovery Bay CSD 
 Table of Contents   2010 Urban Water Management Plan 

iii 

Agenda Item F-1



 

List of Tables 
 

 
Tables 
 
Table 1-1 (DWR Table 1) Coordination with appropriate agencies ............................................ 1-2 
Table 2-1 (DWR Table 2) Population – current and projected .................................................... 2-5 
Table 3-1 (DWR Table 13) Base period ranges ........................................................................... 3-2 
Table 3-2 (DWR Table 14) Base daily per capita water use – 10- to 15-year range ................... 3-2 
Table 3-3 (DWR Table 15) Base daily per capita water use – 5-year range ............................... 3-3 
Table 3-4 Summary of Baseline Water Use and Targets ............................................................. 3-4 
Table 3-5 (DWR Table 3) Water deliveries – actual / estimated, 2005 ....................................... 3-5 
Table 3-6 (DWR Table 4) Water deliveries – actual / estimated, 2010 ....................................... 3-5 
Table 3-7 Water deliveries – actual / estimated, 2013 ................................................................. 3-5 
Table 3-8 (DWR Table 5) Water deliveries – projected, 2015 .................................................... 3-6 
Table 3-9 (DWR Table 6) Water deliveries – projected, 2020 .................................................... 3-7 
Table 3-10 (DWR Table 7) Water deliveries – projected, 2020, 2030, 2035 .............................. 3-7 
Table 3-11 (DWR Table 8) Low-income projected water demands ............................................ 3-8 
Table 3-12 (DWR Table 9) Sales to other water agencies ........................................................... 3-8 
Table 3-13 (DWR Table 10) Additional water uses and losses ................................................... 3-9 
Table 3-14 (DWR Table 11) Total water use .............................................................................. 3-9 
Table 4-1 Groundwater Supply Well Information ....................................................................... 4-1 
Table 4-2 (DWR Table 16) Water supplies – current and projected ........................................... 4-2 
Table 4-3 (DWR Table 18) Groundwater – volume pumped ...................................................... 4-6 
Table 4-4 (DWR Table 19) Groundwater – volume projected to be pumped ............................. 4-7 
Table 4-5 (DWR Table 21) Current and projected wastewater flows ......................................... 4-9 
Table 4-6 (DWR Table 22) Recycled water – non-recycled wastewater disposal ...................... 4-9 
Table 4-7 (DWR Table 23) Recycled water – potential future use ........................................... 4-12 
Table 4-8 (DWR Table 26) Future water supply projects ......................................................... 4-13 
Table 5-1 (DWR Table 35) Water shortage contingency – rationing stages ............................... 5-3 
Table 5-2 (DWR Table 36) Water shortage contingency – mandatory prohibitions ................... 5-3 
Table 5-3 (DWR Table 37) Water shortage contingency – consumption reduction methods ..... 5-4 
Table 5-4 (DWR Table 38) Water shortage contingency – penalties and charges ...................... 5-5 
Table 5-5 (DWR Table 30) water quality impacts ....................................................................... 5-6 
Table 5-6 (DWR Table 27) Basis of water year data ................................................................... 5-7 
Table 5-7 (DWR Table 28) Supply reliability – historic conditions ........................................... 5-8 
Table 5-8 (DWR Table 31) Supply reliability – current water sources ....................................... 5-8 
Table 5-9 (DWR Table 32) Supply and demand comparison, normal year ................................ 5-9 
Table 5-10 (DWR Table 33) Supply and demand comparison, single dry-year events .............. 5-9 
Table 5-11 (DWR Table 34) Supply and demand comparison, multiple dry-year events ........ 5-10 
Table 6-1 Demand Management Measures ................................................................................. 6-2 
 
 
 
 
 

Town of Discovery Bay CSD 
 Table of Contents   2010 Urban Water Management Plan 

iv 

Agenda Item F-1



 

List of Figures 
 

 
Figures 
 
Figure 2-1 Existing Water System and Future Developments 
Figure 2-2 Population Growth 
Figure 4-1 Geologic Cross-Section 
Figure 4-2 Hydrograph of Supply Wells 
Figure 4-3 TDS of Supply Wells 
 

Town of Discovery Bay CSD 
 Table of Contents   2010 Urban Water Management Plan 

v 

Agenda Item F-1



 

List of Abbreviations 
 

 

 

CUWCC  California Urban Water Conservation Council  

CWC  California Water Code  

CDP  census designated place 

DMM  demand management measure 

DWR  Department of Water Resources  

EDU  equivalent dwelling unit 

gpcd  gallons per capita per day  

gpm  gallons per minutes  

gpm/ft  gallons per minute per foot of drawdown 

µS/cm   micro-Siemens per centimeter 

MCL  maximum contaminant level 

MGD  million gallons per day 

MGY   million gallons per year 

MOU  Memorandum of Understanding Regarding Urban Water Conservation in 

California  

NPDES  National Pollutant Discharge Elimination System 

RWQCB  Regional Water Quality Control Board 

SBX7-7 Senate Bill SBX7-7, Water Conservation Bill of 2009 

TDS  total dissolved solids 

TODB  Town of Discovery Bay Community Services District 

UV   ultraviolet 

UWMP Urban Water Management Plan 

WDR  waste discharge requirements 

WTP  water treatment plant 

WWTP  wastewater treatment plant 

WRCC  Western Regional Climate Center

Town of Discovery Bay CSD 
 Table of Contents   2010 Urban Water Management Plan 

vi 

Agenda Item F-1



 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
  

 

Agenda Item F-1



 

Chapter 1  Plan Preparation 
 

 
This chapter introduces the 2010 Urban Water Management Plan for the Town of Discovery Bay 
Community Services District (TODB) and describes the plan preparation process that included 
coordination with the public, plan adoption, submittal and implementation.  
 
1.1 Introduction 
 
Urban Water Management Plans (UWMPs) are State-mandated water supply planning 
documents required by the Department of Water Resources (DWR) to be completed every 5 
years by every urban water supplier that has 3,000 or more service connections or supplying 
3,000 or more acre-feet of water per year. The Town of Discovery Bay Community Services 
District prepared this 2010 UWMP to comply with the UWMP Act (California Water Code 
Section 10610 et seq.) and the Water Conservation Bill of 2009 (SBX7-7). The California 
Department of Water Resources prepared a Guidebook to Assist Urban Water Suppliers to 
Prepare a 2010 Urban water Management Plan (Guidebook), which was utilized to ensure this 
2010 UWMP complies with the state legislative requirements. Appendix A provides a completed 
UWMP Checklist per the Guidebook. 
 
The purpose of the UWMP is to direct long-term resource planning to ensure adequate water 
supplies meet existing and future demands over a 20-year planning horizon and under various 
drought and water shortage scenarios. Furthermore, with goals set forth in the Water 
Conservation Bill of 2009 to reduce urban per-capita water use by 20% by 2020, each urban 
water supplier must include targets for water supply reduction in the 2010 UWMP. Specifically, 
the 2010 UWMP must define the urban water supplier’s base daily per-capita water use and set 
water use targets reduction for 2015 and 2020. The 2010 UWMP must also include an evaluation 
of population growth; water deliveries and uses; water supply sources; efficient water uses, and; 
water demand management measures (DMMs) with implementation strategy and schedule.  
 
The 2010 UWMPs were due July 1, 2011. TODB is submitting this plan retroactively in order 
define its base water use and water use targets to comply with the requirements of the State 
legislature. This 2010 UWMP includes data up to 2013. Finally, as TODB did not submit a 2005 
UWMP, this 2010 UWMP was prepared as a new submittal rather than an update. 
 
1.2 Coordination and Public Hearing 
 
California Water Code (CWC) Section 10620(d)(2) requires the urban water supplier to 
coordinate the preparation of the UWMP with other appropriate agencies in the area to the extent 
practicable. Furthermore, CWC Section 10642 requres the water supplier to make the Plan 

 1-1  Town of Discovery Bay CSD 
2010 Urban Water Management Plan 

Agenda Item F-1



 

available for public inspection and hold a public hearing. The hearing should include specific 
discussion of the plan indicating present and proposed future measures, programs, and policies to 
help achieve the water use reductions and to achieve compliance with both the requirements for 
the public hearing prior adoption and the public discussion on the suppliers per capita water use 
reduction goals.  
 
In accordance with the code requirements, TODB will schedule a public hearing to review, 
consider and changes to, and adopt the 2010 UWMP. At least 60 days prior to the public hearing 
to review and adopt the UWMP, TODB will notify nearby applicable agencies of the intent to 
adopt the 2010 UWMP. 
 
Table 1-1 summarizes the coordination effort involved with preparing the TODB 2010 UWMP 
(as recommended in the DWR Guidelines). 
 

Table 1-1 (DWR Table 1) 

 Coordination with appropriate agencies 

Coordinating Agencies1,2 

Pa
rt

ic
ip

at
ed

 in
 

de
ve

lo
pi

ng
 th

e 
pl

an
 

C
om

m
en

te
d 

on
 

th
e 

dr
af

t 

A
tte

nd
ed

 p
ub

lic
 

m
ee

tin
gs

 

W
as

 c
on

ta
ct

ed
 

fo
r a

ss
is

ta
nc

e 

W
as

 s
en

t a
 c

op
y 

of
 th

e 
dr

af
t p

la
n 

 W
as

 s
en

t a
 

no
tic

e 
of

 
in

te
nt

io
n 

to
 

ad
op

t 

N
ot

 in
vo

lv
ed

 / 
N

o 
in

fo
rm

at
io

n 

Contra Costa Water District         X X   

East Contra Costa Irrigation District         X X   

City of Antioch         X X   

City of Brentwood         X X   

Diablo Water District         X X   

Contra Costa County         X X   

General Public     X   X X   
  

 

1 Indicate the specific name of the agency with which coordination or outreach occurred. 
   
2 Check at least one box in each row. 
   

 
 
1.3 Plan Adoption, Submittal and Implementation Process 
 
The DWR Guidebook includes a description the requirements for public participation and Plan 
adoption. The requirements include the following:  
 

 1-2  Town of Discovery Bay CSD 
2010 Urban Water Management Plan 

Agenda Item F-1



 

• At least 60 days prior to the public hearing, water suppliers must notify any city or 
county within which the supplier provides water supplies that the supplier is in the 
process of preparing their Plan. 

• Water suppliers must encourage the involvement of diverse social, cultural, and 
economic elements of the population within the service area. 

• Water suppliers must make the UWMP available for public inspection prior to adoption. 
Prior to the public hearing, the water supplier must provide public notification of the time 
and place for the hearing. The water supplier must provide such notification in two 
publications in a newspaper published once a week or oftener, with at least five days 
intervening between the respective publication dates. 

• If a water supplier makes changes to the UWMP after plan adoption, the supplier must 
hold another public hearing and have the UWMP readopted. 

• A copy of the UWMP adoption resolution must be included in the UWMP. 

• The water supplier must provide information on how it will implement the UWMP. 

• No later than 30 days after submitting a UWMP to DWR, water suppliers must provide a 
copy of the UWMP to the California State Library and any city or county within which 
the supplier provides water supplies and must make the UWMP available for public 
review during normal business hours 

For this 2010 UWMP, TODB will notify applicable agencies listed in Table 1-1, at least 60 days 
in advance, that a public hearing will be held to review and consider any changes to the draft 
2010 UWMP. TODB intends to adopt the draft 2010 UWMP following the public hearing. The 
final 2010 UWMP will include a copy of the Public Hearing and Board resolution in Appendix B 
(not yet included). 

TODB will post the notice of the public hearing on the TODB homepage on the internet, as well 
as legal public notices in the newspaper. Copies of the draft Plan will be available at the TODB 
offices.  

During the public hearing, TODB will include specific discussions of the plan indicating present 
and proposed future measures, programs, and policies to help achieve the water use reductions 
and publically discuss the per-capita water use reduction goals. At the end of the public hearing, 
TODB will adopt the 2010 UWMP. If any changes are made after the plan is adopted, TODB 
will hold another public meeting. 

Within 30 days after adoption, TODB will send a copy of the 2010 UWMP along with copies of 
any changes or amendments and the signed resolution adopting the 2010 UWMP to DWR, the 
California State Library and Contra Costa County. Within 30 days of submission to DWR, 

 1-3  Town of Discovery Bay CSD 
2010 Urban Water Management Plan 

Agenda Item F-1



 

TODB will make available a copy of the adopted 2010 UWMP for public inspection during 
normal business hours. 

Once the 2010 UWMP is adopted, the Plan will be implemented. In general, the implementation 
of the elements of this Plan involves continued water supply monitoring (groundwater levels and 
quality); monitoring of water demand; enacting water shortage contingency plans when 
necessary in response to water shortages, and; implementing water conservation and tracking 
demand reduction through the strategies and schedules described for DMMs. 

 

 
 
 

 1-4  Town of Discovery Bay CSD 
2010 Urban Water Management Plan 

Agenda Item F-1



 

Chapter 2  System Description 
 

 
2.1 Description of Service Area and Agency 
 
The Town of Discovery Bay is located adjacent to the Sacramento-San Joaquin Delta (Delta) and 
is approximately twenty miles due west of the city of Stockton and six miles southeast of the city 
of Brentwood off State Highway 4. The Town of Discovery Bay is a largely residential 
community with limited commercial development constructed within a network of man-made 
lakes and channels that are connected to the Delta. The levees and waterways of Discovery Bay 
are managed and maintained by Reclamation District 800, the California Department of Boating 
and Waterways, and the US Army Corps of Engineers. The system is defined by relatively flat 
topographies with mean sea level elevations ranging from 5 feet to 15 feet across the entire 
system. 
 
The Town of Discovery Bay is an unincorporated community that operates as a Community 
Services District which is governed by a 5-member elected Board of Directors that was formed 
in 1997. Prior to the formation of the Community Services District, the developments were 
privately owned and the water system was managed by the Sanitation District No. 19. The first 
developments in the Town of Discovery Bay were constructed in the early 1970’s as a resort 
community. The Town has evolved into a year-around community of approximately 15,000 
residents.  
 
The Discovery Bay Community Services District (TODB) serves as Town of Discovery Bay’s 
local government tasked with providing and maintaining the municipal public water (water 
supply, treatment and distribution) and wastewater systems (collection, transmission and 
treatment) to approximately 6,000 homes and businesses. TODB also manages the Town’s 
common landscaping and recreation zones. TODB Board has no land-use or zoning authority; 
however, TODB advises the County of Contra Costa on decisions related to municipal services 
not provided by the TODB.  
 
2.2 Water System Description 
 
TODB public water system derives 100% of its water supply from five active groundwater 
supply wells. A sixth ground water well is currently under construction. Raw water from the 
wells is delivered and treated at two water treatment plants (WTPs), known as Newport WTP 
and the Willow Lake WTP. Storage tanks are located at each plant to provide operational 
equalization and reserves for fire safety. Booster facilities draw upon the storage tanks to provide 
the flow and pressure required in the interconnected distribution system. Each water treatment 
plant is equipped with standby generators to operate the facilities in the event of prolonged 

 2-1  Town of Discovery Bay CSD 
2010 Urban Water Management Plan 

Agenda Item F-1



 

power outages. The distribution system consists of a network of piping that varies in material, 
age and sizes ranging in diameter from 6-inch through 20-inch. The system operates as one 
pressure zone.  
 
Figure 2-1 provides a map of the water system including service area boundary, water supply 
sources, water treatment plants and distribution piping. Details of the water system are discussed 
below. 
 
2.2.1 Water Services 
 
Discovery Bay is predominately a residential community, with some commercial, institutional 
and irrigation water uses. There is no industrial water use. Through 2013, TODB serves potable 
drinking water to approximately 15,000 people via approximately 5,842 service connections. Of 
those, 5,683 are residential services, 28 are commercial and institutional, and 98 are landscape 
irrigation (e.g. parks, greenbelts, etc.) and 33 designated as “other”. The “other” services are for 
drip systems along sidewalks and driveways to control soil moisture and the shrinkage and 
swelling of clay soils. 
 
TODB prepared a 2010 Water Master Plan1 that covered a ten year planning horizon. It was 
assumed that growth in that period would be driven by housing development plans from local 
developers. There was also minor infill of vacant undeveloped lots within existing 
neighborhoods. TODB defined the areas of growth and provided the estimated schedule for 
completion based on input from the developers. The future developments would build-out the 
existing service area boundary with some growth planned to occur outside the existing service 
area boundary. 
 
The 2010 Water Master Plan projected a growth of 1,385 service connections by the year 2020. 
In preparing this UWMP, TODB provided updates to the historical number of service 
connections reported in the 2010 Water Master Plan. Based on those updates, TODB had a total 
of 5,842 service connections in 2010, and will have 7,230 service connections at the projected 
build-out by 2020.  
 
2.2.2 Water Supply Wells 
 
The five active groundwater supply wells deliver groundwater to the treatment plants through 
dedicated raw water pipelines (Wells 1B, 2, 4A, 5A and 6). Wells 1B, 2 and 6 deliver water to 
Willow Lake WTP, and Wells 4A and 5A deliver water to the Newport WTP. Well 2 is the 
oldest active well, constructed in 1971. Wells 1B, 4A and 5A were constructed between 1991 

1 2012, Luhdorff & Scalmanini Consulting Engineers, Discovery Bay 2010 Water Master Plan 

 2-2  Town of Discovery Bay CSD 
2010 Urban Water Management Plan 

                                                 

Agenda Item F-1



 

and 1996. Well 6 is the newest well, constructed in 2009. A sixth well (Well 7) will be brought 
online in 2015. 
 
The capacity of all existing wells combined is approximately 7,900 gallons per minute (gpm). 
After Well 7 is brought online, the combined well capacity will be approximately 9,900 gpm. As 
presented in the 2010 Water Master Plan, Well 7 is being constructed per TODB’s Capital 
Improvement Plan as a backup supply well to meet current and future water demands with the 
largest producing supply well offline.  
 
2.2.3 Water Treatment Plants and Storage 
 
In the early 2000s, TODB constructed two centralized water treatment facilities for removal of 
iron and manganese in the groundwater. The facilities are known as the Willow Lake Water 
Treatment Plant (WTP) and Newport WTP. The treatment process is the same at both plants. 
Raw water is chemically oxidized and filtered through manganese-greens and media filters, and 
treated water stored in onsite reservoirs. Booster pumping stations draw from the reservoirs to 
maintain a pressurized water distribution system. Each treatment plant is equipped with a 750-
kilowatt, diesel-powered backup generator, which can provide power to the entire treatment plant 
in the event of power outages.  
 
The combined treatment capacity of both water treatment plants is 6,550 gpm. The combined 
storage capacity of the system is 2 million gallons. A new 850 gpm filter will be added to the 
Willow Lake WTP and an additional 0.275 million gallons will be added at Newport WTP per 
TODB’s Capital Improvement Plan in order to meet water demands projected to 2020.  
 
2.2.4 Water Distribution 
 
The distribution system has approximately 46 miles of mainline piping ranging in size from 6-
inch to 16-inch. A majority of the system is 8-inch pipe, with 12-inch and 16-inch arterial mains. 
The system contains approximately 18 miles of asbestos cement (AC) pipe, 28 miles of PVC 
pipe, and about 1 mile of cast iron and ductile iron pipe. The 2010 Water Master Plan indicated 
that future subdivisions would add approximately 6.5 miles of pipeline to the system.  
 
2.3 Climate 
 
The climate in Discovery Bay consists of cool and humid winters and hot and dry summers, 
characteristic of the areas surrounding the Sacramento-San Joaquin River Delta. Though climate 
data is not recorded in Discovery Bay, historic climate data sets are available for nearby cities. 
The City of Antioch, located approximately 20 miles northwest of Discovery Bay, has 

 2-3  Town of Discovery Bay CSD 
2010 Urban Water Management Plan 

Agenda Item F-1



 

temperature records from 1955 on the Western Regional Climate Center (WRCC)2 website. 
Average temperatures range from 37 to 91 oF, but the extreme low and high temperatures have 
been 18 and 117 oF, respectively. The rainy season typically starts in November and ends in 
March, with some rain events occurring as early as September or as late as May. During the 
rainy season, average monthly precipitation is about 2 to 3 inches, and monthly precipitation has 
ranged from 0 to 9 inches. Average annual precipitation is 13 inches, and a maximum of 28 
inches. 
 
High water demand for TODB is correlated with the hot and dry summers. Private landscape 
irrigation, including lawn irrigation, is a significant component of the higher summer water 
demands. Additionally, there is an unquantified vacation and tourist population that rises during 
the summer for recreation. Water demands are lowest during the winter months.     
 
2.4 Service Area Population 
 
The service area population methods presented in the DWR Guidelines3 were applied to estimate 
TODB’s service area population. The service area population estimates below are also used in 
calculating the baseline per capita water use (see Chapter 3).  
 
In accordance with DWR Guidelines, the U.S. Census Bureau data was used as the basis for 
population estimates. The U.S. Census Bureau has identified Discovery Bay as a “census 
designated place” (CDP), which is a designation for populated areas that resemble incorporated 
places but are not incorporated under the laws of the state. The Census Block Map for Discovery 
Bay CDP overlaps the TODB Service Area Boundary. Accordingly, TODB falls into Category 1 
of the DWR Guidelines, where the actual distribution area overlaps more than 95-percent with 
the Census Block Map estimates for the community. Therefore, the U.S. Census data for 
Discovery Bay CDP is directly used to determine service area population of TODB during 
baseline compliance years. 
 
In 2000, the population reported by the U.S. Census Bureau4 was 8,981, and in 2010 the reported 
population was 13,352. This equates to an average growth rate of approximately 5-percent per 
year in that 10-year period. The total water service connections for 2000 and 2010 were 
approximately 4,100 and 5,842 respectively. This results in a persons-per-connection ratio of 
2.19 and 2.29 for 2000 and 2010 census data, respectively, or an average of 2.24 persons-per-
connection.  

2 Western Regional Climate Center website, Cooperative Climatological Data Summaries, NOAA Cooperative 
Stations, Antioch Pump Plant 3, California: http://www.wrcc.dri.edu/cgi-bin/cliMAIN.pl?ca0232  
3 2011, Guidebook to Assist Urban Water Suppliers to Prepare a 2010 Urban Water Management Plan, Department 
of Water Resources 
4 2000 and 2010 Census, U.S. Census Bureau website, Discovery Bay CDP: 
http://quickfacts.census.gov/qfd/states/06/0619339.html 

 2-4  Town of Discovery Bay CSD 
2010 Urban Water Management Plan 

                                                 

Agenda Item F-1

http://www.wrcc.dri.edu/cgi-bin/cliMAIN.pl?ca0232
http://quickfacts.census.gov/qfd/states/06/0619339.html


 

TODB has historically conducted growth and planning studies based on increases in water 
service connections for proposed developments. The 2010 Water Master Plan identified a build-
out of the existing service area by 2020 with a total of 7,230 service connections. Using the 
average ratio of 2.24 persons-per-connection, this correlates to an estimated population of 16,180 
people by 2020. This indicates that from 2010 to 2020 the estimated average growth rate will be 
approximately 2-percent per year. 
 
The planned future developments identified in the 2020 build-out are ones that have taken 
significant steps in the local planning and environmental review process and the schedule for 
those developments has been defined. Furthermore, the permitting process and environmental 
documentation for some of the developments have taken up to 10 years to complete.  
  
Local considerations were made to assess growth beyond the 2020 build-out. There are other 
potential developable lands surrounding the TODB that developers have shown interest in 
pursuing. The County of Contra Costa General Plan5 has identified a need for additional housing 
in the unincorporated areas of East Contra Costa County. However, the only available lands are 
in ecologically sensitive areas (e.g., in several feet of peat, marinas, and waterways). Based on 
the time it has taken current developments to undergo environmental, permitting and public 
review, and based on economic considerations, TODB forecasts that any additional new but yet 
to be permitted developments pursued beyond 2020 would not result in new housing being 
occupied until 2030 at the earliest.  
 
Accordingly, the population estimates in this plan forecast a lull between 2020 and 2030, to 
account for the planning time required for any future developments. Beginning in 2030 it is 
assumed that future housing projects will have been completed, and service area population will 
continue to grow at the historic average annual growth rate of 3.3-percent for TODB.  
 
The population growth of TODB to 2035 is shown in Figure 2-2 (see end of chapter) and in 
Table 2-1, below.  
 

Table 2-1 (DWR Table 2) 

 Population — current and projected 

  2010 2013 2015 2020 2025 2030 2035  Data source 

Service area population1 13,352 13,575 14,930 16,180 16,180 16,180 19,000 See Note 2 

    
1 Service area population is defined as the population served by the distribution system.   
2 U.S. Census Bureau 2000 and 2010, and TODB service connection estimates  

5 2013, Contra Costa County General Plan 2020 Update 

 2-5  Town of Discovery Bay CSD 
2010 Urban Water Management Plan 

                                                 

Agenda Item F-1



APN 011 170

APN 011 160

APN 011 150

APN 015 150

APN 015 140 APN 015 170 APN 015 180

APN 015 200

APN 011 230

B A L F O U R R O A D

B
I X

L
E

R
R

O
A

D

P O I N T O F T I M B E R R O A D

O R W O O D R O A D

O R W O O D R O A D

APN 011 230

D
R

E
D

G
E

R
C

U
T

D R E D G E R C U T

I N D I A N
S L O U G H

W

VILLAGE IV

VILLAGE III

VILLAGE II

RAVENSWOODVILLAGE I

CENTEX

NEWPORT POINT
FUTURE

DEVELOPMENT

BYRON 78
FUTURE

DEVELOPMENT

VILLAGE V
FUTURE

DEVELOPEMENT

PANTAGES
FUTURE

DEVELOPEMENT

OLD RIVER
ELEMENTARY SCHOOL

EVANS
FUTURE
DEVELOPEMENT

(FUTURE
DEVELOPEMENT)

WELL
1B

WILLOW LAKE
WTP &
WELL 6

WELL
2

NEWPORT DRIVE
WTP &

WELL 4A

WELL
5B

EXISTING
SERVICE AREA
BOUNDARY
(PER CONTRA COSTA COUNTY GIS)

NOTES:

STATE HIGHWAY 4

LOCATION MAP

Agenda Item F-1



0

2,000

4,000

6,000

8,000

10,000

12,000

14,000

16,000

18,000

20,000

22,000

24,000

1980 1985 1990 1995 2000 2005 2010 2015 2020 2025 2030 2035 2040

Po
pu

la
tio

n 

Year 

Historic Population Growth Projected Population Growth

Figure 2-2 
Population Growth 
Discovery Bay CSD 

2000  
US CENSUS 

2010  
US CENSUS 

5% per Year  
Growth 

2020 
WMP 

Actual Population Growth 
(correlated with Service Accounts) 

2% per Year  
Growth 

Projected 
Growth  

(based on 
known 

developments) 

No Projected Growth 
2020-2030 

(based on local 
considerations, see text) 

 

Projected Growth  
(assumed 3.3% average 

growth) 

Agenda Item F-1



 

Chapter 3  System Demands 
 

 
Chapter 3 provides the baseline water use, water reduction goals, and projected water use in 
accordance with the UWMP Act and the Water Conservation Bill of 2009 (SBX7-7). 
 
3.1 Baseline Daily Per Capita Water Use  
 
As stated in the Water Conservation Bill of 2009, Senate Bill SBX7-7 (SBX7-7), an urban retail 
water supplier shall include in its 2010 Urban Water Management Plan the baseline daily per 
capita water use, urban water use target, interim urban water use target, and compliance daily per 
capita water use. The plan should include the basis for determining those estimates and 
references to supporting data.  
 
Baseline water use and targets were determined using Methodologies for Calculating Baseline 
and Compliance Urban Per Capita Water Use6, developed by DWR for consistent 
implementation of SBX7-7. The baseline and target water use presented in this chapter were 
developed individually by TODB, not regionally with other agencies. 
 
The baseline daily per-capita water use (i.e. baseline water use) serves as the basis for setting the 
target water use reduction goals by 2015 and 2020. To establish baseline water use, water 
suppliers must define a 10 year or 15 year base (i.e., baseline) period for water use. The 15-year 
baseline period applies to a water supplier that met at least 10 percent of its 2008 retail water 
demand through recycled water, which TODB did not and therefore a 10-year base applies to 
TODB. Table 3-1, below, summarizes the baseline periods for TODB. 
 
Calculation of the baseline water use is based on the estimated service area population and the 
gross water use for each year in the base period. Chapter 2 provided estimates of the service area 
population. Gross water use was identified using TODB production records from its water 
production facilities. The water system, as described in Chapter 2, consists of two central water 
treatment plants that receive raw water from groundwater supply wells. The system does not 
have imported water nor does it provide wholesale water. Historically, the system has not used 
recycled water; however, a recent project will be adding recycled water use into the system for 
industrial purposes. Therefore, historical records of water production from the water treatment 
plants represent the gross water use of the system.  
 
 
 

6 February 2011, Methodologies for Calculating Baseline and Compliance Urban Per Capita Water Use, California 
Department of Water Resources 

 3-1  Town of Discovery Bay CSD 
2010 Urban Water Management Plan 

                                                 

Agenda Item F-1



 

Table 3-1 (DWR Table 13) 

Base period ranges 
Base Parameter Value Units 

10- to 15-year base period 

2008 total water deliveries 1,328 MGY 
2008 total volume of delivered recycled water 0 MGY 
2008 recycled water as a percent of total deliveries  0 percent 
Number of years in base period1 10 years 
Year beginning base period range 2001   
Year ending base period range2 2010   

5-year base period 
Number of years in base period 5 years 
Year beginning base period range 2003   
Year ending base period range3 2007   

  
1If the 2008 recycled water percent is less than 10 percent, then the first base period is a continuous 10-year period.  If the amount of recycled 
water delivered in 2008 is 10 percent or greater, the first base period is a continuous 10- to 15-year period. 
2The ending year must be between December 31, 2004 and December 31, 2010. 
2The ending year must be between December 31, 2007 and December 31, 2010. 

 
 
The historical records of gross water use and service area population are shown in Table 3-2. The 
daily per-capita water use is calculated for each baseline year. The baseline daily per capita water 
use was calculated using the average of the per-capita water use for each baseline year, and is 
approximately 261 gallons per capita per day (gpcd). Table 3-2, below, summarizes the service 
area population, gross water use, the calculated daily per capita water use for each baseline year, 
and the baseline daily per capita water use. Units are expressed in million gallons per day (mgd) 
and gallons per capita per day (gpcd). 

 
Table 3-2 (DWR Table 14) 

Base daily per capita water use — 10- to 15-year range 

Base period year Distribution 
System 

Population 

Daily system 
gross water 
use (mgd) 

Annual daily 
per capita 
water use 

(gpcd) Sequence 
Year 

Calendar 
Year 

Year 1 2001 9,594 2.2411 234 
Year 2 2002 9,594 2.3315 243 
Year 3 2003 9,447 2.5233 267 
Year 4 2004 11,125 2.8356 255 
Year 5 2005 12,034 3.2986 274 
Year 6 2006 13,106 3.2466 248 
Year 7 2007 13,110 3.6219 276 
Year 8 2008 13,164 3.6384 276 
Year 9 2009 13,155 3.5123 267 

Year 10 2010 13,352 3.5790 268 
Baseline Daily Per Capita Water Use1 261 

          
 

 3-2  Town of Discovery Bay CSD 
2010 Urban Water Management Plan 

Agenda Item F-1



 

3.2 Water Use Targets 
 
Each water supplier must establish a water use reduction target for 2020, referred to as the urban 
water use target. There are four methods available to water suppliers for determining the urban 
water use target.  
 

• Method 1: 80% pf Baseline Daily Per Capita Water Use 
• Method 2: Performance Standards 
• Method 3: 95% of Regional Target 
• Method 4: Water Savings (provisional)  

 
Due to lower regional targets, and predominant residential uses in TODB, Method 1 was selected 
as the most appropriate. The target is set equal to 80-percent of the baseline water use. Using this 
method, the urban water use target is 209 gpcd by the year 2020 (i.e., a 20-percent reduction in 
10 years). 
 
In accordance with SBX7-7, water suppliers must confirm that the 2020 water use target meets 
the legislation’s minimum water use reduction requirements by comparing the water use target 
determined above (209 gpcd) to the calculated water use for a 5-year baseline period, determined 
as follows. Table 3-3, below, summarizes the daily per-capita water use in the 5-year base 
period. Following the DWR guidelines, the minimum required reduction in water use is 
calculated as 95-percent of the 5-year base water use, which is approximately 251 gpcd.  The 
water use target (209 gpcd) is less than the minimum required (251 gpcd), and therefore no 
adjustment is needed to the water use target.  
 
 

Table 3-3 (DWR Table 15) 

Base daily per capita water use — 5-year range 
Base period year Distribution 

System 
Population 

Daily system 
gross water 
use (mgd) 

Annual daily 
per capita 
water use 

(gpcd) 

Sequence 
Year 

Calendar 
Year 

Year 1 2003 9,447 2.5233 267 
Year 2 2004 11,125 2.8356 255 
Year 3 2005 12,034 3.2986 274 
Year 4 2006 13,106 3.2466 248 
Year 5 2007 13,110 3.6219 276 

Baseline Daily Per Capita Water Use1 264 
          
1Add the values in the column and divide by the number of rows.   

 
 

 3-3  Town of Discovery Bay CSD 
2010 Urban Water Management Plan 

Agenda Item F-1



 

Finally, water suppliers must set an interim water use target to achieve by 2015, which will be 
reported and verified in the 2015 UWMP. The interim water use target is used to demonstrate 
progress being made toward achieving water reduction goals. The interim water use target by 
2015 is calculated as the average of the baseline water use and the water use target, which is 
approximately 235 gpcd.  Table 3-4 summarizes the DBCD baseline water use, water use target 
and interim water use target. 

 
Table 3-4: Summary of Baseline Water Use and Targets 

Water Use Baseline and Targets Baseline 
(2000-2010) 

Interim Water 
Use Target 

(2015) 
Water Use Target 

(2020) 

Daily Per Capita Water Use (gpcd) 261 235 209 

 
 
3.3 Historical Water Deliveries 
 
In preparing a UWMP, water suppliers must quantify, to the extent records are available, past 
and current water use and projected water use, identifying the uses among water use sectors. 
There are three main sources of data that were used to identify the water use in each sector for 
TODB. The first source is annual reporting by TODB to DWR and CDPH. The second source is 
the TODB 2010 Water Master Plan. The third source is recent updates from TODB, which, in 
preparation of this document, provided corrections to the number of service connections reported 
in the 2010 Water Master Plan. The data reported in this 2010 UWMP also include the most 
recent year of data (2013) so that the document is “current” with the date of submittal.  
 
Tables 3-5, 3-6 and 3-7 below provide the estimated number of service connections and water 
use in each sector for the years 2005, 2010 and 2013. The deliveries in each year are broken into 
metered and non-metered. TODB categorizes customer sectors as follows: single family 
residential, multi-family residential, commercial/institutional, landscape, and other. Water 
deliveries estimated to these services does not account for water losses, which are discussed in 
Section 3.7.  
 
Ninety eight percent of all services in the TODB system are residential. In 2005, a majority of 
the system was non-metered and residents were billed on a flat-rate system. TODB started 
adding customer meters on residential services in 2008. As of 2009, approximately 30-percent of 
all residential services were metered. TODB intends to become fully metered by the conclusion 
of Fiscal 2017-18 in order to provide the basic tool for tracking water demand and demand 
management effectiveness, and also to comply with State requirements to be fully metered not 
later than January 1, 2025. 
 

 3-4  Town of Discovery Bay CSD 
2010 Urban Water Management Plan 

Agenda Item F-1



 

For the purposes of reporting non-metered water deliveries, estimates were based off of metered 
customer water use for each customer sector. The water deliveries do not account for water 
system losses and other water uses, which are provided in Table 3-13 and include a significant 
potable water use at the wastewater treatment plant (WWTP). Tables 3-5, 3-6 and 3-7 provide 
estimates of the metered and non-metered water deliveries for years 2005, 2010 and 2013, 
respectively. 
 

Table 3-5 (DWR Table 3) 

Water deliveries — actual / estimated, 2005 

  
2005 

Metered Not metered Total 

 Water use sectors # of 
accounts 

Volume 
(MGY) 

# of 
accounts 

Volume 
(MGY) 

Volume (MGY) 

Single family 0 0 5,300 910 910 
Multi-family 0 0 0 0 0 
Commercial Institutional 14 9 10 7 16 
Landscape 29 91 17 53 145 
Other 7 0 0 0 0 

 Total 50 100 5,327 970 1,070 
  

 
Table 3-6 (DWR Table 4) 

Water deliveries — actual / estimated, 2010 

  
2010 

Metered Not metered Total 

 Water use sectors # of 
accounts 

Volume 
(MGY) 

# of 
accounts 

Volume 
(MGY) Volume (MGY) 

Single family 1,878 312 3,580 615 927 
Multi-family 0 0 224 29 29 
Commercial Institutional 30 21 3 2 23 
Landscape 72 103 24 34 138 
Other 8 1 62 7 8 

 Total 1,988 437 3,893 687 1,124 
  

 
Table 3-7 

Water deliveries — actual / estimated, 2013 

  
2013 

Metered Not metered Total 

 Water use sectors # of 
accounts 

Volume 
(MGY) 

# of 
accounts 

Volume 
(MGY) 

Volume (MGY) 

Single family 1,978 342 3,481 598 940 
Multi-family 0 0 224 29 29 
Commercial Institutional 25 33 3 4 37 
Landscape 87 152 11 19 171 
Other 14 0 19 0 0 

 Total 2,104 526 3,738 650 1,176 

 3-5  Town of Discovery Bay CSD 
2010 Urban Water Management Plan 

Agenda Item F-1



 

3.4 Projected Water Deliveries 
 
The projected water deliveries provided in this section are based on population estimates (Table 
2-1) and the objective to meet per-capita water use targets for 2015 and 2020 (Table 3-4). The 
deliveries plus the system losses (discussed in Section 3.7) make the total projected gross water 
use.  
 
From 2010 to 2015, the population is projected to increase by approximately 12-percent. This 
was correlated by an increase in services connections by 2015. Water deliveries are projected to 
increase by approximately 4-percent from 2010 to 2015. TODB projects reductions in per capita 
water use through previous and ongoing water conservation efforts. In addition, TODB will be 
completing a recycled water project in early 2015 at the WWTP that will offset approximately 28 
MGY of potable water use, which are currently categorized as system losses (discussed further 
below in Section 3.7 System Losses and Additional Water Uses). The combination of water 
conservations (discussed in Chapter 6) and the WWTP recycled water project (discussed in 
Chapter 4) will enable TODB to meet the interim per-capita water use target by 2015 of 235 
gpcd.  
 
Table 3-8 provides the projected water deliveries in 2015. 
 

Table 3-8 (DWR Table 5) 

Water deliveries — projected, 2015 

  
2015 

Metered Not metered Total 

 Water use sectors # of 
accounts 

Volume 
(MGY) 

# of 
accounts 

Volume 
(MGY) Volume (MGY) 

Single family 2,789 424 3,481 529 953 
Multi-family 0 0 224 25 25 
Commercial Institutional 40 32 3 2 35 
Landscape 89 135 11 17 151 
Other 14 1 19 2 3 

 Total 2,932 592 3,738 575 1,167 
  

 
 
Table 3-9 provides the projected water deliveries in the year 2020. From 2015 to 2020 the 
population is estimated to increase by approximately 8-percent. This was correlated by an 
increase in services connections by 2020. In contrast, water deliveries from 2015 to 2020 are 
projected to decrease slightly (by less than 1-percent). The water reductions are based on water 
conservation measures (discussed in Chapter 6) that will be implemented. The largest reductions 
are anticipated to come from retrofitting meters on all un-metered services, establishing 
conservation pricing, and reducing pipeline leakage by replacing water mains.  
 

 3-6  Town of Discovery Bay CSD 
2010 Urban Water Management Plan 

Agenda Item F-1



 

 
Table 3-9 (DWR Table 6) 

Water deliveries — projected, 2020 

  
2020 

Metered Not metered Total 

 Water use sectors # of 
accounts 

Volume 
(MGY) 

# of 
accounts 

Volume 
(MGY) 

Volume (MGY) 

Single family 6,814 947 0 0 947 
Multi-family 224 23 0 0 23 
Commercial Institutional 58 47 0 0 47 
Landscape 101 145 0 0 145 
Other 33 3 0 0 3 

 Total 7,230 1,164 0 0 1,164 
            

 
 
 
Table 3-10 provides the projected water deliveries for the years 2025, 2030 and 2035. Water 
services are projected based on the project population beyond 2020. As discussed in Chapter 2, 
no growth is anticipated to occur between 2020 and 2030 based on local environmental and 
permitting considerations.  The combination of water deliveries and water losses (i.e. gross water 
use) beyond 2020 are anticipated to meet the per-capita water use target of 209 gpcd. 
 

Table 3-10 (DWR Table 7) 

Water deliveries — projected 2025, 2030, and 2035 

  
2025 2030 2035 

metered metered metered 

 Water use sectors # of 
accounts 

Volume 
(MGY) 

# of 
accounts 

Volume 
(MGY) 

# of 
accounts 

Volume 
(MGY) 

Single family 6,814 947 6,814 947 7,910 1,099 
Multi-family 224 23 224 23 350 37 
Commercial Institutional 58 47 58 47 72 58 
Landscape 101 145 101 145 120 172 
Other 33 3 33 3 33 3 

 Total 7,230 1,164 7,230 1,164 8,485 1,368 
  

 
 
 
3.5 Low-Income Residential Water Use  
 
Water suppliers must include in the UWMP an estimate of projected water use for lower income 
households as defined in Section 50079.5 of the Health and Safety Code. The estimate must be 
based on the housing element needs identified in the general plan for the water supplier’s service 
area. TODB does not have direct information pertaining to lower income households served, or 

 3-7  Town of Discovery Bay CSD 
2010 Urban Water Management Plan 

Agenda Item F-1



 

planned to be served in future developments in the service area. The Contra Costa County 
General Plan identified low-income housing needs in designated locations in the County; 
however, those needs were not designated specifically in Discovery Bay. The 2010 US Census 
reports that 6.3-percent of the population in Discovery Bay is below the poverty. For the 
purposes of the UWMP, projected water deliveries to low-income households is assumed to be 
6.3-percent of total water deliveries. 
 

Table 3-11 (DWR Table 8) 

Low-income projected water demands 
Low Income Water Demands 2015 2020 2025 2030 2035 

Single-family residential 60 60 60 60 69 
Multi-family residential 2 1 1 1 2 

Total 62 61 61 61 72 
  

 
 
 
3.6 Wholesale Water Demand Projections 
 
TODB does not provide wholesale water to other agencies, and does not anticipate wholesale 
water sales in the future. 
 

Table 3-12 (DWR Table 9) 

 Sales to other water agencies 
 Water distributed 2005 2010 2013 2015 2020 2025 2030 2035 

N/A 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 
Total 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 

                    
 
 
 
3.7 System Losses and Additional Water Uses 
 
Additional water uses are presented in Table 3-13. The two additional water uses not shown in 
Tables 3-5 through 3-10 are: 1) potable water uses at the wastewater treatment plant (WWTP); 
and, 2) unaccounted system losses (e.g. pipeline leakage, hydrant flushing and WWTP). The 
water system production is equal to the sum of the water deliveries (Tables 3-5 through 3-10) 
and the additional water losses.  
 
The WWTP is estimated to use approximately 28 MGY of potable water in wastewater treatment 
processes. This is part of the baseline water use. TODB is constructing a recycled water project 
at the WWTP that will eliminate the need for potable water. The project will be completed in 

 3-8  Town of Discovery Bay CSD 
2010 Urban Water Management Plan 

Agenda Item F-1



 

early 2015 and will result in a savings in water production and reduction of the per-capita water 
use by the system. 
 
Other unaccounted system losses are attributed to flushing programs, pipe breaks and pipe 
leakage. System losses are estimated to range from 7-12% of total production. TODB is 
preparing to make water main upgrades and enhance the capabilities of leak detection and repair, 
which will reduce water losses based upon the quantity and age of pipe planned to be replaced.  
 
 
 

Table 3-13 (DWR Table 10) 

 Additional water uses and losses 
 Water use1 2005 2010 2013 2015 2020 2025 2030 2035 

Saline barriers 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 
Groundwater recharge 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 
Conjunctive use 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 
Raw water 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 
WWTP water use 

 28 28 28 0 0 0 0 0 
Recycled water (WWTP use) 0 0 0 28 28 28 28 28 
System losses 106 154 99 109 66 66 66 77 

 Total 134 182 127 137 94 94 94 105 
  

1Any water accounted for in Tables 3-5 through 3-10 are not included in this table. 

 
 
3.8 Total Water Use 
 
Total water use is the sum of water deliveries to each customer category, WWTP water use, and 
future recycled water use at the WWTP and water system losses. Table 3-14 provides total water 
use. 
 

Table 3-14 (DWR Table 11) 

Total water use 
 Water Use 2005 2010 2013 2015 2020 2025 2030 2035 

Total water deliveries (from 
Tables 3-5 to 3-10) 1,070 1,124 1,176 1,167 1,164 1,164 1,164 1,368 

Sales to other water agencies 
(from Table 3-12) 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 

Additional water uses and 
losses (from Table 3-13) 134 182 127 137 94 94 94 105 

Total 1,204 1,306 1,303 1,304 1,258 1,258 1,258 1,473 
                    

 
 
 

 3-9  Town of Discovery Bay CSD 
2010 Urban Water Management Plan 

Agenda Item F-1



 

3.9 Water Use Reduction Plan 
 
TODB is not an urban wholesale water supplier. Therefore, it is not required to provide an 
assessment of present and proposed future measures, programs, and policies to help achieve the 
water use reductions in wholesale water.  
 
TODB implements water conservation management tools to maximize water resources. See 
Chapter 6 for information on water reduction plan for TODB as a retail water supplier. 
 
 
 

 3-10  Town of Discovery Bay CSD 
2010 Urban Water Management Plan 

Agenda Item F-1



 

Chapter 4  System Supplies 
 

 
Chapter 4 describes TODB water supplies with descriptions of water sources, limitations, water 
quality and potential opportunities for recycled water.  
 
4.1 Water Sources 
 
TODB’s water supply is provided from a series of five production wells. Groundwater pumped 
from the wells occurs in the Tracy Subbasin of the greater San Joaquin Valley Groundwater 
Basin. The groundwater basin is not adjudicated and DWR has not identified or projected the 
basin to be in overdraft. TODB has no other current sources of water or any surface water rights.  
 
TODB maintains well facilities based on meeting the maximum day demand of its system with 
the largest well source offline, in accordance with State of California Code of Regulations, Title 
22 California Waterworks Standards. TODB is in the process of constructing a new water supply 
well (Well #7) to provide redundant backup supplies to meet current and future maximum day 
demands with the largest well out-of-service.  
 
Table 4-1, below, presents the existing production well information: 
 
 

Table 4-1 
Groundwater Supply Well Information 

 
 Well 1B Well 2 Well 4A Well 5A Well 6 
WELL INFO      
Drilling Date 1995 1971 1996 1991 2009 
Well Diameter (inch) 16” 12” 16” 16” 18” 
Well Depth (ft) 350’ 348’ 357’ 357’ 360’ 
Top Screen Interval 271’/289’ 245’/335’ 307’/347’ 261’/291’ 270’/295’ 
24-hr Specific Capacity  10 gpm/ft 11 gpm/ft 23 gpm/ft 21 gpm/ft 28 gpm/ft 
PUMP INFO      
Pump Type  Submersible Oil Lube Submersible Water Lube Submersible 
Installation Date 2003 2003 2001 2004 2010 
Pump Setting Depth (ft) 260’ 220’ 180’ 240’ 250’ 
Column Diameter (inch) 12” 8” 12” 10” 12” 
Bowl Manufacturer Byron Jackson Goulds Flowserve Floway Flowserve 
Impeller Model 13MQH 11CHC 13MQH 14DKH 14EMM 
Number of Stages 3 4 3 3 3 
Motor Horsepower 150 HP 100 HP 150 HP 200 HP 150 HP 
Well Control Willow Tanks Willow Tank Newport Tanks Newport Tanks Willow Tanks 
Capacity  1,500 gpm 800 gpm 1,800 gpm 1,800 gpm 2,200 gpm 
 

 4-1  Town of Discovery Bay CSD 
2010 Urban Water Management Plan 

Agenda Item F-1



 

TODB’s projected water supplies are summarized in Table 4-2 and are discussed in more detail 
within this chapter. There is no wholesale water, surface water, exchanges, or desalinated water 
projected as future TODB supply sources. Projections of recycled water use are based on 
potential projects discussed in Section 4.5. 
 

Table 4-2 (DWR Table 16) 

Water supplies — current and projected (MGY) 
 Water Supply Sources 2010 2013 2015 2020 2025 2030 2035 

Supplier-produced groundwater 1,306  1,303  1,276  1,230  1,230  1,230  1,445  
Supplier-produced surface water 0  0  0  0  0  0  0  
Transfers in 0  0  0  0  0  0  0  
Exchanges In 0  0  0  0  0  0  0  
Recycled Water   0  0  28  28  28  28  28  
Desalinated Water 0  0  0  0  0  0  0  

Total 1,306  1,303  1,304  1,258  1,258  1,258  1,473  
                    

 
 
4.2 Groundwater 

 
4.2.1 Geologic Setting and Occurrence of Groundwater 

 
Discovery Bay is located in eastern Contra Costa County in the northwestern San Joaquin River 
Valley portion of the Great Valley geomorphic province of California. The province is 
characterized by the low relief valley of the north-flowing San Joaquin River and the south-
flowing Sacramento River, which merge in the Delta region just north of the community draining 
westward to the Pacific Ocean. 
 
To the west of Discovery Bay, the Coast Range province consists of low mountains of highly 
deformed Mesozoic and Cenozoic marine sedimentary rocks. These thick marine rocks extend 
eastward below the Great Valley where they are the targets for gas exploration.  
Overlying the marine rocks is a sequence of late Cenozoic (Miocene, Pliocene, and Pleistocene) 
non-marine sedimentary deposits. Small areas of surface exposures of these deposits occur along 
the edge of the Coastal Range. These beds dip moderately to the east and extend below the San 
Joaquin Valley. In the subsurface, the nature of these deposits is poorly known, but they are 
believed to be dominated by fine-grained clays, silts, and mudstones with few sand beds. The 
lower portion of these deposits may be in part equivalent to the Miocene-Pliocene Mehrten 
Formation along the east side of the Great Valley. The Upper portion of Pliocene and Pleistocene 
age may be equivalent to the Tulare Formation along the west side of the San Joaquin Valley to 
the south, and the Tehama Formation of the Sacramento Valley to the north. It is believed these 
deposits extend from about 400 feet to 1,500-2,000 feet below the San Joaquin River. Water 
quality from electric logs is difficult to interpret, but the quality appears to become brackish to 
saline with depth. 

 4-2  Town of Discovery Bay CSD 
2010 Urban Water Management Plan 

Agenda Item F-1



 

 
Late Cenozoic (Pleistocene and Holocene; 600,000 years to present) sedimentary deposits 
overlie the older geologic units. These deposits are largely unconsolidated beds of gravel, sand, 
silts, and clays. The deposits thicken eastward from a few tens of feet near the edge of the valley 
to about 400 feet at the Contra Costa County line. West of Discovery Bay, the deposits are 
characterized by thin sand and gravel bands occurring within brown sandy silty clays and are 
believed to have formed on an alluvial fan plain fed from small streams off the Coastal Range to 
the west. The alluvial plain deposits interbed and interfinger with deposits of the fluvial plain to 
the east. The fluvial deposits consist of thicker, more laterally extensive sand and gravel beds of 
stream channel origin interbedded with flood plain deposits of gray to bluish sandy to silty clays. 
Discovery Bay overlies the fluvial plain area of eastern Contra Costa County. Groundwater 
supply in Discovery Bay is extracted for supply from these deposits to a depth of about 350 feet. 
 
The regional geologic setting is shown on the San Francisco-San Jose 1º by 2º quadrangle 
(Wagner and others, 1990). Detailed surface geologic maps of the Coast range in this area 
include Davis and Goldman (1958), Brabb and others (1971), and Dibblee (1980 a, b, c). 
Subsurface characterization of the marine rocks beneath the San Joaquin Valley can be found in 
oil and gas field summaries produced by the California Division of Oil and Gas (1982), and 
Thesken and Adams (1995). General geologic descriptions and histories of these marine rocks 
are contained in Bartow (1991), and Bertoldi and others (1991). Because of their marine origin, 
highly consolidated nature, and presence of saline water, the Mesozoic and tertiary marine rocks 
are not a source of potable water supply in the region. 
 
A regional study of the thickness of the Tertiary-Quaternary non-marine sedimentary deposits 
was made by Page (1974) and evaluations of the depth to base of fresh water by the California 
State Water Project Authority (1956) and Berkstresser (1973). Regional studies of the 
Sacramento-San Joaquin Valley groundwater basin were performed by Bertoldi and others 
(1991), and Page (1986). The United States Geological Survey (USGS) compiled water quality 
information that covers the area in a series of reports (Keeter 1980; Sorenson 1981; and 
Fogelman 1982). California Department of Water Resources (DWR, 1967) covers the 
groundwater resources of the San Joaquin County to the east. Local water agencies including 
TODB participated in a groundwater resources study of eastern Contra Costa County (Luhdorff 
& Scalmanini Consulting Engineers, 1999).  The east Contra Costa County area is also under a 
groundwater management plan (Diablo Water District, 2007), which was also prepared by 
Luhdorff & Scalmanini. Luhdorff & Scalmanini also conducted a study of groundwater 
resources pertaining directly to Discovery Bay (1993) and a water master plan (2010). 

 
4.2.2 Hydrogeologic Setting in Discovery Bay 
 
The hydrogeology of Discovery Bay is illustrated through a geologic cross section on Figure 4-1. 
The cross section depicts water wells that are the source of supply for the TODB water system. 

 4-3  Town of Discovery Bay CSD 
2010 Urban Water Management Plan 

Agenda Item F-1



 

The deepest sand unit encountered in water wells in Discovery Bay is below about 350 feet and 
is interpreted as the uppermost, older non-marine deposits of largely fine-grained silt and clay 
with thin, fine sand interbeds. Water quality appears to be poor to brackish in this unit. 
 
Overlying units are comprised of Pleistocene alluvium of generally thick beds of sand and gravel 
with a thin clay interbed. These are probably stream channel deposits of a northward flowing 
ancestral San Joaquin River. This is the main production aquifer completed in all TODB supply 
wells (see Aquifer A on Figure 4-1). 
 
Overlying Aquifer A is a thick sequence of grayish to bluish silt and clay with thin inter beds of 
sand. This unit, which confines the production zone, appears to represent deposition on a 
floodplain with the main stream channels probably further east. The thin sand appears to 
represent flood-sprays of sand spread out on to the flood plain. 
 
Another aquifer unit, labeled Aquifer B on Figure 4-1, occurs above about 140 feet below 
ground surface and consists of a thinner sand and gravel bed. Again, these appear to be stream 
channel deposits. However, Aquifer B has been found to contain brackish to saline water, which 
must be sealed off to protect water quality of the supply source in Aquifer A and avoid corrosion 
of the well casing. 
 
Overlying Aquifer B is a sequence of gray to brown silt and clay beds with some thin sand beds. 
These beds appear to be either floodplain deposits or possibly distal alluvial plain deposits from 
the west. 
 
4.2.3 Groundwater Conditions 
 
Groundwater conditions that are relevant to the Discovery Bay water system are discussed below 
in terms of water levels and water quality. 
 

Groundwater Levels  
Groundwater level data are available since the late 1980s when Discovery Bay was 
developed. Since that time, TODB has conducted a monitoring program to aid in sustainable 
groundwater management. Figure 4-2 is a hydrograph showing water level trends using data 
obtained from TODB supply wells. The hydrograph highlights drought periods and pumpage. 
The trends in pumpage correspond to population growth rates.   
 
Early water well driller reports indicate that before significant groundwater pumping 
occurred, static levels in Discovery Bay were near sea level. At this elevation, depth-to-water 
was about 10 feet below ground surface. With the onset of pumping and initial growth, the 
static level in production wells exhibited seasonal variations between 10 and 40 feet below 
ground surface (see Figure 4-2). During this period, pumpage increased from about 300 

 4-4  Town of Discovery Bay CSD 
2010 Urban Water Management Plan 

Agenda Item F-1



 

million gallons per year (MGY) in 1987 to about 800 MGY by 2001. Between 2001 and 
2008, pumpage increased to 1,300 MGY. After 2008, pumpage leveled off as a result of the 
national economic downturn and water levels since 2008 have exhibited stable to rising 
trends. Water level measurements in fall 2014 were higher than the last year of the 2007-09 
statewide drought.  
 
The stability in groundwater levels in recent dry years indicates that groundwater pumpage is 
sustainable at current usage by TODB. To ensure future sustainability, TODB is a participant 
with other regional water users in seeking to form a Groundwater Sustainability Agency 
under the Sustainable Groundwater Management Act of 2014. In accordance with the 
legislative act, groundwater users shall develop a groundwater sustainability plan or 
alternative that achieves sustainable management of the resource.   
 
Groundwater Quality  
Groundwater quality from TODB supply wells meets all California primary drinking water 
standards. The groundwater does not meet secondary standards for manganese and exceeds 
the drinking water maximum contaminant limit (MCL) of 0.050 mg/L for that constituent. 
With manganese removal treatment instituted, manganese has been eliminated as a water 
quality issue.  
  
Groundwater also is hard and high in total dissolved solids (TDS) concentration, but does not 
exceed the upper MCL (1,000 ppm) for TDS. Because of the depth of the primary aquifer 
(see Aquifer A in Figure 4-1) and intervening clay layers, source protection is achievable 
with appropriate annular seals in the well structure. As a result, none of the wells have 
exhibited anthropogenic sources of contamination such as volatile or semi-volatile organic 
contaminants that are often found in urbanized settings.  
 
The most important water quality concern for the well sources in Discovery Bay is the 
brackish to saline water that occurs in Aquifer B overlying the main completion targets of the 
supply wells (see Figure 4-1). Historic wells in Discovery Bay experienced failure due to 
improper sealing of wells through the saline Aquifer B. This led to rapid corrosion of well 
casings and cross-contamination of the drinking water source by saline water. At present, 
Well 5A exhibits evidence of cross-flow and the well is operated under strict protocol to 
mitigate potential cross flow between Aquifers A and B. TDS in Well 5A recently raised to 
anomalously high levels on the order of 1,500 ppm (a future Well 8 will be added if Well 5A 
is deemed inadequate). The other wells exhibit stable levels of TDS with time as shown in 
Figure 4-3. 
 

 4-5  Town of Discovery Bay CSD 
2010 Urban Water Management Plan 

Agenda Item F-1



 

In the absence of chronic downward trends in water levels or degraded water quality, the state of 
TODB’s groundwater supply is considered sustainable and does not exhibit any characteristics of 
unsustainability as defined under the 2014 Groundwater Sustainable Management Act.  

 
4.2.4 Well Yields and Aquifer Characteristics 
 
Specific capacities of TODB supply wells vary from less than 10 to over 30 gallons per minute 
per foot of drawdown (gpm/ft). At these magnitudes, the Discovery Bay supply wells can be 
equipped to pump at capacities up to 2,200 gpm. Historic testing indicate that the primary 
production aquifer has a transmissivity ranging from about 50,000 to 100,000 gallons per day per 
foot and a storativity that is consistent with a confined system. Aquifer parameter estimates 
provide a basis for evaluating well performance and appropriate spacing of future wells to 
minimize mutual pumping interference.  
 
Proper maintenance and early identification of degradation in well yields are important activities 
for a system that relies entirely on well water as a source. In 2007, Discovery Bay instituted a 
biannual program to test the well facilities, which included quantification of specific capacity. 
Through this program, specific capacity testing is used to schedule rehabilitation programs and 
identify signs of structural problems. Each testing event is documented with a report discussing 
changes since the last reporting period and recommendations for preventative or remedial work 
to sustain source capacity. Since structural problems may be forewarned by increasing salinity 
(i.e., because of the presence of shallow brackish water), water quality testing is an integral part 
of the biannual testing.  
 
The volume of water pumped from the groundwater supply 2006 through 2013 is provided in 
Table 4-3. Historically, all water used has come from the groundwater basin. 
 

Table 4-3 (DWR Table 18) 

Groundwater — volume pumped (MGY) * 

Basin name(s) Metered or 
Unmetered 2006 2007 2008 2009 2010 2013 

San Joaquin Basin Metered 1,185 1,322 1,328 1,282 1,306 1,303 

Total groundwater pumped 1,185 1,322 1,328 1,282 1,306 1,303 

Groundwater as a percent of total water supply 100% 100% 100% 100% 100% 100% 
                

*Based on metered water production records. All water produced derived from groundwater wells. 
 
The volume of water projected to be pumped from the groundwater supply is provided in Table 
4-4. Starting in 2015, TODB will obtain 28 MGY of water as reclaimed water used onsite at the 
wastewater treatment plant (discussed in more detail below).  

 4-6  Town of Discovery Bay CSD 
2010 Urban Water Management Plan 

Agenda Item F-1



 

 
Table 4-4 (DWR Table 19) 

Groundwater — volume projected to be pumped (MGY) * 

Basin name(s) 2015 2020 2025 2030 2035 

San Joaquin Basin 1,276 1,230 1,230 1,230 1,445 
Total groundwater pumped 1,276 1,230 1,230 1,230 1,445 
Percent of total water supply 97.9% 97.8% 97.8% 97.8% 98.1% 

            
*Projected groundwater pumping based on projected water demand, less the future WWTP recycled water source. 
 
 
4.2.5 Groundwater Basin Yield and Monitoring 
 
Discovery Bay overlies the northwestern portion of the Tracy Subbasin, which is one of sixteen 
subbasins in the San Joaquin Valley Groundwater Basin as designated by the California 
Department of Water Resources (Bulletin 118, 2003 Update). The Tracy Subbasin boundaries 
are defined by the Mokelumne and San Joaquin Rivers on the north; the San Joaquin River on 
the east; and the San Joaquin-Stanislaus County line on the south. The western subbasin 
boundary is defined by the contact between the unconsolidated sedimentary deposits and the 
rocks of the Diablo Range (DWR, 2004).  
 
The reliability of future groundwater supply for Discovery Bay is based on an assumption that 
the yield of groundwater system is sufficient to sustain current and future pumping. As indicated 
above, water level and water quality data indicate stable groundwater conditions at current levels 
of pumping and TODB is taking measures to sustainably manage future growth in accordance 
with the Sustainable Groundwater Management Act of 2014.  
 
 
4.3 Transfer Opportunities 
 
TODB does not participate in transfer or exchange programs and does not have any planned in 
the future. 
 
 
4.4 Desalinated Water Opportunities 
 
TODB does not plan to build desalinated water plants and there are no opportunities for the 
development of a desalinated water plant for future water supplies.  
 
 
 

 4-7  Town of Discovery Bay CSD 
2010 Urban Water Management Plan 

Agenda Item F-1



 

 
4.5 Recycled Water Opportunities 
 
This section provides information on recycled wastewater and its potential for use as a water 
resource in the service area. 
 
TODB owns and operates a community wastewater collection, treatment and solids disposal 
facilities. The information in this section was provided by TODB in coordination with the 
wastewater engineering consultant, Herwit Engineering, and from information provided in the 
TODB 2010 Wastewater Master Plan7. 
 
4.5.1 Wastewater Collection and Treatment System Description 
 
Wastewater is collected and conveyed to the wastewater treatment plant (WWTP) by a network 
of gravity sewer mains and force mains. There are fifteen sewage pumping stations within the 
Discovery Bay sewage collection system that deliver sewage from the developments to the 
overall wastewater treatment plant, which is located on the north and south sides of Highway 4 
and directly southeast from the Discovery Bay community.  
 
The WWTP currently produces a disinfected secondary effluent that is discharged to Old River. 
The WWTP consists of an influent pump station, influent screening, secondary treatment 
facilities using oxidation ditches, and ultraviolet (UV) disinfection prior to discharge into Old 
River. The WWTP average daily flow in 2010 was approximately 1.75 million gallons per day 
(MGD). The facilities are permitted by the Regional Water Quality Control Board (RWQCB) to 
treat and discharge to Old River under specific waste discharge requirements (WDRs).  
 
The facilities include a solids handling system for the residual sludge or biosolids developed in 
the wastewater treatment plant. Solids handling facilities consist of waste activated sludge 
(WAS) pumping systems, a small aerobic digester, two sludge lagoons, a belt press dewatering 
facility, and four active solar sludge dryers. The solids handling system currently uses 
approximately 28 million gallons per year (MGY) of potable water through a 4-inch water 
service connection to the WWTP. 
 
Table 4-5 provides the current and projected wastewater flows for TODB. 
 
 
 
 

7 2013, Stantec Consulting Services Inc., The Town of Discovery Bay Community Services District Wastewater 
Treatment Plant Master Plan 

 4-8  Town of Discovery Bay CSD 
2010 Urban Water Management Plan 

                                                 

Agenda Item F-1



 

Table 4-5 (DWR Table 21) 

Current and Projected Wastewater Flows  (MGY) 

 Type of Wastewater 2010 2015 2020 2025 2030 2035 
Wastewater collected & treated in service 
area – Average Daily Flow 660 770 880 880 880 1,030 

Volume that meets recycled water 
standards 

0 0 880 880 880 1,030 

                  
 
 

4.5.2 Quantity of Available Treated Wastewater that Meets Recycled Water Standards 
 
Title 22 sets forth the regulations that govern recycled water treatment and uses. There are 
specific filtration and disinfection requirements to use recycled water in applications such as 
irrigation of landscaping areas. Currently, the effluent from the WWTP is not treated to meet the 
requirements of Title 22 for such applications.  TODB is planning to construct improvements in 
2017 to treat all the effluent to meet the Title 22 requirements for “disinfected tertiary recycled 
water” in order to comply with the discharge permitting requirements of the National Pollutant 
Discharge Elimination System (NPDES). When these improvements are made, there will be a 
treated effluent from the WWTP that meets Title 22 recycled water standards that will be 
available for use in the water system for recycled water applications (e.g. landscape irrigation) 
but not for domestic drinking water purposes.  
 
Table 4-6 provides the estimated current and future non-recycled wastewater disposal.  
 

Table 4-6 (DWR Table 22) 

Recycled water — non-recycled wastewater disposal (units in MGY) 

Method of disposal  Treatment Level 2010 2015 2020 2025 2030 2035 
Discharged to Old River  
through secondary effluent lift 
station 

Secondary  660 770 0 0 0 0 

Discharged to Old River 
through future tertiary effluent 
lift station 

Disinfected Tertiary 0 0 880 880 880 1,030 

Total 660 770 880 880 880 1,030 
                  

 
 
4.5.3 Recycled Water Current and Potential Future Uses 
 
Current Recycled Water Project – Onsite Reclaimed Water System 
As noted above the effluent does not currently meet Title 22 requirements for recycled water 
uses in the water system. However, Title 22 allows a restricted use of untreated recycled water 
onsite at the wastewater treatment plant, provided public access to the recycled water is 

 4-9  Town of Discovery Bay CSD 
2010 Urban Water Management Plan 

Agenda Item F-1



 

restricted. TODB is completing a project in early 2015 that will utilize the secondary effluent 
from the WWTP in the solids handling process.  
 
Currently, the belt presses and spray nozzles in the solids handling process require a water source 
that uses approximately 28 MGY of potable water from the system. The actual water 
requirements vary based on time of year. A baseline flow of approximately 50 gallons per minute 
(gpm) is required with peak use over 300 gpm during the summer months when the belt presses 
and the drying process is operating. The maximum capacity of the onsite reclaim water system 
will be 400 gpm to supply water during peak demand requirements. After completion of this 
project, potable water will no longer be required in the WWTP processes.  
 
Future Potential Recycled Water Uses 
After completion of the tertiary treatment systems in 2017, TODB will have recycled water 
available for use in the water system. There are potential opportunities for use of recycled water; 
however, none are being pursued at this time. Potential uses and limitations of recycled water are 
discussed below, and summarized in table 4-7.  
 

Water quality concerns: Of particular concern with recycled water application to 
irrigation is the source water quality. Boron and salinity are two important parameters 
when irrigating for agricultural and landscape purposes. Crops and vegetation have 
varying levels of tolerance to these parameters (among others); however, it generally 
starts to be an issue when boron is above 2 parts per million (ppm) or electrical 
conductivity (EC) is above 2000 micro-Siemens per centimeter (µS/cm). The 
groundwater wells have boron at approximately 1-2 ppm concentrations, whereas the 
secondary effluent from the WWTP contains boron ranging from 3-4 ppm. The 
groundwater wells generally have an EC of around 500 µS/cm, whereas the secondary 
effluent is 2100 µS/cm. Salinity is known to increase in wastewater due to point-of-use 
water softeners treating water hardness. Boron and salinity will not be removed in the 
recycled water, and could pose operational issues if applied to landscape irrigation. 
 
Similar recycled water quality issues are present in other systems. In response to recycled 
water quality issues it has become common practice to blend recycled water to decrease 
concentrations, or to cycle between recycled water and potable water to reduce soil 
column salt loading. For the purposes of assessing recycled water potential in the 
UWMP, it is assumed irrigation water could only meet half (50%) of its demand from 
recycled water due to poor water quality issues noted above.  
 
Purple pipe systems: All of the newer developments in TODB (from 1999 and on) are 
constructed with “purple pipe”, which is dedicated for distribution of recycled water to 
the system. The older developments do not have a purple pipe system. The purple pipes 

 4-10  Town of Discovery Bay CSD 
2010 Urban Water Management Plan 

Agenda Item F-1



 

can connect to public irrigation services as well as individual residences for landscape 
needs. It is estimated that at build-out in 2020, approximately 36% of the service area 
will have purple pipe. The estimated irrigation demand for these areas (residential and 
public irrigation) is approximately 300 MGY, and approximately half can be served 
recycled water (150 MGY) due to operational considerations with water quality. 
 
Those developments with purple pipe are located on the opposite side of the service area 
from the wastewater treatment plant. Connecting the purple pipe systems to the WWTP 
would require a 5-mile transmission, likely to be a 12-inch diameter pipe through 
congested utilities and a highway crossing.  It is estimated that construction costs for such 
a project is on the order of $4-6 million. Based on this conceptual assessment, the project 
would likely serve up to 150 MGY, which equates to the amount of water used by 770 
equivalent dwelling units (EDU). In comparison, a typical groundwater supply well in 
TODB can serve twice as many EDU (approximately 1,500 EDU) and cost half as much 
to construct (approximately $2 million). A recycled water pipeline is not being pursued 
due to cost-to-benefit, and given the current outlook of groundwater appears to be 
sustainable; however, the project could become more economically feasible if grant 
funding were available to supplement the cost and will be considered further by TODB. 
 
Other potential applications: Other potential uses for recycled water is irrigation in the 
Discovery Bay golf course or in the adjacent agricultural fields, neither of which is 
currently supplied water by the TODB system. Therefore supplying recycled water to 
these would not reduce the per-capita water use of TODB. The golf course is part of an 
HOA that has surface water rights for irrigation. Agricultural lands surrounding TODB 
are irrigated with surface and groundwater. TODB may still considered delivering 
recycled water to the golf course or agricultural fields as a benefit to regional water 
supplies even though it would not reduce the per-capita water use in the TODB system. 
 
Groundwater recharge is another alternative for the recycled water use. As discussed 
above, TODB’s groundwater supply is from a confined aquifer system and could not be 
replenished from a surface recharge. Injection would be the only alternative for recharge, 
which has limited cost-to-benefit considering the high costs for delivery, construction, 
permitting and operational complexities associated with injection.  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 4-11  Town of Discovery Bay CSD 
2010 Urban Water Management Plan 

Agenda Item F-1



 

 
 

 Table 4-7 (DWR Table 23) 

Recycled water — potential future use (units in MGY) 

User type Description Feasibility 2015 2020 2025 2030 2035 

Agricultural irrigation Non-customer uses 
Pending further 

investigation 
0 0 0 0 0 

Landscape irrigation1 Purple Pipe in newer 
developments 

Technically 
feasible, high cost 
for transmission 

0 0 0 0 150 

Golf course irrigation Non-customer uses Pending further 
investigation 

0 0 0 0 0 

Wildlife habitat N/A N/A 0 0 0 0 0 

Wetlands N/A N/A 0 0 0 0 0 

Industrial reuse N/A N/A 0 0 0 0 0 

Groundwater recharge N/A 
No identified 

needs 
0 0 0 0 0 

Seawater barrier N/A N/A 0 0 0 0 0 

Geothermal/Energy N/A N/A 0 0 0 0 0 

WWTP use Onsite reclaim water 
system 

Will be completed 
in March 2015 28 28 28 28 28 

Total 0  0  0  0  0  178 
                  
1Includes parks, schools, cemeteries, churches, residential, and commercial and public facilities 

 
  

 
 
4.5.4 Methods to Encourage Recycled Water Use 
 
The most feasible uses of recycled water include the onsite uses at the WWTP, irrigating in the 
system using the existing purple pipe network, golf course irrigation and nearby agricultural 
irrigation. The latter two are not part of TODB potable water demand and would not reduce per-
capita consumption for TODB; however, those may still be pursued as a benefit to other surface 
and groundwater uses outside of TODB under a groundwater sustainability plan. Furthermore, as 
discussed above, irrigation uses within the system using the existing purple pipe are likely to 
only be pursued further if grant funding is identified for such a project.   
 
4.5.5 Plan for Optimizing Use of Recycled Water 
 
Given the conclusions of limited current recycled water use and uncertainty with the viability of 
future recycled water use, there is no current plan to optimize recycled water nor is there a 
separate master plan for recycled water beyond the information presented above. 
 
 

 4-12  Town of Discovery Bay CSD 
2010 Urban Water Management Plan 

Agenda Item F-1



 

4.6 Future Water Projects 
 
TODB’s future water supply projects were identified in the Capital Improvement Program 
developed in the 2010 Water Master Plan. The projects involve new facilities and upgrades to 
facilities to meet current and projected water demand and replacement of aging infrastructure. 
None of the water projects are required to address supplies for average, single-dry, or multiple-
dry years. Table 4-8 provides a summary of the water-related projects in the TODB Capital 
Improvement Program.  
 
 

Table 4-8 (DWR Table 26) 

Future water supply projects 

Project name Projected start 
date 

Projected 
completion date 

Impacts to Water 
Supply Reliability 

in Average, 
Single-Dry, and 

Multiple-Dry 
Years * 

Water Supply Well 7  2014 2015 N/A 

Well 8 (contingency replacement) Unknown Unknown N/A 

New Filter Unit WLWTP  2016 2016 N/A 

New Backwash Tank WLWTP 2016 2016 N/A 

New  Recycle Pumps WLWTP 2016 2016 N/A 

Chemical Room Upgrade WLWTP 2015 2015 N/A 

Recycle Pump Replacement NDWTP 2016 2016 N/A 

Booster Pump Replacement NDWTP 2016 2016 N/A 

Kellogg Creek Crossings – 16” Main  2017 2017 N/A 

8-inch main Upgrades 2017 2020 N/A 

New Water Storage Tank NDWTP 2015 2016 N/A 

Customer Water Meter Retrofits 2015 2017 N/A 

Total  
*None of the projects are required to address drought conditions.  
 

 4-13  Town of Discovery Bay CSD 
2010 Urban Water Management Plan 

Agenda Item F-1



0

100

200

300

400

500

600

0

100

200

300

400

500

600

NORTH

50

150

250

350

450

550

50

150

250

350

450

550

A'
SOUTH

A

TD 750

INDIAN
SLOUGH

WELL 1B
PROJ. WESTWELL 2

PROJ. WESTWELL 4A
PROJ. EAST

WELL 3
PROJ. WESTWELL 5A

PROJ. EAST

TD 400

TD 365

TD 440

TD 381

TD 360

TH TD 750

TD 405

FLOODPLAIN

STREAM CHANNELS
SANDS & GRAVELS

FLOODPLAIN
WITH SANDS

STREAM CHANNELS
SANDS & GRAVELS

BASIN
DEPOSITS

AQUIFER B

AQUIFER A

OLDER
PLEISTOCENE

NONMARINE
DEPOSITS

PLEISTOCENE
ALLUVIUM

ECCID #14 E - TH
PROJ. EASTWELL 6

PROJ. WEST

WELL 4
TH/PW

PROJ. WEST

647

Figure 4-1
Geologic Cross Section

Discovery Bay 2010 Urban Water Management PlanAgenda Item F-1



0

200

400

600

800

1000

1200

1400

1600

18000

10

20

30

40

50

60

70

80

90

An
nu

al
 P

ro
du

ct
io

n 
(m

ill
io

n 
ga

llo
ns

) 

St
at

ic
 W

at
er

 L
ev

el
 (f

ee
t)

 

Well 1B Well 2 Well 4A Well 5A Well 6

Figure 4-2 
Static Water Levels, Production, and Drought Periods 

DBCSD 2010 Urban Water Management Plan 

Annual Production  
approx. 1300 MGY 

Shading Denotes 
Multi-Year Drought 

of Large Scale 
(DWR Dec. 2013) 

Annual Production  
approx. 600 MGY 

Average Groundwater Level 

Agenda Item F-1



0

100

200

300

400

500

600

700

800

900

1000

1100

1200

1300

1400

1500

1985 1990 1995 2000 2005 2010 2015

To
ta

l D
is

so
lv

ed
 S

ol
id

s 
(m

g/
L)

 

Well 1b Well 2 Well 4A Well 6

Figure 4-3  
Water Quality (TDS) for DBCSD Supply Wells 
DBCSD 2010 Urban Water Management Plan 

Agenda Item F-1



 

Chapter 5  Water Supply Reliability and  
Water Shortage Contingency Planning 

 
 
5.1 Water Supply Reliability 
 
TODB uses only groundwater pumped from a portion of the Tracy Subbasin of the greater San 
Joaquin Valley Groundwater Basin as its source of supply to the water system. The subbasin 
from which TODB pumps is not considered in overdraft and is sustainably managed through 
formal cooperation between local water entities.  TODB wells have exhibited no evidence of 
degradation throughout the development history of the water system and groundwater supplies 
have been reliable through previous and current drought conditions.  
 
TODB is taking measures to ensure the water supply source will remain reliable through 
uncertainties in the future including environmental factors that might impact availability of water 
supply, such as prolonged drought or degradation of water quality through natural or 
anthropogenic causes. TODB is currently coordinating with other local agencies to develop a 
Groundwater Sustainability Plan in accordance with the Sustainable Groundwater Management 
Act of 2014 to protect and adaptively manage the groundwater resource.  
 
TODB is also taking measures to mitigate disruptions in supplies from existing groundwater well 
infrastructure in catastrophic events, such as earthquakes, can be mitigated. TODB operates five 
existing wells with a sixth well, Well 7, to be brought online in 2015. This will provide 
redundancy in the system to offset the loss of a well from catastrophic failure or loss in yield due 
to aging or other mechanisms.  
 
Though the existing groundwater supplies are not considered vulnerable to water shortages, the 
information contained in this chapter describes measures taken by TODB to mitigate potential 
water shortages and drought preparedness from uncertain future events or causes.    
 
5.2 Water Shortage Contingency Planning 
 
This section outlines stages of actions that will be implemented by TODB in the event of water 
supply shortages and emergency preparedness and plans for catastrophic events. A copy of 
TODB’s Draft Water Shortage Contingency Resolution and Water Shortage Contingency Plan, 
as well as current water reduction ordinances and resolutions, are in Appendix C. 
 
 
 
 

 5-1  Town of Discovery Bay CSD 
2010 Urban Water Management Plan 

Agenda Item F-1



 

5.2.1 Stages of Action 
 
CWC Section 10632 (a) requires stages of action to be undertaken by the water supplier in 
response to water supply shortages, including up to a 50-percent reduction in water supply, and 
an outline of specific water supply conditions which are applicable to each stage.  
 
TODB will implement a four-stage action in response to water supply shortages to comply with 
State requirements. The stages will be implemented during water supply shortages, or regional 
drought conditions that may not be directly influencing TODB water supplies. The stage 
determination and declaration of a water supply shortage will be made by the TODB Board of 
Directors. 
 

Stage I – This stage is part of an ongoing public information campaign encouraging 
voluntary water conservation. TODB issued a resolution for voluntary water use in 
Resolution 2014-11 – Voluntary Water Reduction (Appendix C.2). There is little to no 
water shortage during Stage 1. Although Stage I is ongoing, customers are reminded when 
a regional single-year drought is occurring , or when TODB has a redundant back-up well 
offline for repairs, which makes the overall supply system more vulnerable to shortages. 
 
Stage II – This stage would be initiated during moderate water shortage (of up to 15%) 
and would be the first stage where mandatory conservation and water use prohibitions are 
enforced. Failure of two groundwater supply wells could cause a moderate reduction in 
water supply resulting in implementation of Stage II. Stage II would also be implemented 
during a regional severe drought where water conservation is mandatory but impacts to 
TODB’s groundwater supply wells are negligible or non-existent. During Stage II the 
Board of Directors will declare prohibitions on water use, in accordance with the TODB 
Ordinance No. 25 Establishing Emergency Drought Regulations (Appendix C.3). This 
stage is characteristic of the current drought, which is severe throughout the State but has 
no immediate effects on the TODB groundwater supply. 
 
Stage III – This stage would be initiated during a severe water shortage (15 to 35%), 
which could be caused by a catastrophic failure of up to three groundwater supply wells.  
During Stage III, the Board of Directors would adopt a new ordinance providing authority 
for the General Manager to implement additional prohibitions and consumption reduction 
methods that would include water rationing if other consumption reduction methods are 
not effective at reducing demand.  
 
Stage IV – This stage would be initiated during a critical water shortage (35 to 50%), 
which could be caused by a catastrophic failure of more than three groundwater supply 
wells.  All steps taken in the prior stages would be intensified and production would be 
monitored daily for compliance with necessary reductions. Residents would be under 

 5-2  Town of Discovery Bay CSD 
2010 Urban Water Management Plan 

Agenda Item F-1



 

water rationing. TODB would be in emergency status to repair and bring online water 
supply wells.  
 

Table 5-1 lists the four stages of action for the water shortage contingency.  
 

Table 5-1 (DWR Table 35) 

Water shortage contingency — rationing stages to address water supply shortages 
Stage No. Water Supply Conditions  % Shortage 

I - Voluntary 
Normal to Minimum –  
Ex: loss of a redundant  well supply 0-5% 

II – Mandatory 
Conservation 

Moderate –  
Ex: Severe drought or catastrophic loss of 2 wells 0-15% 

III - Rationing 
Severe to Critical –  
Ex: Catastrophic loss of 3 wells 

15-35% 

IV – Intense 
Rationing 

Severe to Critical –  
Ex: Catastrophic loss of 3 or more wells 

35-50% 

            
 
5.2.2 Prohibitions 
 
The CWC Section 10632 (d) requires water suppliers to implement mandatory prohibitions 
against specific water use practices that may be considered excessive during water shortages. If 
drought conditions or water shortages warrant mandatory prohibitions (Stage II) TODB will 
implement the current water shortage emergency response plan, Ordinance No. 25 Establishing 
Emergency Drought Regulations (Appendix C.3). Further mandatory prohibitions will be 
implemented if warranted based on Stage III or Stage IV conditions.  Table 5-2 identifies 
potential prohibitions that would be enforced during a water shortage emergency. 
 

Table 5-2 (DWR Table 36) 

Water shortage contingency — mandatory prohibitions 

Prohibitions 

Stage When 
Prohibition 
Becomes 

Mandatory 
Excessive outdoor watering (causing runoff to non-irrigated areas) II, III, IV 

Use of hose without a shut-off nozzle for vehicle washing II, III, IV 

Application of water to driveways or sidewalks II, III, IV 

Use of water in non-circulating fountain or water feature II, III, IV 

Outdoor irrigation beyond the allowed watering schedule II, III, IV 

Uncorrected plumbing leaks III, IV 

Washing cars III, IV 

Watering lawns/landscapes or filling outdoor water features III, IV 

 5-3  Town of Discovery Bay CSD 
2010 Urban Water Management Plan 

Agenda Item F-1



 

 
5.2.3 Consumption Reduction Methods 
 
CWC Section 10632 (e) requires the water supplier to implement consumption-reduction 
methods during the most severe stages of water shortage that are capable of reducing water use 
by up to 50%. TODB would implement the water consumption–reduction methods shown on 
Table 5-3, below. Some of the methods are on-going and are part of the TODB water 
conservation efforts addressed in the Demand Management Measures. 
 

Table 5-3 (DWR Table 37) 

 Water shortage contingency — Proposed consumption reduction methods 

Consumption  
 Reduction Methods 

 Stage 
When 

Method 
Takes 
Effect 

Projected 
Reduction       

(%) 

Demand Reduction Program All stages 10-20% 

Water conservation kits All stages 10-20% 

Education programs All stages 10-20% 

Voluntary rationing All stages 0-20% 

Mandatory prohibitions II, III, IV 10-20% 

Apply flow restrictions to customers III, IV 35-50% 

Water shortage pricing III, IV 10-50% 

Apply penalties for excessive water use II, III, IV 10-50% 

Restrict water use for only priority uses  III, IV 10-50% 

Mandatory water rationing, per capita allotment IV 20-50% 

 
 
5.2.4 Penalties 
 
CWC Section 10632 (f) requires a water supplier to penalize or charge for excessive use, where 
applicable. In accordance with the TODB Ordinance No. 25, when a water shortage emergency 
is declared, the General Manager may issue a Notice of Violation to any customer that fails to 
comply with the conditions of the ordinance. After one notice has been issued further violations 
shall be punishable by a fine of: $25 for a first violation; $50 for a second violation; $100 for a 
third violation; and $500 for a fourth violation and any subsequent violation thereafter. 
Furthermore each day upon which any condition of the ordinance is violated constitutes a 
separate violation.  
 
During severe and critical water shortages (Stages III and IV), there will be additional charges 
applied for excessive water use. During these water shortages, the General Manager may take 

 5-4  Town of Discovery Bay CSD 
2010 Urban Water Management Plan 

Agenda Item F-1



 

further actions if violations continue after the one written warning, such as installing a flow-
restricting device on the service line, or termination of service for repeated violations of 
unauthorized water use. Table 5-4 presents the stages during which penalties and charges take 
effect. 
 

Table 5-4 (DWR Table 38) 

 Water shortage contingency — penalties and charges 

Penalties or Charges  Stage When Penalty Takes 
Effect 

Penalty for excess use II, III, IV 

Charge for excess use III, IV 

Flow Restriction III, IV 

Termination of Service III, IV 

 
5.2.5 Revenue and Expenditure Impacts During Water Shortages 
 
CWC Section 10632 (f) requires an analysis of the impacts of consumption reduction on the 
revenues and expenditures of the water supplier. TODB will establish an accounting for tracking 
expenses and revenue shortfalls associated with water conservation and rationing. TODB 
maintains reserve funds that can be used to offset expenditure impacts during times of 
emergency. TODB will implement a surcharge to recover unmitigated revenue shortfalls.  
 
5.2.6 Other Actions During Catastrophic Reductions 
 
In the event of catastrophic reduction in water supplies, TODB would implement emergency 
preparedness plans, depending on the cause and severity of the water shortage. California Water 
Code (CWC) Section 10632 (c) requires certain actions to be undertaken by the water supplier 
during a catastrophic interruption in water supplies. A catastrophic event resulting in water 
shortage would be any event, either natural or man-made, with varying levels of severity to the 
water supply conditions. Examples include, but are not limited to, a regional power outage, an 
earthquake, or other disasters. 
 
TODB has in place an Emergency Operations Plan that would be implemented by the TODB 
staff in the event of a catastrophic water shortage. TODB has equipped its facilities with standby 
emergency generators that would be operated if the catastrophic event involved loss of power. 
Both of the water treatment plants and booster stations are equipped with permanent emergency 
generators and automatic transfer switches. TODB owns portable generators that can be used to 
operate the groundwater pumping stations. If there is catastrophic rupturing of pipelines, during 

 5-5  Town of Discovery Bay CSD 
2010 Urban Water Management Plan 

Agenda Item F-1



 

an earthquake for example, the emergency operations procedures would be followed to isolate 
the damaged sections, notify customers and immediately repair the damage. 
 
5.3 Water Quality Impacts on Water Shortage 
 
Water quality standards for the TODB water system are dictated through the primary and 
secondary maximum contaminant levels (MCLs) as set forth in the Federal and State Drinking 
Water Standards. While the TODB raw water supply (groundwater from wells) meets primary 
MCL standards, it exceeds the secondary MCL for manganese and iron. TODB operates two iron 
and manganese treatment facilities to comply with the secondary standards for these constituents.  
 
The groundwater supply also contains levels of total dissolved solids (TDS) that are near the 
maximum contaminant levels.  Drinking water regulations specify three MCL levels for TDS: 
recommended MCL of 500 ppm; an upper MCL of 1,000 ppm; and a short term MCL of 1,500 
ppm. All wells are below the recommended level of TDS, with exception of one supply well, 
Well 5A, which exceeds the recommended level. Well 5A is monitored closely due to a 
structural feature that permits cross flow from a brackish zone under certain pumping conditions. 
TODB is currently considering options to optimally use this well in a manner that provides 
adequate water quality and source protection. 
 
The water quality from the TODB groundwater source has remained at consistent concentrations 
and there are no measurable or anticipated water shortages that would be caused by degrading 
water quality in the water supply. As shown in Table 5-5, there are no projected water quality 
impacts on water supply.  
 

Table 5-5 (DWR Table 30) 

Water quality — current and projected water supply impacts 

Water Source Description of 
Condition 2010 2015 2020 2025 2030 2035 

Groundwater Adequate 0  0  0  0  0  0  
                  

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 5-6  Town of Discovery Bay CSD 
2010 Urban Water Management Plan 

Agenda Item F-1



 

5.4 Drought Planning 
 
5.4.1 Water Year Types 
 
In the context of drought planning, this section describes reliability of the water supply and 
vulnerability to seasonal or climatic shortage for the following water–year types, as defined by 
CWC Section 1062 (i):  
 

• Average water year: A year in the historical sequence that most closely represents 
median runoff levels and patterns. It is defined as the median runoff over the previous 30 
years or more. This median is recalculated every 10 years. 

 
• Single dry water year: Generally considered to be the lowest annual runoff for a 

watershed since the water year beginning in 1903. Suppliers should determine this for 
each watershed from which they receive supplies. 

 
• Multiple dry water years: Generally considered to be the lowest average runoff for a 

consecutive multiple‐year period (i.e., 3 years or more) for a watershed since 1903. For 
example, 1928–1934 and 1987–1992 were the two multi‐year periods of lowest average 
runoff during the 20th century in the Central Valley. Suppliers should determine this for 
each watershed from which they receive supplies. 

 
TODB has not calculated the water year-types for its watershed; however, appropriate base years 
for TODB would be the same as nearby water agencies. Table 5-6 presents the water year-types 
reported in The City of Antioch 2010 Urban Water Management Plan, and are considered 
appropriate for TODB.  
 

Table 5-6 (DWR Table 27) 

Basis of water year data 

Water Year Type Base 
Year(s) 

Average Water Year 2000 to 2004 
Single-Dry Water Year 1994 
Multiple-Dry Water Years 1987-1990 

 
 
Seasonal fluctuations observed in groundwater levels do not result in any considerable loss of 
production for TODB. Furthermore, TODB has always been able to pump 100% of its 
groundwater supply during previous multiple-dry years.  
 

 5-7  Town of Discovery Bay CSD 
2010 Urban Water Management Plan 

Agenda Item F-1



 

Table 5-2 summarizes the effects water year-types would have on water supply and groundwater 
production. Annual groundwater production varies depending on the water demand. The 
maximum production of record was 1,328 MGY in 2008. Had 2015 been a single-dry or 
multiple-dry year, TODB would have had access to 100% of its groundwater supplies.  
 
 

Table 5-7 (DWR Table 28) 

Supply reliability — historic conditions 

 Average / Normal Water Year 
 Single 

Dry Water 
Year 

 Multiple Dry Water Years 

 Year 1  Year 2  Year 3  Year 4 

1,328 (record maximum in 2008) 1,328 1,328 1,328 1,328 1,328 

Percent of Average/Normal Year: 100% 100% 100% 100% 100% 

 
 
5.4.2 Three-Year Minimum Water Supply 
 
CWC Section 10632 (b) requires the UWMP to include an estimate of the minimum water 
supply in the next three years based on the driest three-year historic sequence for the agency’s 
water supply. The driest three-year historic sequence is noted above in Table 5-6, though the 
recent three years (2011, 2012 and 2013) have also been exceptionally dry with drought 
emergencies declared statewide. Throughout TODB history, there have never been impacts to 
supply caused by droughts. Therefore, there is no limitation on water supply in the next three 
years associated with drought. Table 5-8 summarizes the estimated minimum water supply in the 
next three years based on the next three years being the driest three-year historical sequence. 
 

Table 5-8 (DWR Table 31) 

Supply reliability — current water sources 

 Water supply sources1 
 Average / 

Normal 
Water Year 

Supply2 

 Multiple Dry Water Year Supply2 
  
  

Year 2015 Year 2016 Year 2017 
Groundwater 1,328 1,328 1,328 1,328 

Percent of normal year: 100% 100% 100% 100% 
            

 
 
5.4.3 Measurement for Determining Actual Consumption Reduction 
 
CWC Section 16032 (i) require the water supplier to develop a mechanism for determining 
actual reductions in water use when implementing the urban water supply shortage contingency 

 5-8  Town of Discovery Bay CSD 
2010 Urban Water Management Plan 

Agenda Item F-1



 

plan. Water production is measured daily at the water treatment plants that supply water to the 
system. Metered customers are recorded quarterly. Exceptionally high usage from customers are 
identified and investigated for potential water loss or over-use. In that event the customers would 
be notified and the problem remedied.  
 
5.4.4 Water Supply and Demand Assessment 
 
The water supply and demand assessment shall compare the total water supply sources with the 
total projected water use over the next 20 years for normal, single-dry and multiple-dry years. 
Tables 5-9, 5-10 and 5-11 provide the assessment of supply versus demand for each water year 
type. It should be noted that the estimated supply for each year is exactly equal to the estimated 
potable water demand, because there are no anticipated supply shortages. Furthermore, there is 
no anticipated impact to groundwater yield for any water year type.  
 

 Table 5-9 (DWR Table 32) 

Supply and demand comparison — normal year (MGY) 
  2015 2020 2025 2030 2035 

Supply totals (from Table 4-2) 1,304  1,258  1,258  1,258  1,473  
Demand totals (From Table 3-14) 1,304  1,258  1,258  1,258  1,473  
Difference 0  0  0  0  0  

Difference as % of Supply 0.0% 0.0% 0.0% 0.0% 0.0% 

Difference as % of Demand 0.0% 0.0% 0.0% 0.0% 0.0% 

            
 
 

Table 5-10 (DWR Table 33) 

Supply and demand comparison — single dry year (MGY) 
  2015 2020 2025 2030 2035 

Supply totals1,2 1,304  1,258  1,258  1,258  1,473  
Demand totals2,3,4 1,304  1,258  1,258  1,258  1,473  
Difference 0  0  0  0  0  

Difference as % of Supply 0.0% 0.0% 0.0% 0.0% 0.0% 

Difference as % of Demand 0.0% 0.0% 0.0% 0.0% 0.0% 

            
1Consider the same sources as in Table 16.  If new sources of water are planned, add a column to the table 
and specify the source, timing, and amount of water. 
2Provide in the text of the UWMP text that discusses how single-dry-year water supply volumes were 
determined. 
3Consider the same demands as in Table 3.  If new water demands are anticipated, add a column to the table 
and specify the source, timing, and amount of water. 
4The urban water target determined in this UWMP will be considered when developing the 2020 water 
demands included in this table.   

 5-9  Town of Discovery Bay CSD 
2010 Urban Water Management Plan 

Agenda Item F-1



 

 
 

  Table 5-11 (DWR Table 34) 

Supply and demand comparison — multiple dry-year events 
    2015 2020 2025 2030 2035 

Multiple-dry year                                               
first year supply 

Supply totals1,2 1,304  1,258  1,258  1,258  1,473  
Demand totals2,3,4 1,304  1,258  1,258  1,258  1,473  
Difference 0  0  0  0  0  

Difference as % of Supply 0% 0% 0% 0% 0% 

Difference as % of Demand 0% 0% 0% 0% 0% 

Multiple-dry year                                                  
second year supply 

Supply totals1,2 1,304  1,258  1,258  1,258  1,473  
Demand totals2,3,4 1,304  1,258  1,258  1,258  1,473  
Difference 0  0  0  0  0  

Difference as % of Supply 0% 0% 0% 0% 0% 

Difference as % of Demand 0% 0% 0% 0% 0% 

Multiple-dry year                                            
third year supply 

Supply totals1,2 1,304  1,258  1,258  1,258  1,473  
Demand totals2,3,4 1,304  1,258  1,258  1,258  1,473  
Difference 0  0  0  0  0  

Difference as % of Supply 0% 0% 0% 0% 0% 

Difference as % of Demand 0% 0% 0% 0% 0% 

              
1Consider the same sources as in Table 16.  If new sources of water are planned, add a column to the table 
and specify the source, timing, and amount of water. 
2Provide in the text of the UWMP text that discusses how single-dry-year water supply volumes were 
determined. 
3Consider the same demands as in Table 3.  If new water demands are anticipated, add a column to the 
table and specify the source, timing, and amount of water. 
4The urban water target determined in this UWMP will be considered when developing the 2020 water 
demands included in this table.   

 
 

 5-10  Town of Discovery Bay CSD 
2010 Urban Water Management Plan 

Agenda Item F-1



 

Chapter 6  Demand Management Measures 
 

 
6.1 Overview 
 
Demand management measures (DMMs) are mechanisms a water supplier implements to 
improve water conservation and reduce water supply needs of the system. This chapter describes 
the water conservation efforts from TODB in terms of 14 DMMs that are defined in the 2010 
UWMP Guidelines. The plan outlined in this chapter represents TODB’s management tools to 
maximize the local water resources. 
 
The 14 DMMs defined in the 2010 UWMP Guidelines were developed as a coordinated effort by 
DWR, water utilities, environmental organizations and other interested parties throughout 
California. This consensus-building effort resulted in the Memorandum of Understanding 
Regarding Urban Water Conservation in California (MOU), first adopted in 1991 and last 
amended in 2011. The MOU formalizes an agreement by signatory agencies to commit to water 
conservation by implementing DMMs that are economically feasible. The MOU is administered 
by the California Urban Water Conservation Council (CUWCC), which has a Board of Directors 
comprised of representatives from signatory member agencies.  
 
In preparing this section of the 2010 UWMP, CUWCC members have the option of submitting 
their annual reports in lieu of describing DMMs. TODB is not a signatory member and, 
therefore, is providing a detailed description of each DMM as it relates to water conservation 
efforts pursued by TODB.  
 
6.2 Demand Management Measure Implementation 
 
This section provides a comprehensive description of water conservation programs that are 
employed currently and are planned to be implemented in the future. TODB’s water conservation 
programs are described in accordance with the list of 14 DMMs (A - N) in Table 6-1. For each 
DMM there is a description of the measure, the schedule for implementation, steps for 
implementation, methods to evaluate effectiveness and estimated water savings.  
 
TODB is pursuing water conservation programs and DMMs that are economically feasible and 
appropriate for reducing water demand with a goal to meet the 2020 Water Use Targets defined 
in Chapter 3. Not all DMMs are planned to be implemented by TODB, but all DMMs were 
considered by TODB and are discussed. TODB’s objective is to implement measures that will 
have the greatest impact on reducing water consumption within its available financial resources. 
Notably, TODB is planning an aggressive meter retrofit program, under which 3,738 un-metered 

 6-1  Town of Discovery Bay CSD 
2010 Urban Water Management Plan 

Agenda Item F-1



 

connections will be metered by the end of Fiscal 2017-18. The retrofit program will be a key 
DMM to meeting the water use targets. 
 

Table 6-1 
Demand Management Measures 

DMM - A 
Water survey programs for single-family residential and multifamily 
residential customers 

Year Implemented - 
Schedule Ongoing with updates in 2018 after services are retrofitted with meters 

Description TODB provides residents with free home water use auditing at the request 
of customers. Services include leak detection assistance, conservation 
survey of home appliances, recommending repairs, and water use 
efficiency techniques for landscape practices and irrigation timers. During 
a home survey, TODB will identify toilets, washing machines and plumbing 
fixture replacements that could reduce household water use and provide 
residents with estimated water savings. TODB also discusses use of 
weather-based irrigation controllers and how to program irrigation timers.  

Steps to Implement Upon request of the customers, TODB conducts the survey. Results are 
entered into the customer file. 

Methods to Evaluate 
Effectiveness 

For metered customers, the effectiveness is evaluated by comparing 
audited customer’s prior use with use after any water savings changes are 
made. 

Estimated Water 
Savings 

Water saving has not been estimated by this program, however up to 10% 
is anticipated per audited residence depending on the change in practices 
or repairs. 

DMM - B Residential plumbing retrofit 
Year Implemented - 
Schedule N/A 

Description TODB does not have a plumbing retrofit program such as providing low-
flow showerheads or faucet aerator kits to customers. During home water 
surveys (see DMM - A), TODB informs residents and makes 
recommendations for plumbing upgrades that would reduce water 
consumption. Customers would purchase and install upgrades at their own 
cost. Fixtures would be funded by fees charged to all of the residents. 
Approximately 50% of the current homes are pre-1992 (before the Energy 
Policy was enacted) that could potentially result in water savings from 
plumbing retrofits – those customers are identified and notified in the 
public information program (see DMM – G). TODB has not implemented 
this type of program due to cost. Resources are instead being utilized for 
other DMMs such as the meter retrofit program (DMM – D). TODB is on 
schedule to meet its water use targets by implementing other DMMs and 
the WWTP Recycled Water Project discussed in Chapters 3 and 4.  

Steps to Implement TODB does not plan to implement this program. 

Methods to Evaluate 
Effectiveness N/A 

Estimated Water 
Savings N/A 

 6-2  Town of Discovery Bay CSD 
2010 Urban Water Management Plan 

Agenda Item F-1



 

DMM - C System water audits, leak detection, and repair 
Year Implemented - 
Schedule Ongoing with updates in 2018 after services are retrofitted with meters 

Description Currently, TODB visually monitors the system with a focus on areas with 
older pipelines and immediately repairs any leaks that are visually 
identified. Current estimates of water system unaccounted losses range 
from 7-12% of total production, which are attributed to pipe breaks, pipe 
leakage and flushing programs. Whenever pipe leaks are identified and 
repaired, TODB documents and keeps a record of the pipe material, 
condition and location to identify areas of higher failure probability, which 
are used in developing and updating the pipe replacement programs. 
TODB will expand the system water audit capabilities after the meter 
retrofit program (see DMM – D), which is planned to be completed by the 
end of FY 2017-18. Several pipe replacement programs are planned by 
2020 to improve fireflows and reduce leakage. 
 

Steps to Implement 
Monitor areas of higher leak frequency, update pipe replacement program 
as warranted by leak frequency and cause. Update water auditing 
capability after all services are retrofitted with meters (planned by 2017). 

Methods to Evaluate 
Effectiveness 

The effectiveness will be evaluated by tracking leak detection and repair 
and comparing prior water use with water use after repairs are made. 

Estimated Water 
Savings 

Water losses are approximately 7-12% of annual production. It is 
estimated that the leak detection program will improve water losses to 
approximately 6% of annual production based on quantity of mainlines 
planned to be replaced. 

DMM - D 
Metering with commodity rates for all new connections and retrofit of 
existing connections 

Year Implemented - 
Schedule Partially started in 2008, to be reinitiated in 2015 and completed by 2018. 

Description TODB’s program for metering with commodity rates is implemented for 
commercial and landscape accounts. TODB requires all new services be 
installed with a meter. TODB began retrofitting existing residential meters 
in 2008. Currently, approximately 3,738 services are un-metered (64% of 
all services). TODB’s objective is to implement metering with commodity 
rates of all services, starting with a meter retrofit program that will begin in 
July 2015 and ending in June 2018. The metering with commodity rates 
consists of: require meters on new services; establish a program to retrofit 
meters on unmetered services; read meters and bill on volume use; bill bi-
monthly or more frequently; establish a program to test, repair and/or 
replace meters; consider splitting mixed-use commercial and landscape 
meters to have a dedicated landscape meter. 

Steps to Implement Retrofit un-metered connections over a three year implementation 
beginning FY 2015-16 and ending FY 2017-18. Develop commodity rates. 

Methods to Evaluate 
Effectiveness 

Effectiveness will be measured by comparing prior water deliveries to 
future water deliveries. 

 
Estimated Water 
Savings 

Savings cannot be measure yet; however, the CUWCC reports a savings 
of 20% can be realized by retrofitting un-metered services. This DMM is 
integral to meeting the 2020 Water Use Target discussed in Chapter 3, in 
addition to a water use offset from the WWTP Recycled Water Project 
(see Chapters 3 and 4). 

 6-3  Town of Discovery Bay CSD 
2010 Urban Water Management Plan 

Agenda Item F-1



 

DMM – E Large landscape conservation programs and incentives 
Year Implemented - 
Schedule 2015 

Description Most Home Owners Associations (HOA) in the service area utilize 
weather-based landscape irrigation controllers in common landscape 
areas, and TODB has installed weather-based controllers on other large 
landscape irrigation services (such as parks and common area landscapes 
not maintained by private HOA’s). TODB has identified the remaining large 
landscape services that do not have weather based controllers. TODB has 
not conducted ETO-based water use budgets for common landscape 
areas nor has it developed an incentives program to replace existing 
landscaping with low-water use planting.  

Steps to Implement Involve remaining HOAs and TODB properties in implementing weather-
based landscape irrigation controllers.  

Methods to Evaluate 
Effectiveness 

Effectiveness cannot be evaluated on existing services that already have 
weather based landscape irrigation controllers. New retrofits will be 
evaluated by comparing prior water use to future water use after the 
retrofits are made. 

Estimated Water 
Savings 

Retrofitting systems with weather-based controllers will reduce landscape 
consumption, the amount is unknown. 

DMM – F High-efficiency washing machine rebate programs 
Year Implemented - 
Schedule N/A 

Description TODB does not have a rebate program for high-efficiency washers, such 
as incentives or ordinances requiring the purchase of high-efficiency 
clothes washing machines. TODB identified a Pacific Gas & Electric 
(PG&E) rebate program for $150 for qualifying high-efficiency washing 
machines installed between January 1, 2015 and December 31, 2015. No 
separate rebates are being pursued by TODB. During home water survey 
programs (see DMM - A) and as part of the public information program 
(see DMM – G), TODB will inform residents of the PG&E rebate and make 
recommendations for high-efficiency washing machines that would reduce 
water consumption. Under these circumstances, customers would 
purchase the high-efficiency washing machine and apply for the PG&E 
rebate at their own cost. TODB has not implemented any rebates due to 
cost. Resources are instead being utilized for other DMMs such as the 
meter retrofit program (DMM – D). TODB is on schedule to meet its water 
use targets by implementing other DMMs and the WWTP Recycled Water 
Project discussed in Chapters 3 and 4. 

Steps to Implement TODB does not plan to implement this program. 

Methods to Evaluate 
Effectiveness N/A 

 
 
Estimated Water 
Savings 
 

N/A 

 6-4  Town of Discovery Bay CSD 
2010 Urban Water Management Plan 

Agenda Item F-1



 

DMM - G Public information programs 
Year Implemented - 
Schedule 2008 - ongoing 

Description TODB has an ongoing public information program to promote water 
conservation by informing customers about the needs and benefits of 
water conservation. The public information program generally consists of 
the following methods for disseminating information: providing customers 
with bill inserts; using paid public advertising; providing information via a 
link on the TODB website (www.saveourh20.org); providing year-to-year 
comparisons in customer water bills (for those that are metered); sending 
out a newsletter twice per year; and, a portable digital message board that 
is moved throughout town to display water conservation messages and 
information. The digital message board is used to display reminders about 
conservation and setting irrigation timers during summer months, and 
reminders about water use prohibitions during droughts or water 
shortages.  
 
TODB recognizes that social marketing and attitude behavior are 
important factors in reducing water consumption. As a result, messaging 
and public information will need to be continually updated based on public 
input and staff training in water conservation techniques. TODB also seeks 
to improve targeted messaging, such as identifying and contacting the 
residents in pre-1992 homes that could benefit most from specific 
plumbing upgrades. Furthermore, with the retrofit of all un-metered 
connections, TODB will improve the targeted messaging by including 
information and comparison of water use for each resident. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Steps to Implement 
Continue to update customers on water conservation activities and 
improve targeted messaging via the TODB website and the other forms 
discussed above. 

Methods to Evaluate 
Effectiveness Savings cannot be directly quantified. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
Estimated Water 
Savings 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Though it cannot be quantified, these programs likely have already 
reduced annual water consumption and will continue to do so with 
increasing public awareness. 

 6-5  Town of Discovery Bay CSD 
2010 Urban Water Management Plan 

Agenda Item F-1



 

DMM – H School education programs 
Year Implemented - 
Schedule 2016 – ongoing thereafter 

Description TODB intends to develop an education program with local school districts 
in the service area to provide instructional assistance and educational 
materials. The education program will involve explaining how water is 
acquired, stored and treated for consumption and specifically where the 
local water supplies comes from and environmental issues. The materials 
will be developed in coordination with teachers to meet state educational 
framework and grade-appropriate materials. It will start with meeting with 
teachers and school administration and educating the teachers on this 
subject. TODB will work with teachers to develop booklets and 
conservation-related handouts for the students. TODB may also provide 
presentations to students or participate in science fairs. 

 

Steps to Implement Hold workshops with local school administration and teaching staff. 
Develop grade-appropriate material.  

Methods to Evaluate 
Effectiveness Future savings cannot be directly quantified. 

Estimated Water 
Savings Future savings cannot be directly quantified. 

DMM - I 
Conservation programs for commercial, industrial, and institutional 
accounts 

Year Implemented - 
Schedule N/A 

Description TODB does not have any industrial water demand, and the commercial 
and institutional water use is relatively small (less than 4% of total water 
use). TODB is already metering the CII water demands with commodity 
rates. No further programs for CII water reduction are considered due to 
cost and minimal benefits. TODB is on schedule to meet its water use 
targets by implementing other DMMs and the WWTP Recycled Water 
Project (see Chapters 3 and 4). 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Steps to Implement TODB does not plan to implement this program. 

Methods to Evaluate 
Effectiveness N/A 

Estimated Water 
Savings N/A 

 6-6  Town of Discovery Bay CSD 
2010 Urban Water Management Plan 

Agenda Item F-1



 

DMM - J Wholesale agency programs 
Year Implemented - 
Schedule N/A 

Description The district does not have wholesale water exchanges. 

Steps to Implement N/A 

Methods to Evaluate 
Effectiveness N/A 

Estimated Water 
Savings N/A 

DMM - K Conservation pricing 
Year Implemented - 
Schedule June 2018 

Description This measure relates with DMM – D (metering with commodity rates) and 
focuses on setting a rate structure with a price signal to customers to use 
water efficiently. In general, conservation pricing models involve setting a 
commodity rate structure such that a significant portion of the total 
revenues come from the volumetric billing as compared to the fixed rate 
charges. However, each agency is unique in how rates are set and 
professional studies are required to determine the rate case most 
applicable for each agency. TODB will review the rate case and will 
implement a conservation pricing element after the metering retrofit 
program is completed, by 2017. It is unknown if the commodity rate 
structure will be a uniform rate or a tiered rate structure. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
  

Steps to Implement Complete the meter retrofit program. Conduct a rate study and hold public 
meetings to determine the new rate structure. 

Methods to Evaluate 
Effectiveness 

The effectiveness of this DMM will be evaluated during the rate study and 
then assessed after it is implemented by measuring water savings before 
and after the meter retrofit and rate structure changes. 

 
 
Estimated Water 
Savings 
 
 

The water savings for this DMM is part of the water reduction estimated for 
the meter retrofit program (DMM – D). 

 6-7  Town of Discovery Bay CSD 
2010 Urban Water Management Plan 

Agenda Item F-1



 

DMM – L Water conservation coordinator 
Year Implemented - 
Schedule 2015 - Ongoing 

Description TODB has designated a staff member to be responsible for coordinating 
water conservation program management, tracking, planning and reporting 
on the DMM implementation. The designated water conservation 
coordinator is the Water and Wastewater Manager. 

Steps to Implement The water conservation coordinator works with other staff, customers and 
stakeholders to implement the water conservation program. 

Methods to Evaluate 
Effectiveness Water savings cannot be directly measured. 

Estimated Water 
Savings Water savings cannot be directly measured. 

DMM - M Water waste prohibition 
Year Implemented - 
Schedule 2014 - Ongoing 

Description On September 3, 2014, TODB enacted an ordinance on waste prohibition 
and assess fines for repeat offenders (Ordinance No. 25 Establishing 
Emergency Drought Regulations, see Appendix C).  
 
TODB has also established the Water Shortage Contingency Plan in this 
2010 UWMP (Chapter 5) that defines further prohibitions to be 
implemented in the event of a water shortage emergency affecting TODB 
supply wells by up to a 50% reduction.  
 
TODB is considering implementing a landscape ordinance based on the 
State issued Model Water Efficient Landscape Ordinance (MWELO) that 
would require landscape permit, plan check, or design review for new and 
rehabilitated landscape areas that exceed a minimum square footage.  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Steps to Implement 
During a water shortage emergency, waste prohibitions are declared by 
the Board of Directors and administered, implemented and enforced by the 
General Manager.  

Methods to Evaluate 
Effectiveness 

Water savings would be assessed during a water shortage emergency 
based on tracking total production and individual metered accounts. 

 
 
Estimated Water 
Savings 
 
 

Implementing prohibitions will save water from 0-50% when the 
prohibitions are enforced during a water shortage emergency. (see 
Chapter 5) 

 6-8  Town of Discovery Bay CSD 
2010 Urban Water Management Plan 

Agenda Item F-1



 

DMM - N Residential ultra-low-flush toilet replacement programs 
Year Implemented - 
Schedule N/A 

Description TODB does not have an incentive-based program (e.g. rebates) for 
replacing existing toilets with water efficient toilets. These types of 
programs aim at replacing toilets manufactured prior to 1992 (when the 
Energy Policy was enacted) and that use more than 3.5 gallons per flush 
(gpf) with a High-Efficiency Toilet meeting the WaterSense Specification of 
1.28 gpf.  
 
Assuming the average person flushes 5 times per day and there are 2.23 
persons per household in TODB, the average household in TODB can 
save approximately 9,000 gallons per year of water by replacing their pre-
1992 toilets. TODB has approximately 2,900 homes built before 1992; 
however, many of those homes have likely already updated toilets through 
remodels, though the actual number of updated toilets has not been 
determined.  
 
During home water surveys program (see DMM - A) and as part of the 
public information program (see DMM – G), TODB will make 
recommendations for replacing toilets and provide the households with an 
estimated reduction in water use. Customers would purchase at their own 
cost. TODB has not established a rebate-based program due to cost. 
Resources are instead being utilized for other DMMs such as the meter 
retrofit program (DMM – D). TODB is on schedule to meet its water use 
targets by implementing other DMMs and the WWTP Recycled Water 
Project (see Chapters 3 and 4). 

Steps to Implement N/A 

Methods to Evaluate 
Effectiveness N/A 

Estimated Water 
Savings N/A 

 
 
 

 6-9  Town of Discovery Bay CSD 
2010 Urban Water Management Plan 

Agenda Item F-1



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Appendix A 

UWMP Checklist 

  

Agenda Item F-1



Table I-2 Urban Water Management Plan checklist, organized by subject 

No. UWMP requirement a 
Calif. Water 
Code reference Additional clarification UWMP location 

PLAN PREPARATION 

4 Coordinate the preparation of its plan with other appropriate agencies in 
the area, including other water suppliers that share a common source, 
water management agencies, and relevant public agencies, to the extent 
practicable. 

10620(d)(2)  

Section 1.2 

6 Notify, at least 60 days prior to the public hearing on the plan required by 
Section 10642, any city or county within which the supplier provides water 
that the urban water supplier will be reviewing the plan and considering 
amendments or changes to the plan. Any city or county receiving the 
notice may be consulted and provide comments. 

10621(b)  

Section 1.2  
Section 1.3 

7 Provide supporting documentation that the UWMP or any amendments to, 
or changes in, have been adopted as described in Section 10640 et seq. 

10621(c)  Section 1.3 
54 Provide supporting documentation that the urban water management plan 

has been or will be provided to any city or county within which it provides 
water, no later than 60 days after the submission of this urban water 
management plan. 

10635(b)   

Section 1.3 

55 Provide supporting documentation that the water supplier has encouraged 
active involvement of diverse social, cultural, and economic elements of 
the population within the service area prior to and during the preparation 
of the plan. 

10642  

Section 1.2 

56 Provide supporting documentation that the urban water supplier made the 
plan available for public inspection and held a public hearing about the 
plan. For public agencies, the hearing notice is to be provided pursuant to 
Section 6066 of the Government Code. The water supplier is to provide 
the time and place of the hearing to any city or county within which the 
supplier provides water. Privately-owned water suppliers shall provide an 
equivalent notice within its service area. 

10642  

Section 1.3 

57 Provide supporting documentation that the plan has been adopted as 
prepared or modified. 

10642  Section 1.3 
58 Provide supporting documentation as to how the water supplier plans to 

implement its plan. 
10643  Section 1.3 

1 
 

Agenda Item F-1



No. UWMP requirement a 
Calif. Water 
Code reference Additional clarification UWMP location 

59 Provide supporting documentation that, in addition to submittal to DWR, 
the urban water supplier has submitted this UWMP to the California State 
Library and any city or county within which the supplier provides water 
supplies a copy of its plan no later than 30 days after adoption. This also 
includes amendments or changes. 

10644(a)  

Section 1.3 

60 Provide supporting documentation that, not later than 30 days after filing a 
copy of its plan with the department, the urban water supplier has or will 
make the plan available for public review during normal business hours 

10645  
Section 1.3 

SYSTEM DESCRIPTION 

8 Describe the water supplier service area.  10631(a)  Section 2.1 
Section 2.2 

9 Describe the climate and other demographic factors of the service area of 
the supplier 

10631(a)  Section 2.3 
10 Indicate the current population of the service area  10631(a) Provide the most recent 

population data possible. Use 
the method described in 
“Baseline Daily Per Capita 
Water Use.” See Section M. 

Section 2.4 

11 Provide population projections for 2015, 2020, 2025, and 2030, based on 
data from State, regional, or local service area population projections.  

10631(a) 2035 and 2040 can also be 
provided to support consistency 
with Water Supply Assessments 
and Written Verification of 
Water Supply documents. 

Section 2.4 

12 Describe other demographic factors affecting the supplier’s water 
management planning. 

10631(a)  Section 2.4 

SYSTEM DEMANDS 

1 Provide baseline daily per capita water use, urban water use target, 
interim urban water use target, and compliance daily per capita water use, 
along with the bases for determining those estimates, including 
references to supporting data.  

10608.20(e)  
Section 3.1 
Section 3.2 

2 
 

Agenda Item F-1



No. UWMP requirement a 
Calif. Water 
Code reference Additional clarification UWMP location 

2 Wholesalers: Include an assessment of present and proposed future 
measures, programs, and policies to help achieve the water use 
reductions.  Retailers: Conduct at least one public hearing that includes 
general discussion of the urban retail water supplier’s implementation plan 
for complying with the Water Conservation Bill of 2009.  

10608.36 
10608.26(a) 

Retailers and wholesalers have 
slightly different requirements 

Section 1.3 

3 Report progress in meeting urban water use targets using the 
standardized form.  

10608.40 (form not yet available) Section 3.2 
25 Quantify past, current, and projected water use, identifying the uses 

among water use sectors, for the following: (A) single-family residential, 
(B) multifamily, (C) commercial, (D) industrial, (E) institutional and 
governmental, (F) landscape, (G) sales to other agencies, (H) saline 
water intrusion barriers, groundwater recharge, conjunctive use, and (I) 
agriculture. 

10631(e)(1) Consider ‘past’ to be 2005, 
present to be 2010, and 
projected to be 2015, 2020, 
2025, and 2030. Provide 
numbers for each category for 
each of these years. 

Section 3.3 
Section 3.4 
Section 3.7 
Section 3.8 

33 Provide documentation that either the retail agency provided the 
wholesale agency with water use projections for at least 20 years, if the 
UWMP agency is a retail agency, OR, if a wholesale agency, it provided 
its urban retail customers with future planned and existing water source 
available to it from the wholesale agency during the required water-year 
types  

10631(k) Average year, single dry year, 
multiple dry years for 2015, 
2020, 2025, and 2030. Not Applicable 

(Section 3.6) 

34 Include projected water use for single-family and multifamily residential 
housing needed for lower income households, as identified in the housing 
element of any city, county, or city and county in the service area of the 
supplier. 

10631.1(a)  

Section 3.5 

SYSTEM SUPPLIES 
13 Identify and quantify the existing and planned sources of water available 

for 2015, 2020, 2025, and 2030. 
10631(b) The ‘existing’ water sources 

should be for the same year as 
the “current population” in line 
10. 2035 and 2040 can also be 
provided. 

Section 4.1 

14 Indicate whether groundwater is an existing or planned source of water 
available to the supplier. If yes, then complete 15 through 21 of the 
UWMP Checklist. If no, then indicate “not applicable” in lines 15 through 
21 under the UWMP location column.  

10631(b) Source classifications are: 
surface water, groundwater, 
recycled water, storm water, 
desalinated sea water, 
desalinated brackish 
groundwater, and other. 

Section 4.1 

3 
 

Agenda Item F-1



No. UWMP requirement a 
Calif. Water 
Code reference Additional clarification UWMP location 

15 Indicate whether a groundwater management plan been adopted by the 
water supplier or if there is any other specific authorization for 
groundwater management. Include a copy of the plan or authorization. 

10631(b)(1)  
Section 4.2 

16 Describe the groundwater basin. 10631(b)(2)  Section 4.2 
17 Indicate whether the groundwater basin is adjudicated? Include a copy of 

the court order or decree. 
10631(b)(2)  Section 4.1 

18 Describe the amount of groundwater the urban water supplier has the 
legal right to pump under the order or decree. If the basin is not 
adjudicated, indicate “not applicable” in the UWMP location column. 

10631(b)(2)  Not Applicable 
(Section 4.2) 

19 For groundwater basins that are not adjudicated, provide information as to 
whether DWR has identified the basin or basins as overdrafted or has 
projected that the basin will become overdrafted if present management 
conditions continue, in the most current official departmental bulletin that 
characterizes the condition of the groundwater basin, and a detailed 
description of the efforts being undertaken by the urban water supplier to 
eliminate the long-term overdraft condition. If the basin is adjudicated, 
indicate “not applicable” in the UWMP location column.  

10631(b)(2)  

Section 4.1 

20 Provide a detailed description and analysis of the location, amount, and 
sufficiency of groundwater pumped by the urban water supplier for the 
past five years 

10631(b)(3)  
Section 4.2.4 

21 Provide a detailed description and analysis of the amount and location of 
groundwater that is projected to be pumped. 

10631(b)(4) Provide projections for 2015, 
2020, 2025, and 2030. Section 4.2.4 

24 Describe the opportunities for exchanges or transfers of water on a short-
term or long-term basis. 

10631(d)  Not Applicable 
(Section 4.3) 

30 Include a detailed description of all water supply projects and programs 
that may be undertaken by the water supplier to address water supply 
reliability in average, single-dry, and multiple-dry years, excluding demand 
management programs addressed in (f)(1). Include specific projects, 
describe water supply impacts, and provide a timeline for each project. 

10631(h)  

Not Applicable  
(Section 4.6) 

31 Describe desalinated water project opportunities for long-term supply, 
including, but not limited to, ocean water, brackish water, and 
groundwater.  

10631(i)  Not Applicable 
(Section 4.4) 

4 
 

Agenda Item F-1



No. UWMP requirement a 
Calif. Water 
Code reference Additional clarification UWMP location 

44 Provide information on recycled water and its potential for use as a water 
source in the service area of the urban water supplier. Coordinate with 
local water, wastewater, groundwater, and planning agencies that operate 
within the supplier's service area. 

10633  

Section 4.5 

45 Describe the wastewater collection and treatment systems in the 
supplier's service area, including a quantification of the amount of 
wastewater collected and treated and the methods of wastewater 
disposal. 

10633(a)  

Section 4.5.1 

46 Describe the quantity of treated wastewater that meets recycled water 
standards, is being discharged, and is otherwise available for use in a 
recycled water project. 

10633(b)  
Section 4.5.2 

47 Describe the recycled water currently being used in the supplier's service 
area, including, but not limited to, the type, place, and quantity of use. 

10633(c)  Section 4.5.3 
48 Describe and quantify the potential uses of recycled water, including, but 

not limited to, agricultural irrigation, landscape irrigation, wildlife habitat 
enhancement, wetlands, industrial reuse, groundwater recharge, indirect 
potable reuse, and other appropriate uses, and a determination with 
regard to the technical and economic feasibility of serving those uses. 

10633(d)  

Section 4.5.3 

49 The projected use of recycled water within the supplier's service area at 
the end of 5, 10, 15, and 20 years, and a description of the actual use of 
recycled water in comparison to uses previously projected. 

10633(e)  
Section 4.5.3 

50 Describe the actions, including financial incentives, which may be taken to 
encourage the use of recycled water, and the projected results of these 
actions in terms of acre-feet of recycled water used per year. 

10633(f)  
Section 4.5.4 

51 Provide a plan for optimizing the use of recycled water in the supplier's 
service area, including actions to facilitate the installation of dual 
distribution systems, to promote recirculating uses, to facilitate the 
increased use of treated wastewater that meets recycled water standards, 
and to overcome any obstacles to achieving that increased use. 

10633(g)  

Section 4.5.5 

WATER SHORTAGE RELIABILITY AND WATER SHORTAGE CONTINGENCY PLANNING b 

5 Describe water management tools and options to maximize resources 
and minimize the need to import water from other regions. 

10620(f)  Section 6.1 
22 Describe the reliability of the water supply and vulnerability to seasonal or 

climatic shortage and provide data for (A) an average water year, (B) a 
single dry water year, and (C) multiple dry water years. 

10631(c)(1)  
Section 5.4 

5 
 

Agenda Item F-1



No. UWMP requirement a 
Calif. Water 
Code reference Additional clarification UWMP location 

23 For any water source that may not be available at a consistent level of 
use - given specific legal, environmental, water quality, or climatic factors 
- describe plans to supplement or replace that source with alternative 
sources or water demand management measures, to the extent 
practicable. 

10631(c)(2)  

Section 5.1 

35 Provide an urban water shortage contingency analysis that specifies 
stages of action, including up to a 50-percent water supply reduction, and 
an outline of specific water supply conditions at each stage 

10632(a)  
Section 5.2 

36 Provide an estimate of the minimum water supply available during each of 
the next three water years based on the driest three-year historic 
sequence for the agency's water supply. 

10632(b)  
Section 5.4.2 

37 Identify actions to be undertaken by the urban water supplier to prepare 
for, and implement during, a catastrophic interruption of water supplies 
including, but not limited to, a regional power outage, an earthquake, or 
other disaster. 

10632(c)  

Section 5.2.6 

38 Identify additional, mandatory prohibitions against specific water use 
practices during water shortages, including, but not limited to, prohibiting 
the use of potable water for street cleaning. 

10632(d)  
Section 5.2.2 

39 Specify consumption reduction methods in the most restrictive stages. 
Each urban water supplier may use any type of consumption reduction 
methods in its water shortage contingency analysis that would reduce 
water use, are appropriate for its area, and have the ability to achieve a 
water use reduction consistent with up to a 50 percent reduction in water 
supply. 

10632(e)  

Section 5.2.3 

40 Indicated penalties or charges for excessive use, where applicable. 10632(f)  Section 5.2.4 
41 Provide an analysis of the impacts of each of the actions and conditions 

described in subdivisions (a) to (f), inclusive, on the revenues and 
expenditures of the urban water supplier, and proposed measures to 
overcome those impacts, such as the development of reserves and rate 
adjustments.  

10632(g)  

Section 5.2.5 

42 Provide a draft water shortage contingency resolution or ordinance. 10632(h)  Appendix C.1 
43 Indicate a mechanism for determining actual reductions in water use 

pursuant to the urban water shortage contingency analysis. 
10632(i)  Section 5.4.3 

6 
 

Agenda Item F-1



No. UWMP requirement a 
Calif. Water 
Code reference Additional clarification UWMP location 

52 Provide information, to the extent practicable, relating to the quality of 
existing sources of water available to the supplier over the same five-year 
increments, and the manner in which water quality affects water 
management strategies and supply reliability 

10634 For years 2010, 2015, 2020, 
2025, and 2030 Section 5.3 

53 Assess the water supply reliability during normal, dry, and multiple dry 
water years by comparing the total water supply sources available to the 
water supplier with the total projected water use over the next 20 years, in 
five-year increments, for a normal water year, a single dry water year, and 
multiple dry water years. Base the assessment on the information 
compiled under Section 10631, including available data from state, 
regional, or local agency population projections within the service area of 
the urban water supplier. 

10635(a)   

Section 5.4.4 

DEMAND MANAGEMENT MEASURES 
26 Describe how each water demand management measures is being 

implemented or scheduled for implementation. Use the list provided. 
10631(f)(1) Discuss each DMM, even if it is 

not currently or planned for 
implementation. Provide any 
appropriate schedules. 

Section 6.2 

27 Describe the methods the supplier uses to evaluate the effectiveness of 
DMMs implemented or described in the UWMP.  

10631(f)(3)  Section 6.2 
28 Provide an estimate, if available, of existing conservation savings on 

water use within the supplier's service area, and the effect of the savings 
on the ability to further reduce demand. 

10631(f)(4)  
Section 6.2 

29 Evaluate each water demand management measure that is not currently 
being implemented or scheduled for implementation. The evaluation 
should include economic and non-economic factors, cost-benefit analysis, 
available funding, and the water suppliers' legal authority to implement the 
work.  

10631(g) See 10631(g) for additional 
wording. 

Section 6.2 

32 Include the annual reports submitted to meet the Section 6.2 
requirements, if a member of the CUWCC and signer of the December 
10, 2008 MOU. 

10631(j) Signers of the MOU that submit 
the annual reports are deemed 
compliant with Items 28 and 29. 

Not Applicable  
(Section 6.1) 

a The UWMP Requirement descriptions are general summaries of what is provided in the legislation. Urban water suppliers should review the exact legislative wording prior to 
submitting its UWMP. 

b The Subject classification is provided for clarification only. It is aligned with the organization presented in Part I of this guidebook. A water supplier is free to address the UWMP 
Requirement anywhere with its UWMP, but is urged to provide clarification to DWR to facilitate review.  

 

7 
 

Agenda Item F-1



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Appendix B 

Coordination and Adoption: Notices to Agencies of 
Public Hearing, Resolution to Adopt UWMP 

(NOT INCLUDED IN DRAFT) 

  

Agenda Item F-1



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Appendix C 

Water Conservation Ordinances 

 

C.1 Draft Water Shortage Contingency Resolution 

C.2 Resolution 2014-11 - Voluntary Water Reduction 

C.3 Ordinance No.25 – Establishing Emergency Drought Regulations 

Agenda Item F-1



Appendix C.1 
 

TOWN OF DISCOVERY BAY 
COMMUNITY SERVICES DISTRICT 

 
RESOLUTION __________ 

 
A RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF THE TOWN OF DISCOVERY BAY, 

A CALIFORNIA COMMUNITY SERVICES DISTRICT, 
ON THE IMPLEMENTATION OF STAGE [II, III, OR IV] OF THE WATER SHORTAGE 

CONTINGENCY PLAN AS OUTLINED IN THE 2010 URBAN WATER MANAGEMENT PLAN 
ON FILE WITH THE CALIFORNIA DEPARTMENT OF WATER RESOURCES 

 
 WHEREAS, on [DATE], by Resolution ______________, The Board of Directors of the Town of 
Discovery Bay Community Services District approved the 2010 Urban Water Management Plan; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the 2010 Urban Water Management Plan includes the Water Shortage Contingency 
Plan; and 
 
 WHEREAS, based on the [describe water supply shortage condition caused by drought or loss of 
water supply wells] the Board of Directors of the Town of Discovery Bay Community Services District 
hereby declares that a water shortage emergency condition prevails within the water service area of the 
Town of Discovery Bay and that water use within the Town of Discovery Bay should be reduced by up to 
[15, 35 or 50] percent; and 
 
 WHEREAS, required water use reduction described above necessitates implementation of Stage 
[II, III, or IV] of the Town of Discovery Bay’s Water Shortage Contingency Plan. The water conservation 
measures and water use restrictions for Stage [II, III or IV] are described in the attached Water Shortage 
Contingency Plan. Implementation of Stage [II, III or IV] shall be cumulative and shall include 
implementation of all previous provisions listed in Stages [I, II, or III]; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the General Manager is hereby authorized and empowered to delegate his or her 
authority hereunder to such assistants, deputies, officers, employees, or agents of the Town as he or she 
shall designate, and to establish such rules, regulations and procedures, and to prepare or furnish such 
forms, as he or she deems necessary or appropriate to carry out the provisions of the Resolution; and 
 
 WHEREAS, this Resolution shall be effective upon its adoption, and shall remain effective until 
the water shortage conditions are resolved, in which case this Resolution shall be rescinded, or until 
conditions worsen, thus requiring additional action by the Board of Directors, in which case a subsequent 
Resolution will be considered for adoption. 
 
 NOW, THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED by the Board of Directors of the Town of Discovery Bay 
that Stage [II, III, or IV] of the Water Shortage Contingency Plan is hereby adopted. 
 
 PASSED, APPROVED AND ADOPTED THIS [day] DAY OF [month], [year] by the following 
vote: 
 

Agenda Item F-1



 
Water Shortage Contingency Plan 

 
Table of Contents 

 
Section 1 Stages of Action 
Section 2 Prohibitions 
Section 3 Consumption Reduction Methods 
Section 4 Penalties 
Section 5 Revenue and Expenditure Impacts During Water Shortages 
Section 6 Other Actions During Catastrophic Reductions 
 

List of Tables 
 

1. Rationing Stages to address water Supply Shortages 
2. Mandatory Prohibitions 
3. Proposed Consumption Reduction Methods 
4. Penalties and Charges 

 
Attachments 

 
1. Resolution 2014-11 – Voluntary Water Reduction (Appendix C.2) 
2. Ordinance No. 25 Establishing Emergency Drought Regulations (Appendix C.3) 

 
 
  

Agenda Item F-1



This document outlines stages of actions that will be implemented by TODB in the event of 
water supply shortages and emergency preparedness and plans for catastrophic events. The 
purpose of this contingency plan is to provide a plan of action to be followed at the various 
stages of a water shortage. A copy of TODB’s current water reduction ordinances and 
resolutions, are in Appendix C.2 and C.3. 
 
Section 1 Stages of Action 
 
CWC Section 10632 (a) requires stages of action to be undertaken by the water supplier in 
response to water supply shortages, including up to a 50-percent reduction in water supply, and 
an outline of specific water supply conditions which are applicable to each stage.  
 
TODB will implement a four-stage action in response to water supply shortages to comply with 
State requirements. The stages will be implemented during water supply shortages, or regional 
drought conditions that may not be directly influencing TODB water supplies. The stage 
determination and declaration of a water supply shortage will be made by the TODB Board of 
Directors. 
 

Stage I – This stage is part of an ongoing public information campaign encouraging 
voluntary water conservation. TODB issued a resolution for voluntary water use in 
Resolution 2014-11 – Voluntary Water Reduction (Appendix C.2). There is little to no 
water shortage during Stage 1. Although Stage I is ongoing, customers are reminded when 
a regional single-year drought is occurring , or when TODB has a redundant back-up well 
offline for repairs, which makes the overall supply system more vulnerable to shortages. 
 
Stage II – This stage would be initiated during moderate water shortage (of up to 15%) 
and would be the first stage where mandatory conservation and water use prohibitions are 
enforced. Failure of two groundwater supply wells could cause a moderate reduction in 
water supply resulting in implementation of Stage II. Stage II would also be implemented 
during a regional severe drought where water conservation is mandatory but impacts to 
TODB’s groundwater supply wells are negligible or non-existent. During Stage II the 
Board of Directors will declare prohibitions on water use, in accordance with the TODB 
Ordinance No. 25 Establishing Emergency Drought Regulations (Appendix C.3).  
 
Stage III – This stage would be initiated during a severe water shortage (15 to 35%), 
which could be caused by a catastrophic failure of up to three groundwater supply wells.  
During Stage III, the Board of Directors would adopt a new ordinance providing authority 
for the General Manager to implement additional prohibitions and consumption reduction 
methods that would include water rationing if other consumption reduction methods are 
not effective at reducing demand.  

Agenda Item F-1



 
Stage IV – This stage would be initiated during a critical water shortage (35 to 50%), 
which could be caused by a catastrophic failure of more than three groundwater supply 
wells.  All steps taken in the prior stages would be intensified and production would be 
monitored daily for compliance with necessary reductions. Residents would be under 
water rationing. TODB would be in emergency status to repair and bring online water 
supply wells.  
 

Table 1 lists the four stages of action for the water shortage contingency.  
 

Table 1 

Rationing Stages to Address Water Supply Shortages 
Stage No. Water Supply Conditions  % Shortage 

I - Voluntary Normal to Minimum –  
Ex: loss of a redundant  well supply 

0-5% 

II – Mandatory 
Conservation 

Moderate –  
Ex: Severe drought or catastrophic loss of 2 wells 0-15% 

III - Rationing 
Severe to Critical –  
Ex: Catastrophic loss of 3 wells 15-35% 

IV – Intense 
Rationing 

Severe to Critical –  
Ex: Catastrophic loss of 3 or more wells 35-50% 

            
 
 
Section 2 Prohibitions 
 
The CWC Section 10632 (d) requires water suppliers to implement mandatory prohibitions 
against specific water use practices that may be considered excessive during water shortages. If 
drought conditions or water shortages warrant mandatory prohibitions (Stage II) TODB will 
implement the current water shortage emergency response plan, Ordinance No. 25 Establishing 
Emergency Drought Regulations (Appendix C.3). Further mandatory prohibitions will be 
implemented if warranted based on Stage III or Stage IV conditions.  Table 2 identifies potential 
prohibitions that would be enforced during a water shortage emergency. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Agenda Item F-1



Table 2 

Mandatory Prohibitions 

Prohibitions 

Stage When 
Prohibition 
Becomes 

Mandatory 
Excessive outdoor watering (causing runoff to non-irrigated areas) II, III, IV 

Use of hose without a shut-off nozzle for vehicle washing II, III, IV 

Application of water to driveways or sidewalks II, III, IV 

Use of water in non-circulating fountain or water feature II, III, IV 

Outdoor irrigation beyond the allowed watering schedule II, III, IV 

Uncorrected plumbing leaks III, IV 

Washing cars III, IV 

Watering lawns/landscapes or filling outdoor water features III, IV 

 
 
Section 3 Consumption Reduction Methods 
 
CWC Section 10632 (e) requires the water supplier to implement consumption-reduction 
methods during the most severe stages of water shortage that are capable of reducing water use 
by up to 50%. TODB would implement the water consumption–reduction methods shown on 
Table 3, below. Some of the methods are on-going and are part of the TODB water conservation 
efforts addressed in the Demand Management Measures. 
 

Table 3 

 Proposed Consumption Reduction Methods 

Consumption  
 Reduction Methods 

 Stage 
When 

Method 
Takes 
Effect 

Projected 
Reduction       

(%) 

Demand Reduction Program All stages 10-20% 

Water conservation kits All stages 10-20% 

Education programs All stages 10-20% 

Voluntary rationing All stages 0-20% 

Mandatory prohibitions II, III, IV 10-20% 

Apply flow restrictions to customers III, IV 35-50% 

Water shortage pricing III, IV 10-50% 

Apply penalties for excessive water use II, III, IV 10-50% 

Restrict water use for only priority uses  III, IV 10-50% 

Mandatory water rationing, per capita allotment IV 20-50% 

 

Agenda Item F-1



 
Section 4 Penalties 
 
CWC Section 10632 (f) requires a water supplier to penalize or charge for excessive use, where 
applicable. In accordance with the TODB Ordinance No. 25, when a water shortage emergency 
is declared, the General Manager may issue a Notice of Violation to any customer that fails to 
comply with the conditions of the ordinance. After one notice has been issued further violations 
shall be punishable by a fine of: $25 for a first violation; $50 for a second violation; $100 for a 
third violation; and $500 for a fourth violation and any subsequent violation thereafter. 
Furthermore each day upon which any condition of the ordinance is violated constitutes a 
separate violation.  
 
During severe and critical water shortages (Stages III and IV), there will be additional charges 
applied for excessive water use. During these water shortages, the General Manager may take 
further actions if violations continue after the one written warning, such as installing a flow-
restricting device on the service line, or termination of service for repeated violations of 
unauthorized water use. Table 4 presents the stages during which penalties and charges take 
effect. 
 

Table 4 

 Water shortage contingency — penalties and charges 

Penalties or Charges  Stage When Penalty Takes 
Effect 

Penalty for excess use II, III, IV 

Charge for excess use III, IV 

Flow Restriction III, IV 

Termination of Service III, IV 

 
 
Section 5 Revenue and Expenditure Impacts During Water Shortages 
 
CWC Section 10632 (f) requires an analysis of the impacts of consumption reduction on the 
revenues and expenditures of the water supplier. TODB will establish an accounting for tracking 
expenses and revenue shortfalls associated with water conservation and rationing. TODB 
maintains reserve funds that can be used to offset expenditure impacts during times of 
emergency. TODB will implement a surcharge to recover unmitigated revenue shortfalls.  
 
 
 

Agenda Item F-1



Section 6 Other Actions During Catastrophic Reductions 
 
In the event of catastrophic reduction in water supplies, TODB would implement emergency 
preparedness plans, depending on the cause and severity of the water shortage. California Water 
Code (CWC) Section 10632 (c) requires certain actions to be undertaken by the water supplier 
during a catastrophic interruption in water supplies. A catastrophic event resulting in water 
shortage would be any event, either natural or man-made, with varying levels of severity to the 
water supply conditions. Examples include, but are not limited to, a regional power outage, an 
earthquake, or other disasters. 
 
TODB has in place an Emergency Operations Plan that would be implemented by the TODB 
staff in the event of a catastrophic water shortage. TODB has equipped its facilities with standby 
emergency generators that would be operated if the catastrophic event involved loss of power. 
Both of the water treatment plants and booster stations are equipped with permanent emergency 
generators and automatic transfer switches. TODB owns portable generators that can be used to 
operate the groundwater pumping stations. If there is catastrophic rupturing of pipelines, during 
an earthquake for example, the emergency operations procedures would be followed to isolate 
the damaged sections, notify customers and immediately repair the damage. 
 

Agenda Item F-1



Agenda Item F-1



Agenda Item F-1



Agenda Item F-1



 
 

 

 

Town of Discovery Bay  
“A Community Services District” 

AGENDA REPORT 

 
 

Meeting Date 
 
 

April 14, 2015 

 
Prepared By: Rick Howard, General Manager 
Submitted By: Rick Howard, General Manager  
  
Agenda Title 
 
Groundwater Sustainability Plan Proposal for Services 
 
 
Recommended Action 
 
Approve expenditure with Luhdorff and Scalmanini Consulting Engineers in the amount of $23,658.40 to conduct 
technical support for planning and compliance with the Sustainable Groundwater Management Act of 2014 (Act)and 
authorize the General Manager to execute all contract documents 
 
 
Executive Summary 
 
In 2014 the state of California rolled out new regulations affecting all water users that utilize groundwater for their 
service needs.  The Town of Discovery Bay is the only water agency within the Tracy Subbasin (TSB) that relies 
wholly on groundwater to serve the 14,000+/- residents of the Town. Groundwater is pumped to the community 
through a series of 5 wells, with a 6

th
 well expected to be on line later this summer. 

 
The water is pumped from an aquifer that is part of the much larger TSB.  Within the TSB, there are three sub-areas 
with distinct groundwater features. The subareas include the portions of the TSB basin in East Contra Costa County 
(ECCC), San Joaquin County, and a region known as the Delta Islands. 
 
In developing the Act, the State placed an emphasis on “Local Control”, and the need to manage groundwater 
supplies in a manner that best fits the needs of local users and stakeholders, or in this case, the ECCC water 
agencies responsible for water supply in the area. 
 
The scope of the work will allow for the 5 East Contra Costa County water agencies (City of Brentwood, Town of 
Discovery Bay, Diablo Water District, East Contra Costa Irrigation District, and Byron Bethany Irrigation District) to 
make better and more informed decisions with regard to local and regional water interests in the formation of a 
Groundwater Sustainability Agency (GSA) and preparation of a Groundwater Sustainability Plan (GSP) which are 
required as a part of the Act. The work is also intended to preserve local control of groundwater resources by the 
East County Parties to the extent applicable under the legislation. 
 
The five General Managers of the water agencies noted above have spent a considerable amount of time assessing 
the “local control” aspects of the Plan and are unified in the desire to maintain local control. Also, the scope of work 
will also explore the possibility of submitting proposed basin boundary changes to the state (resulting in a basin 
managed entirely by the ECCC agencies, as well as the County), as well as an alternative submittal showing that 
sustainable conditions exist and thereby avoid some of the requirements under the Act.  Consequently, it was the 
goal of the ECCC agencies that the proposal as presented by Luhdorff and Scalmanini be split equally between the 5 
parties.  Contra Costa County will provide in-kind assistance and participate in the effort; however, they will not 
participate as an equity partner. The proposal is submitted in the amount of $118,292, or $23,654.80 per agency. 
 
It is important that the Town maintain local control over the water serving Discovery Bay, and that other public 
agencies that do not have the same or similar interests as the ECCC agencies not have the ability to influence or 
mandate policies affecting the ECCC water agencies. 
 

“Continued to the next page” 

Cinderella
Stamp



 
 

 
 
Fiscal Impact:  
 

Amount Requested  $23,654.80 
Sufficient Budgeted Funds Available?:  No. 

 Prog/Fund #      Category:  Pers.     Optg.   X Reserves Cap.       -or-   CIP#      Fund# 
 

Previous Relevant Board Actions for This Item 
N/A 
   
Attachments 
 
L&S Proposal for Services 
 

 

AGENDA ITEM: F-2 



 

PROPOSAL  
 
 
 
 
 

SUSTAINABLE GROUNDWATER MANAGEMENT ACT OF 2014 
TECHNICAL SUPPORT FOR PLANNING AND COMPLIANCE 
 
 
Prepared for: Byron-Bethany Irrigation District 

City of Brentwood 
Contra Costa County 
Diablo Water District 
East Contra Costa Irrigation District 
Town of Discovery Bay  

 
Date: April 1, 2015 

 

Luhdorff & Scalmanini Consulting Engineers, Inc. (LSCE) is pleased to submit a scope and 
budget to provide technical assistance for planning and compliance with the 2014 Sustainable 
Groundwater Management Act (SGMA). The proposed work will provide for informed decisions 
by east Contra Costa County water entities for which this proposal is prepared (East County 
Parties) to participate with other local and regional water interests in the formation of a 
Groundwater Sustainability Agency (GSA) and preparation of a Groundwater Sustainability Plan 
(GSP) as required under the Act. The work is also intended to preserve local control of 
groundwater resources by the East County Parties to the extent applicable under the legislation. 
 
The technical work in this proposal addresses two issues discussed at a planning meeting of the 
East County Parties on December 18, 2014: 
 

1. The applicability of current Department of Water Resources (DWR) Bulletin 118 
subbasin boundaries, which govern GSA formation and GSP development.  

2. The applicability of an alternative GSP submittal for the East Contra Costa County 
portion of the Tracy Subbasin satisfying the requirement of operating within a sustainable 
yield for at least 10 years.  

 
Regarding the first issue, groundwater occurrence in the east Contra Costa county area has 
generally exhibited characteristics independent of the greater Tracy subbasin boundaries 
published in DWR Bulletin 118, which govern GSA formation and GSP preparation. The East 
County Parties wish to understand options for seeking subbasin boundary revisions for the Tracy 
Subbasin as provided in the SGMA. Regarding the second issue, it is the general experience of 
local groundwater users that current groundwater pumping is sustainable. Therefore, the East 

Agenda Item F-2



SUSTAINABLE GROUNDWATER MANAGEMENT ACT OF 2014 
TECHNICAL SUPPORT FOR PLANNING AND COMPLIANCE 

April 1, 2015 
 
 

 

 
Page 2 

 

County Parties wish to determine whether it is feasible, or desirable, to prepare an alternative 
GSP submittal, also as provided in the SGMA. 
 
The SGMA provides a timeline for the development and implementation of sustainable 
management plans in all groundwater basins in the state. The proposed work will be conducted 
prior to adoption of comprehensive regulations governing GSA formation and GSP plan 
implementation. By performing the work in advance of final guidelines, the East County Parties 
will have a technical basis for decisions that will be required under the Act; namely, formation of 
a GSA and defining GSP areas. Relevant SGMA milestones include: 
 

Date Milestone 

Mid-2015 DWR comment period for  regulations for basin boundary revisions 

January 1, 2016 DWR adopts regulations for basin boundary revisions 

June 1, 2016 

DWR adopts regulations for:  

1. Evaluating and implementing GSPs 
2. Regulations for coordinating agreements 
3. Regulations for evaluating alternative submittals 

January 1, 2017 Alternative submittals due 

2017 
DWR publishes Bulletin 118 Interim Update with updated basin 
boundaries and basin priorities 

June 30, 2017 GSAs established for all high- and medium-priority basins 

January 31, 2020 
High- and medium-priority basins subject to critical conditions of 
overdraft must be managed under GSP 

January 31, 2022 All high- and medium-priority basins must be managed under GSP 

    
The SGMA also requires engagement with interested parties, defined as all beneficial users of 
groundwater, to ensure that existing water rights are preserved and that local knowledge and 
experience are considered in GSP development. To address this requirement, the proposed work 
includes a communication plan to engage local interested parties in east Contra Costa County as 
well as water entities in the greater subbasin. 
 

Background   
The general experience of the East County Parties is that local groundwater conditions are stable 
and that usage is within the sustainable yield of the groundwater system. Sustainable yield is 
defined in the SGMA as: 
 

“...the maximum quantity of water, calculated over a base period representative of long-
term conditions in the basin and including any temporary surplus, that can be withdrawn 
annually from a groundwater supply without causing an undesirable result.” 

  

Agenda Item F-2



SUSTAINABLE GROUNDWATER MANAGEMENT ACT OF 2014 
TECHNICAL SUPPORT FOR PLANNING AND COMPLIANCE 

April 1, 2015 
 
 

 

 
Page 3 

 

An “undesirable result” is one or more adverse effects that include 1) chronic lowering of 
groundwater levels, 2) significant and unreasonable reduction of groundwater storage, 3) 
seawater intrusion, 4) degraded water quality, 5) significant and unreasonable land subsidence, 
and 6) adverse depletions of interconnected surface water. 
 
As supported by a number of reports by East County Parties including the 2007 AB3030 
Groundwater Management Plan (Lead Agency, Diablo Water District), a 2011 groundwater 
monitoring update, and a 2014 updated CASGEM plan, there is no evidence of conditions 
leading to undesirable results in the east Contra Costa County area. However, the SGMA 
requires sustainability planning to account for growth over an extended planning horizon of 50 
years. Therefore, it is imperative that water agencies and interested parties develop: 
 

 a robust hydrogeologic conceptualization to guide groundwater use, development, and 
protection; 

 a water budget to identify relevant inputs and outputs of the system, and 

 current and ongoing demonstration of sustainability through appropriate data collection, 
monitoring, and reporting.  

 
The above elements will be required in GSPs, though detailed criteria will not be adopted until 
2016 and 2017. Preliminarily, planning should consider current DWR basin boundaries 
published in DWR Bulletin 118. The East County Parties reside in the Tracy Subbasin, which 
includes portions of San Joaquin County to the east and south. Bulletin 118 states that current 
boundaries are based on best available information, but it also states that local agencies may have 
more relevant data and information concerning local boundaries. As a result, a provision of the 
SGMA enables local parties to seek boundary adjustments if appropriate criteria are met. 
 
The schedule for GSP implementation focuses on high- and medium-ranked groundwater basins 
subject to critical conditions of overdraft (GSP implementation required by 2020). Other high- 
and medium-ranked basins follow in the schedule priority (2022). The rankings are based on the 
CASGEM Groundwater Basin Prioritization Process, which places greatest emphasis on 
groundwater reliance. The “Medium” ranking assigned to the Tracy Subbasin does not reflect 
degraded or overdrafted conditions, but that there is significant reliance on groundwater as a 
source of supply within the basin. It should be noted that the 2014 prioritization under which the 
Tracy Subbasins was assigned “Medium Priority,” may change with consideration of local 
habitat and streamflow impacts, which were not previously considered, and any basin boundary 
modifications.  
 
This proposal recognizes that the East County Parties are concerned that the SGMA grants 
potentially broad powers to GSAs through ability to limit groundwater extractions, impose fees 
for groundwater management, and enforce terms of a GSP. The SGMA does not resolve or 
provide criteria for selection of a GSA when more than one local agency seeks the role. The 
powers and potential disputes over GSA formation make it especially prudent to develop a sound 

Agenda Item F-2



SUSTAINABLE GROUNDWATER MANAGEMENT ACT OF 2014 
TECHNICAL SUPPORT FOR PLANNING AND COMPLIANCE 

April 1, 2015 
 
 

 

 
Page 4 

 

technical understating of local groundwater resources, their interconnections with surrounding 
areas, and to establish local control when appropriate. Ultimately, and as intended by the SGMA, 
DWR will approve formation of GSAs and GSPs with greater weight on hydrogeologic rather 
than geopolitical factors. With this background, LSCE’s approach and proposed tasks are 
presented below. 
 
Approach 
The proposed approach relies on an existing framework of technical information to accomplish 
the following: 
 

1. Update the hydrogeologic conceptualization prepared by LSCE for east county agencies 
in 1999 by examining interconnections to southern and eastern portions of the Tracy 
Subbasin. 

2. Empirically analyze sustainable yield in the east Contra Costa county area and assess the 
viability of an alternative submittal under the SGMA. 

3. Prepare a report on technical findings to aid the East County Parties with decisions on 
GSA formation and GSP development. The report will provide recommendations to 
comply with SGMA implementation. 

 
The framework for technical work includes the following key documents: 
 

1. The 1999 study of groundwater resources in east Contra Costa County prepared by 
LSCE.  

2. The 2007 AB3030 Groundwater Management Plan covering the east Contra Costa county 
area.  

3. A 2011 monitoring update report extending interpretation of east county groundwater 
conditions since adoption of the 2007 Groundwater Management Plan. 

4. A data gap analysis completed in 2012 that assessed available and needed groundwater 
information as part of an IRWMP for various east county water entities. 

5. The CASGEM monitoring plan encompassing eastern Contra Costa County and data 
collected to date. 

 
Other documents, including water master plans, Urban Water Management Plans, and water 
project reports will also be reviewed.  
 
Using the framework of available records, LSCE will develop new geologic cross sections to 
identify interconnections with the greater Tracy Subbasin. The focus will be on the relationship 
between aquifer units in east Contra Costa County and those in the Tracy and Delta regions to 
the south and east, respectively.  
 

Agenda Item F-2



SUSTAINABLE GROUNDWATER MANAGEMENT ACT OF 2014 
TECHNICAL SUPPORT FOR PLANNING AND COMPLIANCE 

April 1, 2015 
 
 

 

 
Page 5 

 

In addition to evaluating basin interconnections, an empirical analysis of sustainable yield in east 
Contra Costa County will be performed. This effort will integrate existing water level data, 
precipitation records, and groundwater pumpage to develop conclusions as to current sustainable 
yield and absence of undesirable effects. 
 
In addition to the technical work, LSCE will prepare a communication plan to engage interested 
parties to ensure that appropriate input and communication occurs as required under the Act. 
LSCE will rely on experience and existing communication methods (websites and other 
electronic means) by the East County Parties to notify other groundwater users of the intent and 
progress of the technical work. It is anticipated that outreach will target small water systems, 
Disadvantaged Communities, and small to large private pumpers. We understand that Contra 
Costa County can provide assistance in identifying some of these parties through its well and 
small water system permitting role. 
 

Scope of Work 
The proposed scope of work will be conducted according to five tasks detailed below. The tasks 
are based on the objectives and approach described above. 
 

Task 1: DWR Kickoff Meeting and Engagement of Interested Parties  
Under Task 1, LSCE will coordinate a kickoff meeting with DWR and agencies in the Tracy 
Subbasin. The purpose of the meeting is to present the proposed technical evaluation scope 
and seek input from DWR on the approach. Subsequently, DWR will be included in the 
distribution of the project summary report in draft and final forms.  
 
Under Task 1, LSCE will also cooperatively develop a communication plan that includes 
routine communication with interested parties (as defined in the SGMA) and documentation 
of that communication. Throughout the work, a list of interested parties will be maintained in 
accordance with SGMA requirements for GSAs. 
 
Although the proposed work is a precursor to GSA formation, engagement is considered 
important to identify issues for other local pumpers that may not be directly applicable to the 
East County Parties. Communication will be made via existing east county agency websites 
and mailers (when applicable), and possibly direct mailings to selected interested parties. 
Communication will be milestone driven. Milestones for which recurring communication 
will be targeted include: 
 

 Methods and call for identifying interested parties. 

 Notice of outreach protocol and communication plan. 

 Notice of intent to conduct technical work related to GSA formation and GSP 
development. 

 Efforts to quantify groundwater pumpage. 

Agenda Item F-2



SUSTAINABLE GROUNDWATER MANAGEMENT ACT OF 2014 
TECHNICAL SUPPORT FOR PLANNING AND COMPLIANCE 

April 1, 2015 
 
 

 

 
Page 6 

 

 Coordination with other local agencies in the greater Tracy Subbasin.  

 Completion of draft and final reports. 

 

Task 1 Key Activities and Deliverables 
1. Kickoff meeting with DWR. 

2. Preparation of a communication plan. 

3. Routine communication. 

4. Documentation of communications and 
maintenance of an interested parties list. 

 

Task 2: Technical Evaluation of East County Area Boundaries 
Under Task 2, LSCE will evaluate hydrogeologic conditions and boundaries according to 
accepted definitions and criteria. The examination will consider the 2014 updated CASGEM 
monitoring plan approved by DWR and groundwater connections with southern and eastern 
portions of the Tracy Subbasin. 
In accordance with DWR Bulletin 118 (2003 Update), the definition of a basin is: 
 

“…an alluvial aquifer or a stacked series of alluvial aquifers with reasonably 
well-defined boundaries in a lateral direction and a definable bottom.” 

 
Lateral boundaries include geologic structures, such as faults, strata of lower permeability, 
bedrock, hydraulic features such as ocean shoreline, a river, or a stream. Vertical boundaries 
include the water table, base of fresh water, or bedrock. Geopolitical boundaries that do not 
represent restrictions in groundwater movement are not considered appropriate boundaries 
for this evaluation. LSCE will seek to identify lateral and vertical boundaries that would 
apply to GSA formation and GSP development in accordance with accepted criteria. 
 
The framework for this task will be the 1999 hydrogeologic investigation in which several 
hundred well logs were evaluated and used to map depositional features in the east county 
area. The depositional model served as the basis for subsequent AB3030 Groundwater 
Management Plan and CASGEM programs for the area. Notably, there are no other sources 
of detailed hydrogeology available for the east county area. 
 

Task 2 Key Activities and Deliverables 
1. Extend geologic cross sections from current 

Groundwater Management Plan and CASGEM 
areas into other portions of the Tracy Subbasin to 
the east and south. 

2. Interpret interconnections with southern and 
eastern portions of the Tracy Subbasin. 

 

Agenda Item F-2



SUSTAINABLE GROUNDWATER MANAGEMENT ACT OF 2014 
TECHNICAL SUPPORT FOR PLANNING AND COMPLIANCE 

April 1, 2015 
 
 

 

 
Page 7 

 

Task 3: Empirical Evaluation of East County Area Sustainable Yield 
Under Task 3, LSCE will evaluate historical data spanning representative hydrologic periods 
to empirically analyze sustainable yield. The analysis will be based on existing water level 
databases from CASGEM monitoring and that by individual agencies. Other data 
requirements include historical pumpage from the major groundwater users in the area, and 
precipitation records. LSCE will seek records from each participant to fulfill these input 
requirements. 
 
The premise for the empirical method is that when groundwater conditions are determined to 
be stable through normal to dry hydrologic periods, a determination of sustainability can be 
made when pumping is known. By contrast, stable conditions in a predominantly wet period 
cannot lead to a similar finding. Given the recent dry periods and stable conditions observed 
in parts of east Contra Costa County, it is anticipated that strong empirical support for 
sustainability can be developed. 
 
Based on the empirical model, LSCE will also develop a generalized water budget as 
described in the 2012 data gap report to serve future GSP requirements.  

 

Task 3 Key Activities and Deliverables 
1. Compile historical groundwater and hydrologic 

data. 

2. Empirically relate groundwater conditions to 
hydrology and pumpage. 

3. Develop a generalized water budget. 

 

Task 4: East County Area Groundwater Report  
Under Task 4, LSCE will conduct a meeting to present findings under Tasks 1 – 3. Based on 
discussion and input from participating parties, LSCE will prepare written draft and final 
summary reports. The summary report will have five primary sections: 
 

1. A description of technical findings and conclusions with respect to area boundaries 
and consistency and/or differences with current DWR Bulletin 118 descriptions. 

2. A description of technical findings regarding prevailing groundwater conditions in 
east Contra Costa County based on an empirical analysis of historic data. 

3. An assessment of the viability of an alternative submittal under the SGMA. 

4. Recommendations pertaining to GSA formation and GSP development. 

5. A description and documentation of communication with interested parties. 

Agenda Item F-2



SUSTAINABLE GROUNDWATER MANAGEMENT ACT OF 2014 
TECHNICAL SUPPORT FOR PLANNING AND COMPLIANCE 

April 1, 2015 
 
 

 

 
Page 8 

 

Task 4 Key Activities and Deliverables 
1. Coordinate a meeting to present findings. 

2. Preparation of a review draft and final report. 

 

Task 5: Meetings and Project Management  
Under Task 5, LSCE will provide project management for the proposed integrated tasks. For 
budgeting purpose, we assume five project meetings will be conducted one of which will 
include other agencies in the Tracy Subbasin (a separate kickoff meeting with DWR is 
budgeted and included under Task 1). LSCE will coordinate data acquisition and other 
assistance as needed. Status reports will be made via e-mail, on an as-needed basis. 
 

Task 5 Key Activities and Deliverables 
1. Coordinate up to six project meetings including: 

kick-off meeting with Tracy Subbasin parties and 
a meeting with DWR. 

2. Provide status reports via e-mail. 

 

Project Staffing 
LSCE will manage and perform the proposed work with qualified and experienced professional 
staff. Tom Elson will manage and direct the work. Key personnel will be assigned based on 
topical areas as shown on the organization chart in Attachment 1.  
 
A brief description of project roles is provided below:  
 

Project Manager and Primary Contact – Tom Elson 
Tom Elson will work with the participating entities to coordinate data collection, outreach to 
interested parties, SGMA compliance, and perform project management. Mr. Elson has 36 
years of experience with well projects and groundwater studies including work with multiple 
east county agencies. He has conducted similar projects in the Bay Area and throughout the 
Central San Joaquin Valley. 
 
Hydrogeology – Ken Utley 
Ken Utley will develop new geologic cross sections and refined boundary interpretations to 
address interconnections throughout the Tracy Subbasin. Mr. Utley has 39 years of 
experience and developed the geologic model for the 1999 hydrogeologic report. He has 
performed local studies for well projects for the Town of Discovery Bay, City of Brentwood, 
and Diablo Water District. 
 

  

Agenda Item F-2



SUSTAINABLE GROUNDWATER MANAGEMENT ACT OF 2014 
TECHNICAL SUPPORT FOR PLANNING AND COMPLIANCE 

April 1, 2015 
 
 

 

 
Page 9 

 

Empirical Estimates of Safe Yield and Water Budget – Peter Leffler 
Peter Leffler will develop an empirical yield analysis and generalized water budget. Mr. 
Leffler has 25 years of hydrogeologic consulting experience throughout California. He will 
be assisted by Nick Newcomb, a staff hydrogeologist.  
 
Water Use Projections – John Fawcett and Justin Shobe 
John Fawcett and Justin Shobe will work with the Project Manager to quantify past, current, 
and future groundwater usage in the east Contra Costa County area to serve both the 
empirical yield analysis and future GSP planning needs. Mr. Fawcett is a Senior Principal 
with LSCE and has conducted engineering studies, managed water construction projects, and 
prepared water master plans. Mr. Fawcett has 36 years of engineering experience. Justin 
Shobe will assist Mr. Fawcett and is a Project Engineer with 10 years of experience. 
  
SGMA Compliance and Outreach – Vicki Kretsinger Grabert 
Vicki Kretsinger Grabert will assist with outreach and SGMA compliance issues. Ms. 
Kretsinger has more than 30 years of experience in groundwater quality assessment and 
resource management, including design of monitoring networks and programs, application of 
environmental regulations, long-term groundwater quality monitoring and protection 
programs, and groundwater supply sufficiency and availability assessments.  
 

Under the proposed scope, it is not anticipated that outside legal or facilitation services will be 
needed. In subsequent stages of compliance with the SGMA, such outside services may be 
desired by one or more parties, particularly for GSA formation and GSP preparation.  
 

Fee Schedule 
LSCE will bill in accordance with its regular Schedule of Fees for Engineering and Field 
Services, included in Attachment 2. LSCE will bill monthly for labor according to this schedule.  
 

Project Cost Estimate 
A proposed budget is presented on the Project Cost Estimate Worksheet in Attachment 3. The 
cost estimate worksheet shows labor costs according to personnel involved in the work and 
LSCE’s fee schedule. The total budget estimate is $118,300. 
 

Schedule 
LSCE’s proposed schedule is presented in Attachment 4 with a final report completed by the 
end of 2015. The work will be completed prior to adoption of regulations governing GSA 
formation and GSP plan implementation by DWR. By performing this work in 2015 in advance 
of final DWR regulations, the East Contra Costa Parties and local interested parties will have a 
basis for making decisions required under the Act in 2016 and 2017 such as submittals for basin 
boundary revisions, alternative GSP submittals, and formation of GSAs.  

Agenda Item F-2



ATTACHMENT 1 
LSCE Organization Chart 

 

 

 

 
 
 

2014 SGMA 
Technical Support for Planning and Compliance 

 
 

Agenda Item F-2



ATTACHMENT 2 
Fee Schedule 

 

 

 

 

LUHDORFF & SCALMANINI 
CONSULTING ENGINEERS 

500 FIRST STREET 
WOODLAND, CALIFORNIA 95695 

2015 

Professional:*  

Senior Principal 
Principal Professional 
Project Manager 
Senior Professional 
Project Professional 
Staff Professional 

  

$ 198/hr. 
$ 195/hr. 
$ 180/hr. 
$ 172/hr. 

$ 130 to 167/hr. 
$ 110 to 128/hr. 

 

Technical:  

Engineering Inspector 
Engineering Assistant  
Technician 
ACAD Drafting 

$ 120 to 128/hr. 
   $ 95/hr. 

$ 95/hr. 
$ 110/hr. 

 

Clerical Support:  

Word Processing, Clerical $ 67/hr. 

********** 

Vehicle Use $   0.55/mi. 

Subsistence Cost Plus 15% 

Groundwater Sampling Equipment 
(Includes Operator) 

$ 170.00/hr. 

Copies .20 ea. 

********** 

Professional or Technical Testimony 200% of Regular Rates 

Requested Technical Overtime 150% of Regular Rates 

Outside Services/Rentals Cost Plus 15% 

Services by Associate Firms Cost Plus 15% 

Agenda Item F-2



 

 

 

 

 
ATTACHMENT 3 

Project Cost Estimate Worksheet 
  

Agenda Item F-2



PROJECT ESTIMATE WORKSHEET

Client East County Parties

Project SGMA Compliance

Est. By TE

Date April 1, 2015

Project Manager
Elson

Sr. Principal
Kretsinger

Sr. Principal
Fawcett

Principal
Leffler

Senior Geologist
Utley

Project Engineer
Shobe

Project Prof
King

Staff Prof.
Newcomb

AutoCAD
Tague

Clerical
McNeil

Task $198 $198 $198 $195 $172 $167 $167 $125 $110 $67

DWR Kickoff Meeting and Engagement of 
Interested Parties

Task Hours 32 12 8 0 0 32 0 0 0 12 96

Task Cost $6,336 $2,376 $1,584 $0 $0 $5,344 $0 $0 $0.00 $804 $16,444

Technical Evaluation of East County Area Basin 
Boundaries

Task Hours 20 0 0 0 72 0 16 0 48 2 158

Task Cost $3,960 $0 $0 $0 $12,384 $0 $2,672 $0 $5,280 $134 $24,430

Empirical Evaluation of East County Area 
Sustainable Yield

Task Hours 32 0 16 60 0 24 24 40 0 2 198

Task Cost $6,336 $0 $3,168 $11,700 $0 $4,008 $4,008 $5,000 $0.00 $134 $34,354

East  County Area Groundwater Report

Task Hours 48 8 8 24 0 12 24 0 24 12 160

Task Cost $9,504 $1,584 $1,584 $4,680 $0 $2,004 $4,008 $0 $2,640.00 $804.00 $26,808

Meetings and Project Management 

Task Hours 48 0 12 12 0 0 0 0 0 8 80
Task Cost $9,504 $0 $2,376 $2,340 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $536 $14,756

NA

Task Hours 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

Task Cost $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0

180 20 44 96 72 68 64 40 72 36 692

$35,640 $3,960 $8,712 $18,720 $12,384 $11,356 $10,688 $5,000 $7,920 $2,412 $116,792

Outside Services
Cost

ADMIN @ 15 
Percent Subtotal

1. ………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………. $0 $0 $0

2. ………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………. $0 $0 $0

$0

$1,500

$118,292

Summary

Subtotal Hours

Subtotal Cost

Travel, Reproductions, and Incidentals

5

1

Subtotal Outside Services

2

3

4

Description

TOTAL PROJECT COST ESTIMATE

Agenda Item F-2



 

 

 

 

 
ATTACHMENT 4 

Project Schedule 

Agenda Item F-2



ID Task
Mode

Task Name Duration Start Finish

1 Engagement of Insterested Parties 174 days Mon 5/4/15 Thu 12/31/15

2 Kick-off Meeting with DWR and Other Agencies 0 days Mon 5/11/15 Mon 5/11/15

3 Prepare communication Plan 30 days Mon 5/4/15 Fri 6/12/15

4 Status Meeting with Other Agencies 0 days Mon 8/10/15 Mon 8/10/15

5 Technical Evaluation of East Co. Boundaries 90 days Mon 5/4/15 Fri 9/4/15

6 Data Collection 30 days Mon 5/4/15 Fri 6/12/15

7 Extend Cross Sections 80 days Mon 5/18/15 Fri 9/4/15

8 Interpret Interconnections 40 days Mon 7/6/15 Fri 8/28/15

9 Empirical Evaluation of Sustainable Yield 115 days Mon 5/4/15 Fri 10/9/15

10 Compile Historical Data 40 days Mon 5/4/15 Fri 6/26/15

11 Empirical Evaluation 100 days Mon 5/25/15 Fri 10/9/15

12 Generalized Water Budget 100 days Mon 5/25/15 Fri 10/9/15

13 Groundwater Report 80 days Mon 9/7/15 Fri 12/25/15

14 Prepare Draft 50 days Mon 9/7/15 Fri 11/13/15

15 Meeting to Discuss Draft 0 days Fri 11/13/15 Fri 11/13/15

16 Meeting with DWR and Other Agencies 0 days Tue 12/1/15 Tue 12/1/15

17 Finalize Report 30 days Mon 11/16/15 Fri 12/25/15

18 Meetings and Project Management 174 days Mon 5/4/15 Thu 12/31/15

19 Project Meetings - General 118 days Mon 5/4/15 Thu 10/15/15

5/11

8/10

11/13

12/1

26 3 10 17 24 31 7 14 21 28 5 12 19 26 2 9 16 23 30 6 13 20 27 4 11 18 25 1 8 15 22 29 6 13 20 27 3 10
May '15 Jun '15 Jul '15 Aug '15 Sep '15 Oct '15 Nov '15 Dec '15 Jan '16

Task

Split

Milestone

Summary

Project Summary

External Tasks

External Milestone

Inactive Task

Inactive Milestone

Inactive Summary

Manual Task

Duration-only

Manual Summary Rollup

Manual Summary

Start-only

Finish-only

Deadline

Progress

Page 1

Project: East County SGMA Support
Date: Wed 4/1/15

Agenda Item F-2



 
 

 

 

Town of Discovery Bay  
“A Community Services District” 

AGENDA REPORT 

 
 

Meeting Date 
 
 

April 14, 2015 

 

Prepared By: Rick Howard, General Manager 
Submitted By: Rick Howard, General Manager  
 
 
Agenda Title 
 

Drought - Governor’s Executive Order requiring 25% Water Reduction  
 
 
Recommended Action 
 

Informational Item(s) Only 
 
 
Executive Summary 
 

As the Board is aware, on April 1, 2015 the Governor signed Executive Order B-29-15 imposing mandatory restrictions to 
achieve a statewide 25% reduction in potable urban water usage through February 28, 2016. These restrictions will 
require water suppliers to California's cities and towns to reduce usage as compared to the amount used in 2013. 
 

For the Town of Discovery Bay, the mandatory reduction threshold is 35%.  The attached Urban Water Suppliers and 
Proposed Regulatory Framework Tiers to Achieve 25% Use Reduction identifies the TODB (on page 11) as conserving 
18% through the monitoring periods.  The critical column is the far right column that identifies the number of gallons per 
capita per day. Staff questions the accuracy of the data and at the time this report was being prepared a review of that 
data took place.  Staff will provide an update at tonight’s meeting. 
 

Also attached to this report is a copy of the Executive Order B-29-15 as well as a Fact Sheet titled “Achieving a 25% 
Statewide Reduction in Potable Urban Water Use. 
 

The new regulations included as part of the Executive Order and included in the Fact Sheet will go before the State 
Water Board on either May 6 or 7. 
 

Staff, as well as legal counsel and the Town’s water engineers will be available to provide additional information and to 
address any questions that the Board or public may have. 
 
 
 
Fiscal Impact:  
 

Amount Requested  $N/A 
Sufficient Budgeted Funds Available?:   (If no, see attached fiscal analysis) 

 Prog/Fund #      Category:  Pers.     Optg.     Cap.       -or-   CIP#      Fund# 
 

Previous Relevant Board Actions for This Item 
 
N/A 
 
  
Attachments 
 
Executive Order 
Mandatory Conservation Regulations Fact Sheet dated 04072015 
Urban Water Supplier Tiers 
 
 

 
 
 

AGENDA ITEM: G-1 

Cinderella
Stamp



Agenda Item G-1



Agenda Item G-1



Agenda Item G-1



Agenda Item G-1



Agenda Item G-1



Agenda Item G-1



Agenda Item G-1



Mandatory Conservation Regulation FACT SHEET *** April 7, 2015 Page 1 

MANDATORY CONSERVATION 

ACHIEVING A 25% STATEWIDE REDUCTION IN POTABLE URBAN WATER USE 

FACT SHEET 

Background 
With California facing one of the most severe droughts on record, Governor Brown declared a drought 

State of Emergency in January 2014.  Since that time, the Governor has issued three additional Executive 

Orders directing actions to prepare for water shortages.  For the first time in state history, the Governor, 

in his April 1, 2015 Executive Order, directed the State Water Board to implement mandatory water 

reductions in cities and towns across California to reduce potable urban water usage by 25 percent 

statewide.  This savings amounts to approximately 1.3 million acre-feet of water over the next nine 

months, or nearly as much water as is currently in Lake Oroville.  To achieve these savings, the State 

Water Board is expediting emergency regulations to set usage targets for communities around the State. 

 

Applicability  
The mandatory water reductions, along with specific restrictions on commercial, industrial and 

institutional irrigation uses, apply to urban water suppliers as defined in water code section 10617, 

excluding wholesalers.  Generally, urban water suppliers serve more than 3,000 customers or deliver 

more than 3,000 acre feet of water per year.  Suppliers regulated by the Public Utilities Commission are 

included in the mandatory water restrictions.  The Executive Order requests that the Public Utilities 

Commission require investor-owned water utilities to implement reductions consistent with the State 

Water Board requirements for all other urban water suppliers.  The specific restrictions and prohibitions 

on water use in the Executive Order apply to all Californians and are in addition to the specific 

restrictions and prohibitions contained in the emergency conservation regulation approved by the Office 

of Administrative Law (OAL) on March 27, 2015. 

 

Proposed Schedule 
The State Water Board is expediting the development and adoption of additional regulations to 

implement the new restrictions and prohibitions contained in the Executive Order.  There will be several 

opportunities for stakeholder involvement prior to the release of the formal notice of emergency 

rulemaking.  The first opportunity follows the release of a Proposed Regulatory Framework and the 

second will follow the release of draft a regulation, as follows: 

 

 Governor issues Drought Executive Order     April 1, 2015 

 Notice announcing release of draft regulatory      April 7, 2015 

framework and request for public comment 

 Notice announcing release of draft     April 17, 2015 

regulation for informal public comment  

 Emergency rulemaking formal notice     April 28, 2015 

 Board hearing and adoption     May 5 or 6, 2015 

Agenda Item G-1



Mandatory Conservation Regulation FACT SHEET *** April 7, 2015 Page 2 

 

Content of Emergency Rulemaking Package 
This rulemaking package will address the following provisions of the April 1, 2015 Executive Order: 

 

Ordering Provision 2: Mandatory 25% reduction in potable urban water use; 

Ordering Provision 5: Commercial, industrial and institutional potable water use reductions; 

Ordering Provision 6:  Prohibition on using potable water for irrigation of ornamental turf in street  

   medians;  and 

Ordering Provision 7: Prohibition on using potable water for irrigation outside of new home  

   construction without drip or micro-spray systems. 

 

Rate structures and other pricing mechanisms, which are very important tools for reducing water use, 

will be taken up in the coming weeks as required by Ordering Provision 8.   

 

How You Can Help 
To meet a mid-May to June 1 timeline for implementation of the emergency regulation, interested 

persons and organizations will be requested to provide input within one week of a document’s release.  

To assist the Board in most thoughtfully addressing this dire situation, please consider the following 

general questions as you prepare your comments:  

 

1. Are there other approaches to achieve a 25% statewide reduction in potable urban water use 

that would also impose a greater responsibility on water suppliers with higher per capita water 

use than those that use less? 

2. How should the regulation differentiate between tiers of high, medium and low per capita water 

users? 

3. Should water suppliers disclose their list of actions to achieve the required water reductions?   

4. Should these actions detail specific plans for potable water use reductions in the commercial, 

industrial, and institutional (CII) sectors?  

5. Should additional information be required in the monthly conservation reports for urban water 

suppliers to demonstrate progress towards achieving the required water reductions?  

6. How and when should compliance with the required water reductions be assessed? 

7. What enforcement response should be considered if water suppliers fail to achieve their 

required water use reductions?  

 

How to Provide Input 
Information including discussion drafts, draft regulations and related materials will be available on the 

State Water Board’s website at: 

http://www.waterboards.ca.gov/waterrights/water_issues/programs/drought/emergency_mandatory_

regulations.shtml .  Clear and concise written comment and questions can be sent to Jessica Bean at 

jessica.bean@ waterboards.ca.gov.   

Agenda Item G-1

http://www.waterboards.ca.gov/waterrights/water_issues/programs/drought/emergency_mandatory_regulations.shtml
http://www.waterboards.ca.gov/waterrights/water_issues/programs/drought/emergency_mandatory_regulations.shtml


Urban Water Suppliers and Proposed Regulatory Framework Tiers to Achieve 25% Use Reduction

Total Water
Saved Percent Saved  

Supplier Name
2013

(Jun ‐ Feb)
2014/15

(Jun‐14 ‐ Feb‐15)

(Jun‐14 ‐ Feb‐15, 
compared to 2013, 

gallons)

(Jun‐14 ‐ Feb‐15, 
compared to 
2013, gallons)

Tier
Conservation 
Standard

  Sep‐2014 
R‐GPCD 

Cambria Community Services District 166,216,813 95,513,570 70,703,243 43% 1 10% 40.0               
Vernon  City of 1,907,061,769 1,788,380,162 118,681,607 6% 1 10% 43.7               
Santa Cruz  City of 2,527,700,000 1,933,400,000 594,300,000 24% 1 10% 44.9               
Seal Beach  City of 905,215,264 856,337,550 48,877,714 5% 1 10% 45.3               
San Francisco Public Utilities Commission 20,365,410,000 18,717,900,000 1,647,510,000 8% 1 10% 45.7               
California Water Service Company South San Francisco 2,075,673,590 1,907,534,254 168,139,336 8% 1 10% 46.1               
California Water Service Company East Los Angeles 3,998,522,861 3,819,956,279 178,566,582 4% 1 10% 48.2               
Coastside County Water District 565,550,000 524,430,000 41,120,000 7% 1 10% 48.2               
California‐American Water Company Monterey District 2,903,844,543 2,590,336,368 313,508,175 11% 1 10% 49.3               
California‐American Water Company San Diego District 2,795,094,888 2,578,195,144 216,899,744 8% 1 10% 49.4               
East Palo Alto, City of 409,886,088 454,911,335 ‐45,025,247 ‐11% 1 10% 49.7               
Golden State Water Company Bell‐Bell Gardens 1,279,423,043 1,208,354,847 71,068,196 6% 1 10% 50.0               
Arcata  City of 499,104,000 495,047,000 4,057,000 1% 1 10% 50.2               
North Coast County Water District 809,332,364 713,333,361 95,999,003 12% 1 10% 51.2               
Hayward  City of 4,474,967,937 3,957,222,483 517,745,455 12% 1 10% 52.2               
Grover Beach  City of 352,828,667 208,202,769 144,625,897 41% 1 10% 52.7               
Westborough Water District 257,568,499 213,776,790 43,791,709 17% 1 10% 54.2               
Daly City  City of 1,888,066,301 1,622,632,784 265,433,517 14% 1 10% 55.6               
Park Water Company 2,833,164,110 2,598,821,539 234,342,571 8% 2 20% 55.8               
San Bruno  City of 929,865,974 849,620,197 80,245,777 9% 2 20% 58.3               
Port Hueneme  City of 500,546,894 456,100,759 44,446,135 9% 2 20% 59.9               
Soquel Creek Water District 1,046,626,000 826,889,000 219,737,000 21% 2 20% 60.3               
Paramount  City of 1,628,999,712 1,623,382,034 5,617,679 0% 2 20% 61.2               
Golden State Water Company Bay Point 512,238,443 452,672,802 59,565,641 12% 2 20% 61.9               
Amador Water Agency 899,761,000 773,623,400 126,137,600 14% 2 20% 61.9               
Golden State Water Company Florence Graham 1,246,577,219 1,227,482,326 19,094,894 2% 2 20% 62.1               
Compton  City of 1,858,895,919 1,837,323,747 21,572,172 1% 2 20% 65.0               
South Gate  City of 2,066,696,383 2,017,629,675 49,066,708 2% 2 20% 66.5               
Golden State Water Company Southwest 7,303,405,789 6,894,299,322 409,106,467 6% 2 20% 66.7               
Estero Municipal Improvement District 1,137,677,797 1,077,438,670 60,239,127 5% 2 20% 67.2               
California Water Service Company King City 428,820,478 403,729,918 25,090,560 6% 2 20% 67.2               
Menlo Park  City of 1,058,240,665 769,095,397 289,145,268 27% 2 20% 67.7               
Huntington Park  City of 1,171,761,731 1,128,423,492 43,338,240 4% 2 20% 67.8               

Total Water Production

Page 1
Agenda Item G-1



Urban Water Suppliers and Proposed Regulatory Framework Tiers to Achieve 25% Use Reduction

Total Water
Saved Percent Saved  

Supplier Name
2013

(Jun ‐ Feb)
2014/15

(Jun‐14 ‐ Feb‐15)

(Jun‐14 ‐ Feb‐15, 
compared to 2013, 

gallons)

(Jun‐14 ‐ Feb‐15, 
compared to 
2013, gallons)

Tier
Conservation 
Standard

  Sep‐2014 
R‐GPCD 

Total Water Production

Golden State Water Company S San Gabriel 664,867,252 637,528,317 27,338,935 4% 2 20% 68.1               
Oxnard  City of 5,742,131,037 5,086,123,686 656,007,351 11% 2 20% 68.1               
Redwood City  City of 2,525,846,774 2,179,170,327 346,676,447 14% 2 20% 68.4               
Morro Bay  City of 316,836,255 281,236,756 35,599,499 11% 2 20% 69.5               
Inglewood  City of 2,457,964,645 2,284,776,001 173,188,643 7% 2 20% 70.0               
Goleta Water District 3,523,431,480 3,053,227,871 470,203,609 13% 2 20% 70.0               
Lompoc  City of 1,253,200,000 1,106,800,000 146,400,000 12% 2 20% 70.5               
City of Big Bear Lake, Dept of Water & Power 610,520,000 590,469,860 20,050,140 3% 2 20% 70.5               
Sweetwater Springs Water District 208,544,913 177,491,272 31,053,641 15% 2 20% 71.4               
Golden State Water Company Artesia 1,402,138,690 1,348,796,812 53,341,879 4% 2 20% 71.7               
McKinleyville Community Service District 344,448,000 300,869,000 43,579,000 13% 2 20% 72.1               
Golden State Water Company Norwalk 1,214,317,928 1,131,519,080 82,798,848 7% 2 20% 73.2               
San Lorenzo Valley Water District 416,952,583 335,050,267 81,902,316 20% 2 20% 73.8               
Mountain View  City of 2,967,854,797 2,531,213,885 436,640,912 15% 2 20% 74.0               
Sweetwater Authority 5,185,495,337 4,886,767,783 298,727,554 6% 2 20% 74.1               
San Gabriel Valley Water Company 9,747,519,587 9,124,165,807 623,353,780 6% 2 20% 74.4               
Marina Coast Water District 1,063,425,908 946,396,368 117,029,540 11% 2 20% 74.8               
Santa Ana  City of 9,729,076,397 9,323,684,636 405,391,760 4% 2 20% 77.1               
Sunnyvale  City of 4,612,426,949 3,920,970,221 691,456,728 15% 2 20% 77.3               
Vallejo  City of 4,410,308,000 4,020,375,000 389,933,000 9% 2 20% 77.5               
Dublin San Ramon Services District 2,779,417,000 1,959,505,000 819,912,000 29% 2 20% 77.5               
California Water Service Company Dominguez 8,444,765,582 8,077,205,172 367,560,410 4% 2 20% 78.3               
Montebello Land and Water Company 859,407,071 791,398,619 68,008,451 8% 2 20% 78.5               
Valley County Water District 2,033,127,821 1,853,913,772 179,214,049 9% 2 20% 78.8               
Santa Barbara  City of 3,348,530,727 2,632,951,217 715,579,509 21% 2 20% 78.9               
American Canyon, City of 915,968,361 777,155,653 138,812,708 15% 2 20% 79.1               
Santa Clara  City of 5,338,900,000 4,749,500,000 589,400,000 11% 2 20% 79.4               
Alameda County Water District 10,539,100,000 8,458,900,000 2,080,200,000 20% 2 20% 80.2               
Crestline Village Water District 185,010,871 167,499,027 17,511,844 9% 2 20% 80.3               
Monterey Park  City of 649,960,000 594,880,000 55,080,000 8% 2 20% 80.4               
California Water Service Company Redwood Valley 108,182,674 82,440,411 25,742,263 24% 2 20% 80.6               
Scotts Valley Water District 311,979,632 253,857,835 58,121,797 19% 2 20% 81.0               
Greenfield, City of 573,049,890 501,684,126 71,365,764 12% 2 20% 81.2               

Page 2
Agenda Item G-1



Urban Water Suppliers and Proposed Regulatory Framework Tiers to Achieve 25% Use Reduction

Total Water
Saved Percent Saved  

Supplier Name
2013

(Jun ‐ Feb)
2014/15

(Jun‐14 ‐ Feb‐15)

(Jun‐14 ‐ Feb‐15, 
compared to 2013, 

gallons)

(Jun‐14 ‐ Feb‐15, 
compared to 
2013, gallons)

Tier
Conservation 
Standard

  Sep‐2014 
R‐GPCD 

Total Water Production

California Water Service Company Mid Peninsula 3,986,792,209 3,551,780,554 435,011,655 11% 2 20% 81.5               
San Diego  City of 47,355,303,598 46,452,597,390 902,706,208 2% 2 20% 81.8               
Long Beach  City of 14,658,100,592 13,842,168,619 815,931,973 6% 2 20% 82.4               
California Water Service Company Salinas District 4,612,101,098 4,065,974,106 546,126,992 12% 2 20% 82.9               
Pomona  City of 5,817,361,333 5,468,536,077 348,825,256 6% 2 20% 83.5               
Rohnert Park  City of 1,267,000,000 1,124,000,000 143,000,000 11% 2 20% 83.6               
East Bay Municipal Utilities District 52,390,500,000 46,127,500,000 6,263,000,000 12% 2 20% 83.8               
Lynwood  City of 1,264,349,156 1,237,371,916 26,977,240 2% 2 20% 84.4               
Hi‐Desert Water District 744,117,577 733,074,472 11,043,105 1% 2 20% 85.2               
Golden State Water Company Culver City 1,415,824,450 1,344,756,254 71,068,196 5% 2 20% 85.2               
Hawthorne  City of 1,070,747,789 1,135,592,223 ‐64,844,434 ‐6% 2 20% 85.6               
Santa Rosa  City of 5,454,466,874 4,447,473,373 1,006,993,501 18% 2 20% 86.5               
Windsor, Town of 963,136,985 817,896,531 145,240,453 15% 2 20% 86.8               
Millbrae  City of 668,885,610 603,267,242 65,618,369 10% 2 20% 87.6               
Burlingame  City of 1,288,363,748 1,075,113,151 213,250,598 17% 2 20% 87.8               
Great Oaks Water Company Incorporated 2,641,791,567 2,210,783,322 431,008,244 16% 2 20% 88.0               
California Water Service Company Oroville 830,595,287 682,007,037 148,588,251 18% 2 20% 88.1               
Westminster  City of 3,064,371,990 2,956,971,359 107,400,630 4% 2 20% 88.2               
San Buenaventura  City of 4,446,346,994 3,813,888,925 632,458,069 14% 2 20% 88.9               
Otay Water District 8,209,272,756 7,888,634,952 320,637,804 4% 2 20% 89.9               
Fountain Valley  City of 2,438,968,604 2,305,516,153 133,452,452 5% 2 20% 90.6               
Santa Fe Springs  City of 1,526,056,730 1,408,567,739 117,488,991 8% 2 20% 90.7               
California Water Service Company Stockton 6,808,665,567 6,318,910,872 489,754,695 7% 2 20% 91.3               
Golden State Water Company West Orange 4,000,477,969 3,830,090,258 170,387,711 4% 2 20% 91.9               
Irvine Ranch Water District 15,406,744,246 15,015,266,341 391,477,904 3% 2 20% 92.3               
Adelanto city of 1,091,834,544 993,603,394 98,231,150 9% 2 20% 92.4               
Los Angeles Department of Water and Power 139,452,680,105 130,343,503,463 9,109,176,642 7% 2 20% 92.8               
Crescent City  City of 583,110,000 710,650,000 ‐127,540,000 ‐22% 2 20% 92.8               
Hollister  City of 832,612,930 742,476,980 90,135,950 11% 2 20% 92.9               
Mesa Water District 4,434,609,825 4,283,056,327 151,553,499 3% 2 20% 92.9               
California Water Service Company Hermosa/Redondo 2,984,799,071 2,983,495,666 1,303,406 0% 2 20% 93.4               
Bellflower‐Somerset Mutual Water Company 1,350,031,789 1,268,477,694 81,554,095 6% 2 20% 94.3               
Rowland Water District 2,857,000,142 2,756,214,295 100,785,846 4% 2 20% 94.5               

Page 3
Agenda Item G-1



Urban Water Suppliers and Proposed Regulatory Framework Tiers to Achieve 25% Use Reduction

Total Water
Saved Percent Saved  

Supplier Name
2013

(Jun ‐ Feb)
2014/15

(Jun‐14 ‐ Feb‐15)

(Jun‐14 ‐ Feb‐15, 
compared to 2013, 

gallons)

(Jun‐14 ‐ Feb‐15, 
compared to 
2013, gallons)

Tier
Conservation 
Standard

  Sep‐2014 
R‐GPCD 

Total Water Production

Crescenta Valley Water District 1,200,433,997 1,043,760,838 156,673,159 13% 2 20% 94.5               
San Jose Water Company 36,046,000,000 31,608,300,000 4,437,700,000 12% 2 20% 94.6               
Azusa  City of 5,165,530,597 4,670,763,054 494,767,543 10% 2 20% 95.0               
El Segundo  City of 1,692,179,532 1,788,496,457 ‐96,316,925 ‐6% 2 20% 95.4               
Mid‐Peninsula Water District 823,925,361 712,822,442 111,102,919 13% 2 20% 96.3               
Calexico  City of 1,524,360,000 1,440,570,000 83,790,000 5% 2 20% 96.8               
Watsonville  City of 2,045,660,752 1,803,744,576 241,916,176 12% 2 20% 96.9               
Torrance  City of 3,906,665,343 3,703,464,394 203,200,950 5% 2 20% 97.3               
Lomita  City of 591,013,026 547,632,425 43,380,600 7% 2 20% 97.4               
Golden State Water Company Barstow 1,595,531,512 1,445,509,515 150,021,997 9% 2 20% 98.3               
Escondido  City of 4,625,134,351 4,059,907,513 565,226,838 12% 2 20% 98.8               
Marin Municipal Water District 7,006,662,670 5,966,662,221 1,040,000,448 15% 2 20% 99.8               
San Gabriel County Water District 1,612,133,643 1,485,957,453 126,176,190 8% 2 20% 100.5            
Pittsburg  City of 2,481,549,000 2,226,323,000 255,226,000 10% 2 20% 100.7            
Huntington Beach  City of 7,506,541,568 7,116,888,432 389,653,136 5% 2 20% 100.9            
Oceanside  City of 6,988,111,948 6,765,555,423 222,556,525 3% 2 20% 100.9            
Santa Monica  City of 3,462,200,000 3,321,100,000 141,100,000 4% 2 20% 101.0            
Norwalk City of 559,456,000 511,830,000 47,626,000 9% 2 20% 101.0            
Ukiah  City of 678,601,000 551,722,000 126,879,000 19% 2 20% 101.0            
Fairfield  City of 5,435,000,000 4,853,000,000 582,000,000 11% 2 20% 101.1            
Helix Water District 8,454,736,636 8,067,103,778 387,632,858 5% 2 20% 101.1            
Camarillo  City of 2,747,943,839 2,399,416,293 348,527,546 13% 2 20% 101.1            
San Jose  City of 5,294,000,000 4,707,000,000 587,000,000 11% 2 20% 101.1            
Soledad, City of 581,571,300 531,785,500 49,785,800 9% 2 20% 101.2            
Golden State Water Company S Arcadia 908,701,874 851,189,098 57,512,777 6% 2 20% 101.4            
California‐American Water Company Sacramento District 8,801,191,649 7,285,565,423 1,515,626,225 17% 2 20% 101.4            
Carpinteria Valley Water District 1,160,826,158 1,028,941,051 131,885,107 11% 2 20% 101.8            
El Monte  City of 328,279,000 312,936,000 15,343,000 5% 2 20% 101.9            
Groveland Community Services District 127,297,632 96,625,396 30,672,236 24% 2 20% 102.0            
Whittier  City of 2,041,957,743 2,084,064,264 ‐42,106,521 ‐2% 2 20% 102.3            
Fortuna  City of 303,008,000 276,986,000 26,022,000 9% 2 20% 102.6            
Glendale  City of 6,839,188,070 6,346,086,881 493,101,189 7% 2 20% 103.2            
Alhambra  City of 2,575,148,433 2,329,573,763 245,574,669 10% 2 20% 103.3            

Page 4
Agenda Item G-1



Urban Water Suppliers and Proposed Regulatory Framework Tiers to Achieve 25% Use Reduction

Total Water
Saved Percent Saved  

Supplier Name
2013

(Jun ‐ Feb)
2014/15

(Jun‐14 ‐ Feb‐15)

(Jun‐14 ‐ Feb‐15, 
compared to 2013, 

gallons)

(Jun‐14 ‐ Feb‐15, 
compared to 
2013, gallons)

Tier
Conservation 
Standard

  Sep‐2014 
R‐GPCD 

Total Water Production

Lathrop, City of  1,149,290,000 990,960,000 158,330,000 14% 2 20% 104.9            
Anaheim  City of 16,337,538,847 15,992,788,037 344,750,810 2% 2 20% 105.1            
Vista Irrigation District 4,896,569,394 4,632,303,886 264,265,507 5% 2 20% 105.3            
Gilroy  City of 2,328,666,000 1,995,678,000 332,988,000 14% 2 20% 105.8            
California Water Service Company Kern River Valley 222,882,376 201,376,182 21,506,194 10% 2 20% 105.9            
Humboldt Community Service District 610,120,000 573,669,000 36,451,000 6% 2 20% 106.6            
Coachella  City of 1,395,900,000 1,294,010,000 101,890,000 7% 2 20% 106.9            
Palo Alto  City of 3,180,440,852 2,685,999,460 494,441,392 16% 2 20% 107.3            
Napa  City of 3,605,871,891 3,247,435,321 358,436,570 10% 2 20% 107.6            
Orchard Dale Water District 589,289,272 550,757,340 38,531,931 7% 2 20% 107.8            
Perris, City of 437,809,090 430,597,020 7,212,070 2% 2 20% 108.9            
Downey  City of 4,090,256,554 3,834,059,128 256,197,426 6% 2 20% 109.3            
Lakewood  City of 2,086,631,973 1,856,580,866 230,051,107 11% 3 25% 110.8            
City of Newman Water Department 559,946,000 448,854,000 111,092,000 20% 3 25% 110.8            
Milpitas  City of 2,719,687,979 2,424,775,231 294,912,748 11% 3 25% 111.0            
Golden State Water Company Placentia 1,868,334,327 1,778,757,770 89,576,557 5% 3 25% 112.5            
Vallecitos Water District 4,390,033,350 4,037,168,840 352,864,510 8% 3 25% 112.9            
Buena Park  City of 3,777,921,445 3,441,805,698 336,115,747 9% 3 25% 113.1            
Del Oro Water Company 369,631,917 306,051,990 63,579,927 17% 3 25% 113.2            
Manhattan Beach  City of 1,219,661,891 1,153,188,200 66,473,691 5% 3 25% 113.3            
Pico Rivera  City of 1,267,056,981 1,099,162,034 167,894,948 13% 3 25% 113.3            
Livermore  City of Division of Water Resources 1,642,615,000 1,199,514,000 443,101,000 27% 3 25% 113.4            
Beaumont‐Cherry Valley Water District 3,172,199,486 3,139,252,648 32,946,838 1% 3 25% 113.6            
Pleasanton  City of 4,439,552,000 3,099,891,000 1,339,661,000 30% 3 25% 113.7            
Suburban Water Systems San Jose Hills 7,160,122,399 6,833,016,444 327,105,955 5% 3 25% 113.8            
California Water Service Company Livermore 2,781,467,781 1,909,163,511 872,304,270 31% 3 25% 114.6            
San Luis Obispo  City of 1,387,716,506 1,278,706,170 109,010,336 8% 3 25% 114.7            
Lakeside Water District 1,064,566,388 977,942,044 86,624,343 8% 3 25% 114.9            
El Toro Water District 2,331,141,109 2,239,576,858 91,564,251 4% 3 25% 115.3            
San Clemente  City of 2,270,663,084 2,331,434,375 ‐60,771,291 ‐3% 3 25% 116.6            
California Water Service Company Marysville 575,127,769 496,597,575 78,530,194 14% 3 25% 117.1            
Sunny Slope Water Company 1,052,785,122 950,022,234 102,762,888 10% 3 25% 117.4            
Healdsburg  City of 540,150,000 446,810,000 93,340,000 17% 3 25% 118.2            

Page 5
Agenda Item G-1



Urban Water Suppliers and Proposed Regulatory Framework Tiers to Achieve 25% Use Reduction

Total Water
Saved Percent Saved  

Supplier Name
2013

(Jun ‐ Feb)
2014/15

(Jun‐14 ‐ Feb‐15)

(Jun‐14 ‐ Feb‐15, 
compared to 2013, 

gallons)

(Jun‐14 ‐ Feb‐15, 
compared to 
2013, gallons)

Tier
Conservation 
Standard

  Sep‐2014 
R‐GPCD 

Total Water Production

Valencia Water Company 7,817,224,611 6,780,899,767 1,036,324,844 13% 3 25% 118.4            
San Fernando  City of 839,719,127 786,931,196 52,787,931 6% 3 25% 118.4            
Eureka  City of 860,874,000 799,778,000 61,096,000 7% 3 25% 118.6            
Alco Water Service 1,156,954,000 1,028,617,000 128,337,000 11% 3 25% 120.7            
Moulton Niguel Water District 7,135,207,799 6,864,125,480 271,082,319 4% 3 25% 121.4            
Riverside  City of 17,427,511,870 15,956,944,380 1,470,567,490 8% 3 25% 122.5            
Twentynine Palms Water District 666,765,336 641,552,256 25,213,080 4% 3 25% 123.0            
North Marin Water District 2,457,000,000 1,986,810,000 470,190,000 19% 3 25% 123.0            
Brea  City of 2,826,761,129 2,727,376,444 99,384,685 4% 3 25% 123.7            
Delano  City of 2,386,120,000 2,229,650,000 156,470,000 7% 3 25% 124.0            
El Centro  City of 1,978,323,000 1,910,544,000 67,779,000 3% 3 25% 124.5            
Brawley  City of 1,842,390,000 1,088,690,000 753,700,000 41% 3 25% 125.0            
Petaluma  City of 2,407,770,000 2,071,485,000 336,285,000 14% 3 25% 125.1            
South Coast Water District 1,639,847,306 1,549,814,557 90,032,749 5% 3 25% 125.7            
Arroyo Grande  City of 776,210,684 654,635,517 121,575,167 16% 3 25% 125.7            
Eastern Municipal Water District 22,059,815,756 21,154,600,492 905,215,264 4% 3 25% 125.7            
Tuolumne Utilities District 1,441,240,862 992,152,425 449,088,437 31% 3 25% 126.2            
La Palma  City of 545,401,972 497,342,471 48,059,501 9% 3 25% 127.3            
California Water Service Company Dixon, City of 382,549,575 346,705,918 35,843,657 9% 3 25% 127.4            
Tracy  City of 4,529,625,694 3,497,663,768 1,031,961,925 23% 3 25% 127.5            
Lake Arrowhead Community Services District 440,648,885 386,238,213 54,410,671 12% 3 25% 127.7            
Martinez  City of 1,027,679,751 871,695,210 155,984,540 15% 3 25% 128.1            
Reedley  City of 1,302,000,000 1,109,000,000 193,000,000 15% 3 25% 128.8            
Davis  City of 3,023,400,000 2,527,400,000 496,000,000 16% 3 25% 129.0            
California Water Service Company Willows 364,301,895 318,682,696 45,619,200 13% 3 25% 129.0            
Sacramento  City of 28,979,000,000 23,440,000,000 5,539,000,000 19% 3 25% 129.3            
Burbank  City of 4,712,137,486 4,362,205,638 349,931,847 7% 3 25% 130.1            
Ventura County Waterworks District No. 8 5,424,122,854 4,896,895,245 527,227,609 10% 3 25% 130.2            
Padre Dam Municipal Water District 2,952,148,758 2,752,858,026 199,290,733 7% 3 25% 130.6            
Ontario  City of 8,782,999,363 8,499,508,622 283,490,741 3% 3 25% 131.3            
Pico Water District 1,029,001,320 960,057,631 68,943,690 7% 3 25% 131.5            
Santa Maria  City of 3,370,607,161 3,257,210,864 113,396,297 3% 3 25% 131.5            
Valley of the Moon Water District 800,300,880 646,691,259 153,609,621 19% 3 25% 131.5            

Page 6
Agenda Item G-1



Urban Water Suppliers and Proposed Regulatory Framework Tiers to Achieve 25% Use Reduction

Total Water
Saved Percent Saved  

Supplier Name
2013

(Jun ‐ Feb)
2014/15

(Jun‐14 ‐ Feb‐15)

(Jun‐14 ‐ Feb‐15, 
compared to 2013, 

gallons)

(Jun‐14 ‐ Feb‐15, 
compared to 
2013, gallons)

Tier
Conservation 
Standard

  Sep‐2014 
R‐GPCD 

Total Water Production

San Juan Capistrano  City of 2,040,416,466 1,962,283,810 78,132,655 4% 3 25% 131.8            
Laguna Beach County Water District 872,082,691 867,064,579 5,018,112 1% 3 25% 132.0            
Santa Margarita Water District 7,105,190,366 6,932,489,109 172,701,256 2% 3 25% 132.3            
Monte Vista Water District 2,603,464,922 2,359,464,115 244,000,807 9% 3 25% 133.3            
Lincoln Avenue Water Company 613,030,807 557,668,649 55,362,157 9% 3 25% 133.8            
San Gabriel Valley Fontana Water Company 10,907,224,816 10,188,722,419 718,502,397 7% 3 25% 134.3            
Tehachapi, City of 582,624,632 536,291,818 46,332,814 8% 3 25% 134.6            
North Tahoe Public Utility District 350,120,000 332,141,000 17,979,000 5% 3 25% 134.7            
Fresno  City of 36,603,191,424 30,513,707,650 6,089,483,774 17% 3 25% 134.9            
Golden State Water Company Simi Valley 1,830,698,487 1,657,215,187 173,483,300 9% 3 25% 134.9            
Fullerton  City of 7,215,373,767 6,969,105,034 246,268,733 3% 3 25% 135.0            
Pasadena  City of 8,349,297,631 7,614,975,148 734,322,483 9% 3 25% 136.0            
Suburban Water Systems Whittier/La Mirada 5,584,910,982 5,234,793,399 350,117,583 6% 3 25% 136.2            
Big Bear City Community Services District 266,135,894 256,898,007 9,237,888 3% 3 25% 136.3            
Lake Hemet Municipal Water District 2,880,852,466 2,579,961,258 300,891,208 10% 3 25% 136.4            
Suisun‐Solano Water Authority 1,038,300,000 918,300,000 120,000,000 12% 3 25% 136.5            
Diablo Water District 1,487,225,000 1,338,770,000 148,455,000 10% 3 25% 137.8            
Garden Grove  City of 6,584,316,860 6,185,605,054 398,711,806 6% 3 25% 138.3            
Woodland  City of 2,938,159,020 2,454,292,204 483,866,816 16% 3 25% 139.0            
Antioch  City of 4,642,068,000 4,042,923,000 599,145,000 13% 3 25% 139.0            
Contra Costa Water District 8,855,338,380 7,547,370,752 1,307,967,628 15% 3 25% 139.9            
Rialto  City of 2,544,482,555 2,596,683,954 ‐52,201,399 ‐2% 3 25% 140.8            
Sunnyslope County Water District 694,319,032 596,249,460 98,069,572 14% 3 25% 141.5            
San Bernardino  City of 11,535,034,614 10,722,937,586 812,097,028 7% 3 25% 143.6            
Cerritos  City of 2,219,233,953 1,991,297,621 227,936,332 10% 3 25% 143.7            
San Jacinto  City of 756,372,530 651,046,816 105,325,714 14% 3 25% 144.1            
Tulare, City of 4,805,328,900 4,324,313,800 481,015,100 10% 3 25% 144.7            
Sacramento County Water Agency 9,991,675,171 8,451,666,395 1,540,008,776 15% 3 25% 145.3            
Benicia  City of 1,543,102,018 1,217,315,761 325,786,257 21% 3 25% 146.1            
Orange  City of 7,732,617,288 7,437,395,896 295,221,393 4% 3 25% 146.3            
Stockton  City of 8,304,530,000 7,263,300,000 1,041,230,000 13% 3 25% 146.3            
Ceres  City of 1,985,969,000 1,848,968,000 137,001,000 7% 3 25% 147.3            
Monrovia  City of 1,885,000,000 1,673,000,000 212,000,000 11% 3 25% 147.5            

Page 7
Agenda Item G-1



Urban Water Suppliers and Proposed Regulatory Framework Tiers to Achieve 25% Use Reduction

Total Water
Saved Percent Saved  

Supplier Name
2013

(Jun ‐ Feb)
2014/15

(Jun‐14 ‐ Feb‐15)

(Jun‐14 ‐ Feb‐15, 
compared to 2013, 

gallons)

(Jun‐14 ‐ Feb‐15, 
compared to 
2013, gallons)

Tier
Conservation 
Standard

  Sep‐2014 
R‐GPCD 

Total Water Production

Chino  City of 3,332,449,959 3,123,999,542 208,450,416 6% 3 25% 147.6            
Apple Valley Ranchos Water Company 4,101,713,205 3,942,264,436 159,448,769 4% 3 25% 147.7            
Sonoma  City of 583,798,675 494,362,234 89,436,441 15% 3 25% 147.8            
Humboldt Bay Municipal Water District 146,056,000 148,820,000 ‐2,764,000 ‐2% 3 25% 148.1            
Victorville Water District 4,985,852,685 4,486,322,447 499,530,238 10% 3 25% 149.1            
Paso Robles  City of 1,705,474,000 1,511,094,000 194,380,000 11% 3 25% 149.5            
Sanger  City of 1,552,776,000 1,422,246,000 130,530,000 8% 3 25% 149.6            
Rubidoux Community Service District 1,400,190,000 1,335,510,000 64,680,000 5% 3 25% 149.8            
Phelan Pinon Hills Community Services District 635,139,826 675,206,517 ‐40,066,691 ‐6% 3 25% 150.3            
Covina  City of  1,500,350,310 1,393,914,200 106,436,110 7% 3 25% 150.4            
California‐American Water Company Los Angeles District 5,579,752,754 5,179,473,602 400,279,151 7% 3 25% 151.4            
Golden State Water Company San Dimas 3,063,589,946 2,950,649,842 112,940,105 4% 3 25% 151.4            
Patterson  City of 1,040,156,104 948,595,320 91,560,784 9% 3 25% 151.9            
Yreka, City of 593,290,000 519,800,000 73,490,000 12% 3 25% 151.9            
Trabuco Canyon Water District 764,121,596 767,705,962 ‐3,584,366 0% 3 25% 152.4            
Arvin Community Services District 740,072,884 667,768,501 72,304,383 10% 3 25% 153.6            
San Dieguito Water District 1,583,703,106 1,621,176,020 ‐37,472,914 ‐2% 3 25% 154.0            
Atascadero Mutual Water Company 1,291,000,000 1,056,900,000 234,100,000 18% 3 25% 154.6            
Santa Paula  City of 1,218,270,506 1,081,725,724 136,544,782 11% 3 25% 154.7            
Manteca  City of 3,844,580,000 3,212,645,000 631,935,000 16% 3 25% 154.9            
Castaic Lake Water Agency Santa Clarita Water Division 7,358,051,073 6,493,567,237 864,483,836 12% 3 25% 154.9            
Roseville  City of 8,448,024,096 6,930,859,852 1,517,164,244 18% 3 25% 155.0            
La Verne  City of 2,094,159,141 1,955,656,970 138,502,171 7% 3 25% 155.2            
Nipomo Community Services District 665,258,273 527,032,098 138,226,175 21% 3 25% 156.0            
Imperial, City of 687,420,000 671,127,000 16,293,000 2% 3 25% 156.1            
Lamont Public Utility District 993,121,000 914,688,000 78,433,000 8% 3 25% 156.4            
Walnut Valley Water District 5,119,451,770 4,877,344,159 242,107,610 5% 3 25% 158.4            
Chino Hills  City of 3,952,965,804 3,587,674,904 365,290,900 9% 3 25% 159.1            
Thousand Oaks  City of 3,106,634,920 2,792,709,655 313,925,265 10% 3 25% 159.3            
Rosamond Community Service District 719,200,000 712,000,000 7,200,000 1% 3 25% 160.0            
Corona  City of 8,699,410,000 8,297,070,000 402,340,000 5% 3 25% 160.4            
Hesperia Water District City of 3,676,581,651 3,538,094,794 138,486,856 4% 3 25% 160.5            
Fillmore  City of 482,079,202 446,216,000 35,863,202 7% 3 25% 160.6            

Page 8
Agenda Item G-1



Urban Water Suppliers and Proposed Regulatory Framework Tiers to Achieve 25% Use Reduction

Total Water
Saved Percent Saved  

Supplier Name
2013

(Jun ‐ Feb)
2014/15

(Jun‐14 ‐ Feb‐15)

(Jun‐14 ‐ Feb‐15, 
compared to 2013, 

gallons)

(Jun‐14 ‐ Feb‐15, 
compared to 
2013, gallons)

Tier
Conservation 
Standard

  Sep‐2014 
R‐GPCD 

Total Water Production

Joshua Basin Water District 409,078,118 382,604,644 26,473,473 6% 3 25% 161.3            
Calaveras County Water District 1,468,843,000 1,200,100,000 268,743,000 18% 3 25% 161.5            
East Valley Water District 5,405,695,956 4,782,879,831 622,816,125 12% 3 25% 161.7            
Tustin  City of 2,984,049,613 2,895,189,929 88,859,684 3% 3 25% 162.0            
Brentwood  City of 3,038,220,000 2,663,210,000 375,010,000 12% 3 25% 162.4            
California Water Service Company Los Altos/Suburban 3,714,706,268 3,136,645,836 578,060,431 16% 3 25% 162.5            
Mission Springs Water District 2,072,832,166 1,979,439,888 93,392,277 5% 3 25% 162.7            
Yuba City  City of 4,215,490,000 3,629,080,000 586,410,000 14% 3 25% 162.7            
Palmdale Water District 5,291,175,472 5,010,063,446 281,112,026 5% 3 25% 163.2            
California‐American Water Ventura District 4,397,006,571 3,988,454,052 408,552,519 9% 3 25% 163.6            
Porterville  City of 3,123,277,400 2,849,237,200 274,040,200 9% 3 25% 164.0            
Madera  City of 2,268,235,000 2,115,715,000 152,520,000 7% 3 25% 164.8            
Golden State Water Company Ojai 564,830,864 487,636,661 77,194,203 14% 4 35% 165.5            
Blythe  City of 806,370,000 811,680,000 ‐5,310,000 ‐1% 4 35% 165.5            
South Pasadena  City of 1,045,005,526 935,193,595 109,811,931 11% 4 35% 166.1            
Ramona Municipal Water District 1,087,105,531 1,049,746,665 37,358,866 3% 4 35% 166.8            
La Habra  City of Public Works 2,397,728,848 2,535,032,864 ‐137,304,016 ‐6% 4 35% 167.3            
Banning  City of 2,219,758,574 2,058,002,667 161,755,907 7% 4 35% 167.7            
Livingston  City of 1,870,481,000 1,810,513,000 59,968,000 3% 4 35% 167.9            
Dinuba  City of 1,126,830,000 977,550,000 149,280,000 13% 4 35% 169.8            
Folsom  City of 5,476,678,514 4,592,545,306 884,133,208 16% 4 35% 170.7            
Loma Linda  City of * 1,379,990,569 1,323,839,525 56,151,044 4% 4 35% 172.4            
Hanford  City of 3,229,776,700 2,793,029,816 436,746,884 14% 4 35% 173.6            
Lemoore  City of 1,967,044,000 1,783,354,000 183,690,000 9% 4 35% 173.7            
Jurupa Community Service District 6,546,170,411 6,107,698,865 438,471,545 7% 4 35% 174.0            
Turlock  City of 5,571,505,100 4,909,059,441 662,445,659 12% 4 35% 174.1            
Pismo Beach  City of 434,216,578 359,495,587 74,720,991 17% 4 35% 175.1            
Indio  City of 5,340,000,000 5,006,100,000 333,900,000 6% 4 35% 175.2            
Mammoth Community Water District 499,483,000 447,407,000 52,076,000 10% 4 35% 175.6            
California Water Service Company Selma 1,492,399,536 1,239,212,977 253,186,559 17% 4 35% 175.8            
California Water Service Company Visalia 8,033,215,230 7,144,292,537 888,922,693 11% 4 35% 176.6            
Hemet  City of 1,116,063,947 1,045,970,047 70,093,900 6% 4 35% 176.7            
Western Municipal Water District of Riverside 5,887,379,311 5,683,989,367 203,389,944 3% 4 35% 176.9            

Page 9
Agenda Item G-1



Urban Water Suppliers and Proposed Regulatory Framework Tiers to Achieve 25% Use Reduction

Total Water
Saved Percent Saved  

Supplier Name
2013

(Jun ‐ Feb)
2014/15

(Jun‐14 ‐ Feb‐15)

(Jun‐14 ‐ Feb‐15, 
compared to 2013, 

gallons)

(Jun‐14 ‐ Feb‐15, 
compared to 
2013, gallons)

Tier
Conservation 
Standard

  Sep‐2014 
R‐GPCD 

Total Water Production

Newhall County Water District 2,611,216,927 2,326,139,289 285,077,638 11% 4 35% 178.5            
West Kern Water District 4,045,106,581 3,679,048,346 366,058,235 9% 4 35% 180.2            
Rincon Del Diablo Municipal Water District 1,766,766,437 1,514,883,284 251,883,153 14% 4 35% 182.2            
Shafter  City of 1,350,000,000 1,154,000,000 196,000,000 15% 4 35% 182.9            
Triunfo Sanitation District / Oak Park Water Service 687,285,830 597,937,369 89,348,461 13% 4 35% 184.0            
Vacaville  City of 4,536,829,418 3,868,833,993 667,995,425 15% 4 35% 185.5            
Los Angeles County Public Works Waterworks District 40 12,870,711,018 11,980,791,220 889,919,798 7% 4 35% 185.6            
California Water Service Company Bakersfield 18,863,864,960 16,841,305,153 2,022,559,807 11% 4 35% 186.2            
Galt  City of 1,302,667,000 1,052,546,000 250,121,000 19% 4 35% 186.4            
Cucamonga Valley Water District 12,916,078,335 12,778,430,872 137,647,463 1% 4 35% 187.6            
Wasco  City of 1,096,680,000 952,170,000 144,510,000 13% 4 35% 187.6            
California Water Service Company Chico District 6,759,462,002 5,680,893,778 1,078,568,223 16% 4 35% 188.1            
South Tahoe Public Utilities District 1,641,227,000 1,550,474,000 90,753,000 6% 4 35% 189.3            
Winton Water & Sanitary District 432,243,000 400,904,000 31,339,000 7% 4 35% 189.3            
Carlsbad Municipal Water District 4,342,002,850 4,259,269,173 82,733,677 2% 4 35% 189.3            
Riverbank  City of 860,786,846 737,503,990 123,282,856 14% 4 35% 191.6            
Modesto, City of 15,589,770,183 13,698,086,925 1,891,683,258 12% 4 35% 192.7            
El Dorado Irrigation District 10,044,044,386 7,600,810,386 2,443,234,000 24% 4 35% 193.1            
Morgan Hill  City of 2,262,311,000 1,786,089,000 476,222,000 21% 4 35% 193.4            
Exeter  City of 600,332,681 535,287,408 65,045,273 11% 4 35% 194.4            
Kerman, City of 880,465,000 769,624,000 110,841,000 13% 4 35% 194.7            
Citrus Heights Water District 3,723,178,405 3,023,575,391 699,603,014 19% 4 35% 195.4            
San Bernardino County Service Area 70 457,322,702 431,251,330 26,071,373 6% 4 35% 196.0            
Colton, City of 2,519,711,330 2,487,549,794 32,161,536 1% 4 35% 196.0            
Georgetown Divide Public Utilities District 512,901,000 410,416,000 102,485,000 20% 4 35% 196.4            
Oakdale  City of 1,417,000,000 1,139,000,000 278,000,000 20% 4 35% 197.6            
Elsinore Valley Municipal Water District 6,567,437,756 6,285,445,931 281,991,825 4% 4 35% 199.6            
Fallbrook Public Utility District 3,340,661,415 3,012,268,347 328,393,068 10% 4 35% 200.0            
Sierra Madre  City of 616,142,059 546,575,118 69,566,941 11% 4 35% 203.6            
Atwater  City of 2,358,960,000 1,821,770,000 537,190,000 23% 4 35% 203.7            
Lee Lake Water District 760,491,304 738,717,756 21,773,548 3% 4 35% 204.4            
Poway  City of 2,984,245,124 2,893,299,991 90,945,133 3% 4 35% 204.8            
Shasta Lake  City of 309,004,338 258,461,000 50,543,338 16% 4 35% 205.5            

Page 10
Agenda Item G-1



Urban Water Suppliers and Proposed Regulatory Framework Tiers to Achieve 25% Use Reduction

Total Water
Saved Percent Saved  

Supplier Name
2013

(Jun ‐ Feb)
2014/15

(Jun‐14 ‐ Feb‐15)

(Jun‐14 ‐ Feb‐15, 
compared to 2013, 

gallons)

(Jun‐14 ‐ Feb‐15, 
compared to 
2013, gallons)

Tier
Conservation 
Standard

  Sep‐2014 
R‐GPCD 

Total Water Production

Newport Beach  City of 4,220,349,478 3,924,557,845 295,791,633 7% 4 35% 206.6            
Redding  City of 7,109,010,000 5,934,100,000 1,174,910,000 17% 4 35% 208.2            
Lodi  City of Public Works Department 3,904,230,000 3,932,720,000 ‐28,490,000 ‐1% 4 35% 209.1            
Elk Grove Water Service 1,982,552,982 1,615,618,816 366,934,166 19% 4 35% 209.7            
Ventura County Waterworks District No 1 2,688,665,294 2,241,890,403 446,774,892 17% 4 35% 210.1            
Golden State Water Company Orcutt 1,941,781,239 1,705,636,709 236,144,529 12% 4 35% 210.1            
Lincoln  City of 2,592,190,000 2,158,050,000 434,140,000 17% 4 35% 211.1            
West Valley Water District 5,029,549,361 4,747,557,536 281,991,825 6% 4 35% 212.6            
Sacramento Suburban Water District 9,630,759,000 8,318,514,000 1,312,245,000 14% 4 35% 212.9            
Nevada Irrigation District 2,750,729,000 2,339,997,000 410,732,000 15% 4 35% 215.7            
Rubio Canyon Land and Water Association 561,116,157 508,002,375 53,113,783 9% 4 35% 215.9            
Norco  City of 2,009,949,357 1,856,691,656 153,257,702 8% 4 35% 216.1            
Beverly Hills  City of 2,984,049,613 2,900,957,499 83,092,114 3% 4 35% 216.6            
Carmichael Water District 2,598,570,000 2,107,250,000 491,320,000 19% 4 35% 220.2            
Riverside Highland Water Company 971,591,200 889,248,544 82,342,656 8% 4 35% 220.9            
Yorba Linda Water District 5,380,523,933 5,128,021,662 252,502,271 5% 4 35% 221.3            
Olivenhain Municipal Water District 5,326,497,766 5,149,755,952 176,741,814 3% 4 35% 222.0            
Olivehurst Public Utility District 1,161,641,529 959,245,393 202,396,137 17% 4 35% 222.4            
Rio Linda ‐ Elverta Community Water District 770,017,391 629,595,315 140,422,076 18% 4 35% 225.0            
Upland  City of 5,523,683,657 5,024,215,355 499,468,301 9% 4 35% 226.2            
Discovery Bay Community Services District 986,000,000 808,000,000 178,000,000 18% 4 35% 226.5            
California Water Service Company Bear Gulch 3,623,142,017 3,228,861,790 394,280,227 11% 4 35% 227.7            
Corcoran City of 1,162,447,000 950,206,000 212,241,000 18% 4 35% 228.4            
Glendora  City of 3,108,798,089 3,089,127,284 19,670,805 1% 4 35% 228.9            
Los Banos, City of 2,053,870,000 1,905,101,000 148,769,000 7% 4 35% 229.2            
Clovis  City of 6,737,008,000 6,080,852,000 656,156,000 10% 4 35% 229.8            
Camrosa Water District 2,469,015,365 2,141,221,863 327,793,502 13% 4 35% 231.4            
East Niles Community Service District 2,504,168,216 2,213,508,744 290,659,473 12% 4 35% 231.4            
Rio Vista, city of 641,312,000 606,333,000 34,979,000 5% 4 35% 235.0            
Placer County Water Agency 7,686,123,771 6,395,079,193 1,291,044,578 17% 4 35% 235.1            
West Sacramento  City of 3,567,747,274 2,941,460,832 626,286,443 18% 4 35% 238.5            
Montecito Water District 1,577,349,003 836,688,709 740,660,294 47% 4 35% 240.5            
Paradise Irrigation District 1,721,400,000 1,355,900,000 365,500,000 21% 4 35% 241.1            

Page 11
Agenda Item G-1

Cinderella
Highlight



Urban Water Suppliers and Proposed Regulatory Framework Tiers to Achieve 25% Use Reduction

Total Water
Saved Percent Saved  

Supplier Name
2013

(Jun ‐ Feb)
2014/15

(Jun‐14 ‐ Feb‐15)

(Jun‐14 ‐ Feb‐15, 
compared to 2013, 

gallons)

(Jun‐14 ‐ Feb‐15, 
compared to 
2013, gallons)

Tier
Conservation 
Standard

  Sep‐2014 
R‐GPCD 

Total Water Production

Fruitridge Vista Water Company 1,000,084,300 823,053,400 177,030,900 18% 4 35% 242.3            
Los Angeles County Public Works Waterworks District 29 2,383,427,229 2,356,081,777 27,345,452 1% 4 35% 242.8            
Fair Oaks Water District 3,068,959,978 2,450,034,519 618,925,459 20% 4 35% 243.3            
Indian Wells Valley Water District 1,861,884,000 1,789,365,000 72,519,000 4% 4 35% 244.1            
San Bernardino County Service Area 64 758,722,238 679,807,540 78,914,699 10% 4 35% 246.3            
Pinedale County Water District 267,792,348 224,289,932 43,502,416 16% 4 35% 247.0            
Truckee‐Donner Public Utilities District 1,264,764,466 1,144,274,188 120,490,278 10% 4 35% 247.8            
Anderson, City of 572,342,000 498,676,000 73,666,000 13% 4 35% 248.6            
Golden State Water Company Claremont 2,873,781,490 2,604,204,605 269,576,886 9% 4 35% 249.9            
California Water Service Company Palos Verdes 5,184,622,055 4,979,661,507 204,960,548 4% 4 35% 250.9            
California City  City of 1,192,746,563 1,264,824,899 ‐72,078,336 ‐6% 4 35% 251.3            
Casitas Municipal Water District 777,155,653 678,096,820 99,058,834 13% 4 35% 253.2            
Yucaipa Valley Water District 2,981,840,000 2,837,629,000 144,211,000 5% 4 35% 253.4            
Golden State Water Company Cordova 4,051,962,495 3,483,514,680 568,447,814 14% 4 35% 265.5            
Red Bluff  City of 904,393,249 764,891,212 139,502,037 15% 4 35% 270.9            
East Orange County Water District 247,060,552 225,554,358 21,506,194 9% 4 35% 271.6            
Bakman Water Company 1,032,655,497 893,235,946 139,419,551 14% 4 35% 277.3            
Bakersfield  City of 11,705,594,680 10,744,390,565 961,204,114 8% 4 35% 277.5            
Merced  City of 6,872,130,000 6,271,910,000 600,220,000 9% 4 35% 279.6            
Hillsborough  Town of 877,331,034 658,647,771 218,683,262 25% 4 35% 281.2            
Ripon  City of 1,431,002,833 1,223,409,134 207,593,699 15% 4 35% 282.0            
Susanville  City of 560,250,000 602,070,000 ‐41,820,000 ‐7% 4 35% 287.6            
Valley Center Municipal Water District 6,829,813,325 6,798,466,417 31,346,907 0% 4 35% 288.4            
Bella Vista Water District 3,596,422,200 1,864,847,717 1,731,574,483 48% 4 35% 288.7            
California Water Service Company Antelope Valley 186,061,165 216,691,199 ‐30,630,034 ‐16% 4 35% 291.4            
Arcadia  City of 4,352,404,027 4,033,916,843 318,487,185 7% 4 35% 291.5            
Madera County 891,468,716 660,496,910 230,971,806 26% 4 35% 298.4            
Oildale Mutual Water Company 2,485,920,537 2,317,129,497 168,791,039 7% 4 35% 303.5            
Tahoe City Public Utilities District 372,523,331 326,265,848 46,257,483 12% 4 35% 307.8            
Kingsburg, City of 1,009,319,000 825,793,000 183,526,000 18% 4 35% 308.0            
Quartz Hill Water District 1,430,054,382 1,276,190,597 153,863,785 11% 4 35% 308.1            
Linda County Water District 971,706,000 880,037,000 91,669,000 9% 4 35% 312.3            
Las Virgenes Municipal Water District 5,714,163,209 5,470,784,778 243,378,431 4% 4 35% 323.0            

Page 12
Agenda Item G-1



Urban Water Suppliers and Proposed Regulatory Framework Tiers to Achieve 25% Use Reduction

Total Water
Saved Percent Saved  

Supplier Name
2013

(Jun ‐ Feb)
2014/15

(Jun‐14 ‐ Feb‐15)

(Jun‐14 ‐ Feb‐15, 
compared to 2013, 

gallons)

(Jun‐14 ‐ Feb‐15, 
compared to 
2013, gallons)

Tier
Conservation 
Standard

  Sep‐2014 
R‐GPCD 

Total Water Production

California Water Service Company Westlake 2,085,449,133 1,928,388,745 157,060,388 8% 4 35% 326.5            
Orange Vale Water Company 1,274,470,101 1,008,190,832 266,279,269 21% 4 35% 336.2            
Redlands  City of 7,033,861,488 6,969,114,810 64,746,679 1% 4 35% 341.5            
Rancho California Water District 16,377,618,572 16,074,902,597 302,715,976 2% 4 35% 366.9            
Coachella Valley Water District 28,323,853,249 27,188,261,025 1,135,592,223 4% 4 35% 368.7            
Desert Water Agency 8,823,730,792 8,310,188,943 513,541,849 6% 4 35% 378.5            
San Juan Water District 3,594,268,324 2,773,624,539 820,643,785 23% 4 35% 383.7            
South Feather Water and Power Agency 1,435,400,000 1,292,100,000 143,300,000 10% 4 35% 391.5            
Valley Water Company 999,093,060 898,861,161 100,231,899 10% 4 35% 396.6            
Rainbow Municipal Water District 3,976,593,060 3,760,749,074 215,843,985 5% 4 35% 428.5            
Vaughn Water Company 3,206,837,858 2,989,389,519 217,448,339 7% 4 35% 464.6            
Serrano Water District 829,682,903 749,230,186 80,452,717 10% 4 35% 520.1            
Golden State Water Company Cowan Heights 703,676,157 691,163,462 12,512,695 2% 4 35% 556.5            
Myoma Dunes Mutual Water Company 757,700,108 707,153,944 50,546,164 7% 4 35% 562.7            
Santa Fe Irrigation District 2,820,156,121 2,869,480,251 ‐49,324,131 ‐2% 4 35% 584.3            
Statewide 1,626,751,431,372 1,478,173,631,488 148,577,799,883 9%      

Page 13
Agenda Item G-1



 

 

 

 

 

 

 1  

 MONTHLY OPERATIONS REPORT 
March 2015 

 

 
Town of Discovery Bay, CA 

2040 Days of Safe Operations 

91,496 worked hours since last recordable incident  

 
TRAINING: 

Safety, Operations, & Equipment 
 

Safety  Hours 

West Monthly Regional Safety Webinar 
Weekly Safety Topics 

2.0 

Operations  

Dystor Sand Filter 
Ventis MX4 Air Meter 

2.0 

 
 
 
 

REPORTS SUBMITTED TO REGULATORY AGENCIES 
 

Monthly Discharge Monitoring Report (DMR) 
Monthly electronic State Monitoring Report (eSMR) 
Monthly Coliform Report, California Department of Public Health (CDPH) 

 
 

 
 
 

WATER SERVICES 
 
 
 
 
Note: Well 4 in lead and Well 5 in lag to offset specific conductivity 

 
 
 
 
 
 
2015 Water Production Table (MG) by Month 

# of  
Active Wells 

Water Produced  
(MG) 

Chemical (Hypo)  
Delivered 

Fire Hydrant Flushing 

5 69.6 950 0 

Agenda Item H-1



 

 

 

 

 

 

 2  

 

January February March  April May June 

47.6 44.5 69.6    

July August September October November December 

      
 

 

 
 

 
 
 
 
 
Bacteriological Test Results: 
Routine Bacteria  

Samples Collected 

No. Total Coliform 

Positives 
No. Fecal/E. coli 

Positives 
Brown Water  
Calls 

20 0 0 0 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

WASTEWATER SERVICE 

 

0

10

20

30

40

50

60

70

80

2014 Total Reported

2015 Total Reported

Agenda Item H-1



 

 

 

 

 

 

 3  

 

Wastewater Laboratory Analysis 
Blue – new parameter added 

 
 
 
 
 
 

National Pollution Discharge Elimination System (NPDES) 
 

NPDES Related  
Excursions 

Permit Parameter 
 

NPDES Parameter 
 Limit 

 Actual Parameter 
Result 

0 None  0 N/A 

 
 

Bacteriological Test Results: 
  

Routine Bacteria  
Samples Collected 

No. Total Coliform 
Positives 

No. Fecal/E. coli 
Positives 

7-Day Median  
Excursion 

14 0 0 0 

 
 
 

                                

 

     WW Effluent 

Parameter 

 

Permit 

Limits 

 

February 

Lab Data 

 

March 

Lab Data 

Flow, MG Effluent, monthly total -------------------- 35.3 36.7 

Flow,  MG Daily Influent Flow, avg. N/A 1.33 1.43 

Flow,  MG Daily Discharge Flow, avg.  2.1  1.26 1.18 

Effluent BOD5, lbs/d, monthly avg. 350 51 34 

Effluent TSS, lbs/d, monthly avg. 525 85 63 

Effluent BOD5, mg/L, monthly avg. 20 4 3 

Effluent TSS, mg/L, monthly avg. 30 7 6 

Total Coli form 7 day Median Max 23 1 0 

Total Coli form Daily Maximum 240 2 2 

% Removal  BOD5, monthly avg. 85% min. 98 98 

% Removal, TSS, monthly avg. 85% min. 95 96 

Electrical Conductivity, umhos/cm annual avg. 2100 1950 1970 

# of Active 
Lift Stations 

# of Inactive 
Lift Stations 

Chemical Usage 
Polymer-gals SSO 

Wastewater 
Received (MG) 

Agenda Item H-1



 

 

 

 

 

 

 4  

   
 
 
 
   COLLECTION: 

 

 Flushed 0 ft. of sanitary sewer lines, YTD  25763 ft.  

 CCTV 25463 ft. entire system completed (Deadline is May 2015) 

  Inspected 23 manhole & covers. 113 YTD  

 Performed valve exercising 

 Performed weekly lift station inspections. 
  
 
 

 
MAINTENANCE: 
  

 Preventive and Corrective 

Total # of WO’s Completed Total Hours 

213 146 

  
    Work Order Back-Log 

Aging 8 - 30 Days  Aging > 30 Days 

37  29 

 
 
Call & Emergency Responses 

Call Outs                                       Emergencies  

7     0 

 
Personnel Hours & Overtime:   

Regular Hours Overtime 

1408 66 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

TERMS 

 

15 0 39 0 44.8 

Agenda Item H-1



 

 

 

 

 

 

 5  

WWTP    WASTEWATER TREATMENT PLANT 

 

WTP   WATER TREAMENT PLANT 

 

WL   WILLOW LAKE 

 

NP   NEWPORT  

 

VFD   VARIABLE FREQUENCY DRIVE 

 

WO   WORK ORDER 

 

PLC   PROGRAMMABLE LOGIC CONTROLLER 

 

L/S   LIFT STATION 

 

SSO                                SANITARY SEWER OVERFLOW 

 

BOD   BIOLOGICAL OXYGEN DEMAND 

 

TSS   TOTAL SUSPENDED SOLIDS 

 

MGD   MILLION GALLONS PER DAY 

 

mg/l   MILLIGRAMS PER LITRE 

 

CCTV   CLOSED CIRCUIT TELEVISION 

 

PPM   PARTS PER MILLION 

 

RAS   RETURN ACTIVATED SLUDGE 

 

WAS   WATSE ACTIVATED SLUDGE 

 

UV                                   ULTRAVIOLET LIGHT 

Agenda Item H-1



No Back Up
Documentation

For Agenda Item I

TOWN OF DISCOVERY BAY
A COMMUNITY SERVICES DISTRICT

President – Chris Steele • Vice-President – Bill Pease • Director – Kevin Graves • Director – Robert Leete • Director – Mark Simon



No Back Up
Documentation

For Agenda Item J

TOWN OF DISCOVERY BAY
A COMMUNITY SERVICES DISTRICT

President – Chris Steele • Vice-President – Bill Pease • Director – Kevin Graves • Director – Robert Leete • Director – Mark Simon



No Back Up
Documentation

For Agenda Item K

TOWN OF DISCOVERY BAY
A COMMUNITY SERVICES DISTRICT

President – Chris Steele • Vice-President – Bill Pease • Director – Kevin Graves • Director – Robert Leete • Director – Mark Simon



No Back Up
Documentation

For Agenda Item L

TOWN OF DISCOVERY BAY
A COMMUNITY SERVICES DISTRICT

President – Chris Steele • Vice-President – Bill Pease • Director – Kevin Graves • Director – Robert Leete • Director – Mark Simon



Agenda Item M-1



Agenda Item M-1



Agenda Item M-1



Agenda Item M-1



Agenda Item M-2



Agenda Item M-2



Agenda Item M-2



Agenda Item M-2



 

March 2, 2015 Minutes  
Page 1 of 3 

10937307.1 

 

EAST CONTRA COSTA FIRE PROTECTION DISTRICT 
 

Meeting Minutes 
Board of Directors Regular Meeting 

 
Monday March 2, 2015 – 6:30 P.M. 

 Meeting Location: 3231 Main Street, Oakley  
 

BOARD OF DIRECTORS 
Greg Cooper 
Robert Kenny 

Jonathan Michaelson 

Joel Bryant-President 
Ronald Johansen-Vice President 

Cheryl Morgan 
 

Randy Pope 
Stephen Smith 

Joe Young 

 
CALL TO ORDER: (6:31 P.M.)    
 
 
PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE: (6:31 P.M.)    
 
 
ROLL CALL: (6:32 P.M.)  
 

Directors Present:  Bryant, Cooper, Johansen, Kenny, Michaelson, Morgan, Pope, Smith,  
        Young            
Directors Absent:     

  
 
PUBLIC COMMENTS: (6:32 P.M.)    
 
There were four (4) Public Speakers – Tom Baldocchi, Matt Turturici, John Renner, Mark Myers 
 
 
CONSENT CALENDAR: (6:38 P.M.)    
 
C.1   Approve Minutes from February 2, 2015 Regular Board of Directors Meeting 
 

Motion by:  Director Young to approve Consent Calendar Item C.1   
Second by: Director Smith 
Vote: Motion carried:  9:0:0 
Ayes: Bryant, Cooper, Johansen, Kenny, Michaelson, Morgan, Pope, Smith, Young 
Noes: 
Abstained:  

  Absent:   
 
 
 

Agenda Item M-3



 

March 2, 2015 Minutes 
Page 2 of 3 

 
11050419.1 

 
 
 
 
 DISCUSSION ITEMS 
 
(6:39 P.M.) 
D.1   Consideration of the Engineer’s Report for a Proposed Fire Suppression Assessment 

District and Adoption of Resolutions: 
 

a) Declaring the intention to establish the assessment district and levy and collect the 
assessment and preliminarily approve the Engineer’s Report in support of the 
assessment 

 
b) Providing notice of public hearing and directing the mailing of the assessment 

ballots; and 
 
c) Adopting updated procedures governing the completion, return and tabulation of 

assessment ballots for the proposed assessment in accordance with Proposition 
218. 

 
 The District’s assessment engineer provided a revised page 4-3 of the proposed 

Engineer’s Report. 
 

There were five (5) Public Speakers – Gil Guerrero, Jim Frazier, Tom Baldocci, Kevin 
Romick, and Mayor Bob Taylor 

 
Motion by: Director Young to Adopt\ Resolutions  
a, b, c, including the amended page  4-3 for the Engineer’s Report. 
Second by: Director Smith 
Vote: Motion carried:  9:0:0 
Ayes: Bryant, Cooper, Johansen, Kenny, Michaelson, Morgan, Pope, Smith, Young 
Noes: 
Abstained:  

  Absent:   
 
 
(7:37 P.M.) 
D.2   Receive Operational Update for February 2015 
 
 Chief Henderson gave the Operational Update for February 2015 
 
There were no (0) Public Speakers   
 
 
INFORMATIONAL STAFF REPORTS: (7:38 P.M.) 
 

Chief Henderson provided information on the District’s Open Houses scheduled for  
 March 5, 11 and 14. 
 
 
 

Agenda Item M-3



 

March 2, 2015 Minutes 
Page 3 of 3 

 
11050419.1 

 
 
 
 
DIRECTORS’ COMMENTS: (7:38 P.M.) 
 
Director Bryant thanked the Staff and NBS for a job well done on preparing the data for the 
Engineer’s Report 
 
Director Kenny thanked Chief Henderson for being the Grand Marshall for the Boat Parade on 
April 17, 2015 
 
 
INFORMATIONAL REPORTS AND REQUESTS FOR FUTURE AGENDA ITEMS FROM 
BOARD MEMBERS: (7:39 P.M.) 
 
None 
 
 
ADJOURN TO THE REGULAR BOARD MEETING SCHEDULED: April 6, 2015 
 

Motion by:  Director Michaelson to adjourn to the next Regular Board Meeting 
scheduled on April 6, 2015 
Vote: Motion carried:  9:0:0 
Ayes: Bryant, Cooper, Johansen, Kenny, Michaelson, Morgan, Pope, Smith, Young 
Noes: 
Abstained:  

  Absent:   
 

Agenda Item M-3



Agenda Item M-4



Agenda Item M-4



Agenda Item M-4



Agenda Item M-4



No Back Up
Documentation

For Agenda Item N

TOWN OF DISCOVERY BAY
A COMMUNITY SERVICES DISTRICT

President – Chris Steele • Vice-President – Bill Pease • Director – Kevin Graves • Director – Robert Leete • Director – Mark Simon



No Back Up
Documentation

For Agenda Item O

TOWN OF DISCOVERY BAY
A COMMUNITY SERVICES DISTRICT

President – Chris Steele • Vice-President – Bill Pease • Director – Kevin Graves • Director – Robert Leete • Director – Mark Simon


	04-14-15 Agenda Packet Cover Sheet.pdf
	04-14-15 Special Agenda.pdf
	C - No Back Up Documentation for this Agenda Item.pdf
	D - No Back Up Documentation for this Agenda Item.pdf
	E-1 DRAFT Minutes 04-01-15.pdf
	E-2-1 Agenda Report Approve Register of District Invoices (9).pdf
	E-2-2 Copy of RFA Town Water Wastewater (12).pdf
	E-2-3 Copy of RFA LL #8 (6).pdf
	E-2-4 Copy of RFA LL #9 (6).pdf
	E-3-1 Agenda Report Purchase Emergency Stand-By Generator for Well No. 7.pdf
	E-3-2 Well No. 7 MULTIQUIP Whisperwatt DCA 300SSCU4i 300KW Portable Generator.pdf
	E-3-3 Well No 7 Gonneville Inc. Proposal.pdf
	F-1-1 Agenda Report Review Urban Water Management Plan.pdf
	F-1-2 Draft 2010 UWMP - TODB 2015apr6.pdf
	Cover
	Table of Contents
	Tables
	Figures
	Chapter 1  Plan Preparation
	Chapter 2  System Description
	figure 2-1 - water system
	figure 2-2 - population

	Chapter 3  System Demands
	Chapter 4  System Supplies
	figure 4-1 - geologic cross-section
	figure 4-2 - hydrograph
	figure 4-3 - TDS levels

	Chapter 5  Water Supply Reliability and
	Chapter 6  Demand Management Measures
	Appendix A - UWMP Checklist
	Appendix B - (not included)
	Appendix C - Water Conservation Ordinances

	F-2-1 Agenda Report Groundwater Sustainability Plan Proposal for Services.pdf
	F-2-2 PROPOSAL eccc sgma compliance 2015apr01.pdf
	G-1-1 Agenda Report Drought - Governor’s Executive Order requiring 25% Water Reduction.pdf
	G-1-2 Executive_Order.pdf
	WREO
	new page

	G-1-3 Mandatory Conservation Regulations_fact_sheet dated 04072015.pdf
	G-1-4 - Urban_Water_Supplier_Tiers.pdf
	H-1 Veolia Report – Month of March 2015.pdf
	I - No Back Up Documentation for this Agenda Item.pdf
	J - No Back Up Documentation for this Agenda Item.pdf
	K - No Back Up Documentation for this Agenda Item.pdf
	L - No Back Up Documentation for this Agenda Item.pdf
	M-1 R - CCC Aviation Advisory Committee meeting minutes for 02-12-15.pdf
	M-2 R - State Route 4BPA meeting minutes for 02-12-15.pdf
	M-3 R - ECCFPD Minutes for 03-02-15.pdf
	7ef88433-9a09-4815-9b90-a49261b0fa92.pdf
	bbbf4725-83f0-4611-be60-d820fa6423f3.pdf
	b42184a9-e7c8-458d-92b1-6df0f51cb842.pdf
	da299437-9657-45ef-a121-f0ea06a962c4.pdf
	e6103cec-1cb1-49a0-8201-c001690e51a5.pdf
	dbaf9c8b-1fcf-4192-b0ec-8fdeb11ba2f4.pdf
	e3d472f0-b3fb-40bc-800a-01afda4892a4.pdf
	8f814c7d-2efd-4bd6-ac2a-97a55dce5b80.pdf
	d9aa59e7-0e73-41d7-813a-9110188dbcc9.pdf

	M-4 R - CCC Aviation Advisory Committee meeting minutes for 03-12-15.pdf
	N - No Back Up Documentation for this Agenda Item.pdf
	O - No Back Up Documentation for this Agenda Item.pdf

